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1 	1 

	

2 	State Lands Commission 

3 	Public Hearing on Ocean Pollution 

	

4 	December 13, 1988 

5 	10:20 a.m. 

6 

	

7 	 PROCEEDINGS 	•■• • 
8 

	

9 	 CHAIR DAVIS: All right, I think everybody is ready 

• 	10 	and we will commence this hearing. 

	

11 	 The Chair notes the presence of the L44.eutenant 

	

12 	Governor and the Controller, and that constitutes a quorum of 

• 	13 	our three-member authority. 

	

14 	 Before I begin, I just want to make a brief opening 

	

15 	statement. I ha';e called a series of at least three meetings • 

	

16 	to deal with the whole question of ocean pollution. Today's 

	

17 	meeting will Focus on medical wastes, but obviously there are 

• 	18 	other forms of ocean pollution, including agricultural run 

	

19 	off, dredge spoils dumping, sewage discharges, each is a 

	

20 	serious threat and needs to be examined. 

• 	21 	 The purpose of these hearings is to try and find out 

	

22 	who is contaminating the ocean, why they are doing it, and 

	

23 	:ghat policies we can adopt at the state level to stop it. • 

	

24 	 he people that use these oceans for recreation 

	

25 	deserve to be able to do so without fear of contamination or 

S 
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• 
1 	risk to their health. The fishing industry deserves the 

2 	right to ply their trade without having all of the fish in 
• 

3 	thy. Santa Monica Bay too toxic to eat, and certainly the 

4 	ocean themselves may well be so spoiled and contaminated the 

• 5 	their very survival is in question, so for all of these 

6 	reasons we've called these hearings. 

7 	 Today's hearing begins and focuses on the question of 

40 
8 	medical wastes. 

9 	 Leo, would you like to make an opening comment? 

10 	 COMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Mr. Chairman, I want to thank • 
11 	the leadership of the government of Santa Monica for letting 

12 	us use their chambers here today. We appreciate that very 

13 	much, and I want to concure with your introductory remarks 

14 	and say what we are going te be pursuing very actively here 

15 	is who is responsible for allowing medical and infectious 

40 	16 	wastes to visit the California shoreline, and what is it we 

17 	can do in providing leadership and coordination with other 

18 	governmental entities to stop that waste. • 
19 	 Thank you. 

20 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Mr. Hight, do you have anything you want 

• 21 	to offer? 

22 	 CHIEF COUNSEL HIGHT: No, Mr. Chairman. 

23 	 CHAIR DAVIS: All right, then we will call our first 

• 24 	witness, who is City Attorney James Hahn, of the City of Los 

25 	Angeles. 
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1 	 Thank you fa coming, Mr. Hahn, and for being our 

2 	first witness at today's hearing. 
41 

3 	 MR. HAHN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Lieutenant 

4 	Governor McCarthy, Mr. Hight. 

• 	/ appreciate the opportunity to address the Commission 

6 	on this most important issue, because the coastliae and the 

7 	ocean are among our most valuable and also our most 

vulnerable nat;.tral resource. Along the beach frot and 

9 	coastline of the City of Los Angeles millions of citizens use 

10 	the beaches and recreational facilities every year, and until 

11 	recently there hasn't been adcquate protection against the 

12 	medial wastes that is dumped into the oceans and washes up 

13 	on our shores. 

14 	 Before last month federal regulation had been 

15 	virtually non-existent. Even with recent legislation, only 

16 	ten states -- New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, and seven 

17 	states borde-ing the C•eat Lakes region -- monitor waste 

18 	disposal. 
• 

19 	 The laws have been silent as to the dumping of medical 

20 	wastes into the ocean until now. 1 am pleased that both 

• 21 	Senator Art Torres, and Assemblyman Tom Hayden, have talked 

22 	about introducing legislation, and I appreciate the fact that 

23 	the State Lands Commission is making this a matter of 

• 24 	statewide concern. 

25 	 The City Attorneyra office in Los Angeles has been at 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 
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1 	the forefront of criminal prosecution of toxic polluters for 

	

2 	many years. Our office is one of the few to ever achieve a 

	

3 	conviction for illegal disposal of infectious medical waste, 

	

4 	back in 1982, Even so, it as been a thorn in the side of 

	

5 	prosecutors that we must prove that medical wastes are 

	

6 	infectious. When it is considered that broken needles and 

	

7 	syringes, shards of broken glass, debris, blood, tissue • 	
8 	refuse, these kinds of Ll'ings, pose an incredible danger to 

	

9 	sanitatica workers and the general public, of communicating 

• 	10 	all kinds of diseases, it is no wonder that investigators are 

	

11 	a little bit leery about dealing with some of this material, 

	

12 	ort:us it is found. 

• 	13 	 In some instances that we have come across, the 

	

14 	sanitation department when they come across this material 

	

15 	contact the County Health Department. In many instances, the • 

	

16 	County Health Department has toad the sam,;ation officials to 

	

17 	flestroy the medical wastes that they found, indicating to 

• 	18 	them that it would 	impossible for the Health Department to 

	

19 	prove whether or not a particular waste was infectious. 

	

20 	 When the material is destroyed, the evidence is 

• 	21 	d‘stroyed, so that makes it impossible for prosecutors to 

	

22 	prosecute a case without evidence. We have no way of proving 

	

23 	something is infectious waste unless we know beforehand what • 	24 	virus or what bacteria has infected it. We think that all 

	

25 	medical waste is dangerous and should be subject to the law. 
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1 	 Proposed laws indicate that there will be no 

	

2 	exemptions for facilities that produce less than 100 

	

ft 	kilograms, or 220 pounds of waste per month. Unlike laws in 

	

4 	other states, there will be no exemptions for doctors' or 

	

5 	dentists' private practice, nor for office laboratories that 

	

6 	serve three or fewer practitioners. And, the reason that 

	

7 	think it is important that we make no exemptions is that the 

	

8 	amount of medical wastes produced even by these small 

	

9 	operations is staggering. A small hospital, with no more that 

	

10 	200 beds produces over 400 tons of potentially infectious 

	

11 	medical wastes each year, including hypodermic needles, used 

	

12 	gauze, vials of blood, and other material. 

	

13 	 When you consider the number of medical facilities, 

	

14 	and the number of beds in larger facilities in the County of 

	

15 	Los Angeles al:one, you besin to appreciate the dimensions of 

	

16 	' the dilemma. 

	

17• 	 We've heard about the pollution occurring on our east 

	

18 	coast beaches and on our south county beaches in recent 

	

19 	weeks, and by the time this dangerous cargo washes ashore it 

	

20 	is too late. We have to find out where medical wastes 

	

21 	originate, what should happen to it, and who monitors it. 

	

22 	 The problem with medical wastes in the oceans, of 

	

23 	course, is a serious one; but, we have to consider this issue 

	

24 	in terms of the whole scope of the problem. The greater Los 

	

25 	Angeles area is a huge metropolis and is growing every year. 
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1 	We are rapidly running out of land fill areas. We are 

• 2 	approaching the point where no land fills may be opened for 

	

3 	disposal either in the city limits of Los Angeles, or in 

	

4 	nearby surrounding areas. 

40 	5 	 Some proposals are on the board for -- by the federal 

6 	government -- to consider the use of ocean-going freighters 

7 	as offshore incinerators in our oceans. New York, which hes 

	

8 	virtually no land fills left, has 1-..egun using the ocean Ls a 

	

9 	primary disposal site. Many have proposed placing radio 

	

10 	active infectious, or other hazardous wastes, in sealed 

	

11 	containers to be dropped to the floor of the ocean. 

	

12 	 The issue before us today, the disposal of meaical 

• 13 	wastes in the ocean, is but a single frame of a larger 

	

14 	picture. What are we going to do with our waste materials? 

	

15 	Where r,re we going to pdt it? In an ever-shrinking world, 

	

16 	which places ever increasing demands upon the environment, we 

	

17 	must act quickly and responsibly to deal with these health 

• 18 	and environmental consequences. 

	

19 	 The State Lands Commission can take a leadership. role 
2 

	

20 	in making sure that the ocean is never considotred a disposal 

• 21 	site. Without sweeping legislation, we can't monitor the 

	

22 	potentially hazardous effect of medical waste disposers, and 

	

23 	without effective and efficient prosecution we are not going 

	

24 	to be able to apprehend and punish those who are 

	

25 	circumventing the law for the main reason that ttey want to 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 



7 

• 

• 

• 

• 

1 	save money. Now, they are putting the materials in the 

2 	dumpsters because it costs too much to dist.ose of it 

properly. 

4 	 I would pledge to the Commission the support of the 

5 	City Attorney's office. I would also urge the Commistl,on to 

6 	stay in contact with prosecutors throughoIxt the state through 

7 	the California District Attorneys Association, and 

8 	prosecutors, so we can develop legislation that will enable 

9 	us to effectively prosecute people as well. I think that wc,  

10 	have had some well intentioned legislation on the books that 

11 	provide for some very stiff fines now ,penalties for 

12 	disposing of infectious medical wastes are quite sufficient. 

13 	Our problem has been we have been unable to prove these cases 

14 	because we are unable to prove that the material is 

15 	infectious. I think that all medical waste is hazardous, and 

16 	small producers as well as big producers should be covered. 

17 	 Thank you. 

18 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Mr. Hahn, if I could just ask you a 

19 	couple of questions, particularly on your point of 

70 	eliminating the concept of infectious as a pre-condition to 

21 	prosecution. 

22 	 One of the CommO,ssion's guiding doctrines is the 

23 	public trust doctrine, and under that doctrine we view any 

24 	form of disposal into the ocean as a nuisance, and certainly 

25 	prosecutors could view these kinds of offenses, if you will, 
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1 	as nuisances and seek at least misdemeanor actions against 

40 	2 	them. 

3 
	

I agree with you that whether or not a needle, or some 

4 	other medical debris, is infectious should not be the 

40 	5 
	

determining factor as to whether a prosecution is forth 

coming. They are still polluting the ocean. They are still 

posing risks to health and safety. 

8 
	

With that, could you describe the natk'rs of the one 

9 
	

prosecution that you made in '82? 

• 	10 	 MR. HAHN: Well, that involved Cedar Sinai hospital. 

11 
	

That case resulted in a plea as pari. of a settlement of the 

12 
	

case. They pled nolo contendere to charges of violation of 

13 
	

disposal of medical wastes. It was before the law was 

14 
	

increased to make it a felony wobbler. 

15 
	

In that particular case, infectious waste was traced 

16 
	

to Cedar Sinai, and they paid a $1000 fine, and wore put on 

17 
	

18-month summary probation, and did not violate probation 

18 	during the terms of their probation. 

19 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Is it your belief that more prosecutions 

20 	would be forth coming if we eliminated the requirement to 

• 	21 	demonstrate that the waste was infectious? 
22 	 MR. HAHN: We believe it would be. 

23 	 Our experience has been that we have had to reject 

24 	cases for prosecution as we were anabie to get r,lounty Health 

25 	Department, or any other lab, to be able to prove that wastes 
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1 	material that was kept -- in the few instances where it was 

• 	2 	kept -- was infectious. So, in those cases, if the 

	

3 	requirement that the prosecution prove beyond a reasonable 

doubt that the material was infectious was removed, we would 

• 5 	have been able to die in those cases that were rejected. 

6 	 And, I think that we have had at least a dozen of 

	

7 	those cases in the past few years, where we have had to 

	

8 	reject prosecution because we were unable to prove 

	

9 	infectious. 

	

10 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Leo, do you have any questions? 

	

11 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: No, I don't have any. 

	

12 	 Thank you. 

• 13 	 MR. HAHN: Thank You. 

	

14 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you very much for coming here 

	

15 	today, Mr. Hahn, 

	

16 	 Our next witness is Robert Sulnick, who is the 

	

17 	Executive Director of American Oceans Campaign. 

• 18 	 I want to thank Mr. Sulnick for attending today's 

hearing. 

	

20 	 MR. SULNICK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for, having no. 

• 21 	 Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission, my name is 

22 	Robert Sulnick. I am the Executive Director of the American 

23 	Oceans Campaign. 

• 24 	 I would like to begin by saying that it has become 

25 	clear to us that medical wastes reach the ocean through 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 
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1 	snwage outfall, non-point source, storm drain runoff, and 

2 	illegal dumping, and we see the problem as one of a greater 

problem of waste management and disposal. 

4 	 The existing federal and state regulations that we 

5 	know have existed in the United States do not adequately 

6 	address the risks and problems associated with the exposure 

7 	to medical wastes, which include infectious as well as other 

8 	wastes produced by nospitals, clinics, doctors, and dentists 

9 	offices, and of course a variety of other sources, nor do 

10 	existing regulations establish clearly defined federal and 

11 	state roles for regulating medical wastes. 

12 	 The American Oceans Campaign believes that a framework 

13 	is needed now to establish minimum requirements at both the 

14 	state and national levels for dealing with this problem of 

15 	increasing medical wastes in the waste stream and in our 

16 	ocean. 

17 	 There are many risks and problems associated with 

18 	exposure to medical wastes. The obvious and immediate • 
19 	concern is public exposure to wastes washed up on beaches, 

20 	dumped on streets, or otherwise illegally disposed of. 

21 	 Wastes washing up on the beaches expose the public to 

22 	risk from puncture, possible contraction of infectious 

23 	disease from contaminated wastes, and additional symptoms 

24 	such as rashes from effected bodies of water and disease 

25 	carried by animals attracted to the wastes. 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 
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1 	 The types of wastes present include laboratory rats 

	

2 	and human stomach lining, in addition to syringes, blood 

vials, and plastic debris, all of which have been found 

washed up on shores throughout the United States. 

5 	 The medical waste problem in the ocean, although quite 

6 	serious, is not the only aspect of medical wastes, or is it 

	

7 	tine only aspect of medical wastes that we believe you should 

	

8 	consider. Incineration is also a problem. Indeed, the most 

	

9 	critical problem raised by medical wastes, in our view, is 

	

10 	incineration and the lack of regulations or parameters for 

	

11 	the r r standards and emissions, operating temperatures, 

	

12 	operator and training and monitor specifications, and 

	

13 	disposal requirements that are now not in place. 

	

14 	 The absence of regulations is significant in light of 

	

15 	the fact that hospitals are estimated to incinerate 70 

	

16 	percent of their infectious wastes. The need for such 

	

17 	requirements is becoming important as the risk posed by 

	

18 	incinerator emissions and ash are increasingly being 

	

19 	recognized. 

	

20 	 Pollution controls are needed to reduce the levels of 

	

21 	dioxanes and furans, acid gases, and heavy metals, and 

	

22 	particulate matter emitted by medical waste incinerators. 

	

23 	 The need to do more to control these emissions is 

	

24 	illustrated by the fact tit the incineration of medical 

	

25 	wastes 	been shown to produce dioxin -- which is very, 
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1 	very harmful -- and furan levels that are one or two orders 

2 	of magnitudes higher than those produced by municipal solid 

3 	waste incineration. In part, the emission problem results 

4 	from the high composition of plastics which account for 30 

5 	percent of the medical waste stream. 

6 	 Incinerator temperatures during operation, not only 

7 	effect emission levels, but are critical to the destruction 

8 	of the infectious material, itself. Where operating 

	

9 	temperatures t're below 1600 degrees F. viable infectious 

	

10 	organisms may be released into the surrounding environment. 

	

11 	 For these reasons, the AOC believes that all medical 

	

12 	waste incinerators, whether existing or under consideration, 

	

13 	should be equipped with pollution control devices. If older 

	

14 	onsite facilities are unable to comply, they should be 

	

15 	retrofitted. In addition, requirements should be developed 

	

16 	to insure the existence and adequacy of operator training 

	

17 	programs, and the use of monitoring systems to maintain 

	

18 	optimum operating conditions and emission controls. 

	

19 	 Autoclaving is also a process that we believe needs to 

	

20 	be monitored and regulated. Autoclaving, or steam 

	

21 	sterilization, is applied to approximately 15 percent of the 

	

22 	medical waste stream, yet the process remains unproven, in 

	

23 	our view, as an effective means of treating medical waste. 

	

24 	Available information suggests that operating conditions an,.1 

	

25 	practices vary widely among facilities and among states. 
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1 	 We believe that the state should 	directed to 

• 2 	develop testing procedures to demonstrate the effectiveness 

3 	s of autoclaving, and to determine proper operating conditions. 

4 	We also are aware that land fill and land fill disposal of 

5 	medical wastes is another aspect of this problem. The 

6 	inadequately protective conditions to Sub-Title D, under 

7 	municipal solid waste, land fills across the nation rule 

8 	these facilities out, in our view, for the disposal of 

9 	medical wastes in the forseeabie future. The vast majority 

10 	of such land fills are unlined, lack leach collection 

11 	systems, and do not monitor for ground water contamination. 

12 	 AOC therefore recommends that land fills and medical 

1• 13 	wastes not be put together, and that they be excluded from 

14 	such land fills. 

15 	 Sewage disposal is of course a primary source of 

16 	medical wastes finding its way into the ocean. 

17 	Astonishingly, the practice of pouring medical wastes down 

18 	sewer drains remains one of tha wrecommendedw methods of 

19 	disposal throughout the United States. In theory, facilities 

20 	discharge their wastes in the expectation that their wastes 

• 21 	will be dealt with at a municipal and county sewage treatment 

22 	plant. In reality, however, medical facilities following this 

23 	recommendation are releasing their wastes without assurance 
4 

24 	that treatment will in fact take place, and are contributing 	1 

25 	to the natio;'s water pollution problems in several respects: 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 
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1 	first, many municipal sewer systems continue to discharge 

2 	millions of gallons of raw sewage, either as part of their 

3 	operating procedures, or accidentally. The discharge of raw 

4 	sewage is a particular problem for those communities with 

5 	anteguated systems that overload with storm drain runoff. 

High bateria counts.4,rom sewage wastes are also rosi...msible 

7 
	

for recent beach closings of both here la California and 

8 
	

elsewhere throughout the country. 

9 
	

Second, the state's sewage treatment plants have not 

10 
	

demonstrated, in our view, sufficient implementation of 

11 
	

secondary and tertiary treatment systems. 

12 
	

Finally, medical wastes cuntribute to the 

13 
	

contamination of sewage sludge, which in itself is just a 

14 	tremendous problem for ocean po4t,A- ' rx  if indeed sewage 

15 	sludge is continued to be dumped into o.Jean. 

16 	 Sewage treatment technologies are not suited for the 

17 	treatment of the chemical, radio active, and metalic agents 

18 	contained in some medical wastes. The problem is 

19 	particularly critical because of the diC'Aculty of disposing 

20 	of contaminated sludge. In AOC's view, the state's sewage 

21 	treatment systems cannot and should not handle medical 

22 	wastes. 

23 	 The classification of medical wastes, which was just 

24 	touched ',Ton and spoken to by the City Attorney of Los 

25 	Angeles, is another issue which we believe needs to be dealt 
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1 	with. The classification, medical waste, should include 

	

2 	those wastes which pose a hazard to health or the 

	

3 	environment;  which are generated from any medical facility, 

	

4 	or facility that performs a related function. The need to 

• 5 	expand the regulatory structure to cover all medical wastes 

	

6 	is necessitated by the fact that men- zal wastes, other than 

	

7 	those defined in the specific category called "infectious 

	

8 	waste" may present similar;  and/or their own set of risks and 

	

9 	threats to public health and the environment. 

• 10 	 For example, in Wit's guide, wastes, such as those 

	

11 	from surgery and autopsies, contaminated lab ',-..tort' wastes, 

12 	dialysis unit wastes, and "discarded equipment and parts that 

• 13 	may be contaminated with infectious agents" are listed only 

14 	as optional for designation as infectious waste, and 

15 	therefore for special handling and treatment. The definition 

	

• 
16 	of medical waste should also account for those agents which 

	

17 	exhibit acutely toxic or radio active characteristics. 

18 	 It is also our view that acquired immune deficiency 

19 	syndrome be dealt with specifically and exclusively in any 

20 	recommendations that your Commission comes up with. It is 

• 21 	our view that the public fear of AIDS is in large part behind 

22 	the public uneasiness over medical wastes being washed up on 

23 	our shores, although 1 do not mean to minimize medical wastes 

• 24 	that are not contaminated with the AIDS virus, but it does 

25 	seem to us that that needs a special designation and sp;tcial 
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1 	categorization and treatment if it is to respond to the 

	

2 	publii- fear that is now generated about medical wastes. 

	

3 	 Specific recommendations on the bert available methods 

	

4 	and technologie6 for the management of meCcal wastes should 

obviously be developed. Factors such as loCation, size and 

	

6 
	

budget. should be taken into consideration. Failure to do 

	

7 
	

this leaves too much latitude to those making the decision on 

	

8 
	

the individual facility, without some limits on the exercise 

	

9 
	

of discretion in the form of best available technology, or 

	

10 
	

design, and operating specifications. WIthout such limits, 

	

11 	the least cost alternative is likely to be selected, and in 

	

12 	some ow l  regardless of the potential health and 

	

13 	environmental impacts. 

	

14 	 Finally, medical wastes should be listed as hazardous 

	

15 	substances, irrespective. Sy-listing medical wastes as 

	

16 	hazardous wastes, medical caste would qualify as wastes which 

	

17 	can be monitored from cradle to grave, or from ineeptinn to 

	

18 	waste stream disposal. 

	

19. 	 AOC believes that the meet expeditinee way to ell 

	

20 	the management of medical wastes would be to 0406 them in an 

	

21 	already existing regulatory cystemo  which weoleia define them 

	

22 	as hazardous, and therefore demand that they be SOWitor3d 

	

23 	stringently and cowistently from inception until diep0001. 

	

24 	 AO:: further recommends that two concurrent tracking 

	

25 	systems be eGtablished for medical wastes. A new system 
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1 	should be created to identify manufacturers, distributors, 

2 	commercial purchasers of medical supplias and medical 

3 	facilities, and to place identifying marks on medical 

4 	products. 

5 	 The syste, would resemble that which already exists 

6 	for food and other over-the-counter items such as aspirin. A 

7 	coded identi:ication should be imprinted on medical products 

8 	tnd be sufficiently resistent to exposure to sea water and 

other elements to prevent obscuring the product's identity. 

10 	 The second tracking system should be a manifest system 

11 	established to track hazardous waste from the 'pint of 

12 	generation to the point of disposal. The manifest system 

13 	should apply to all medical wastes, irrespective, and should 

14 	include waste treated at onsite incinerators. Additionally, 

15 	those facilities with onsite incinators should be required to 

16 	account for the disposal of their ash, which is also 

17 	potentially toxic in nature. Only then can we insure that 

18 	ash disposal requirements are followed, and mr;dical wastes 

19 	are not disposed with incinerator ash and other combustion 

20 	residues. 

21 	 AOC therefore recommends that ash be discerned Of 

22 	separately from other wastes, in order to reduce the leaching 

23 	of toxic metals present in incinerator ash. 

24 
	

The illegal dumping of medico& wastes, which in Mv 

25 	view does result in wastes washing up on our beaches!, is 
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1 	something that needs to be dealt with, and again, this was 

	

2 	commented on by City Attorney Hahn. In our view, illegal 

	

3 	dumping should be a felony, and in addition there should be 

	

4 	very heavy civil fines that go along with any illegal 

	

5 	dumping, irrespective of whether the waste is categorized as 

	

6 	infectious or not. 

	

7 	 Confusion: this summer of course, the environment 

	

8 	appears to have reached acid exceeded its carrying capacity 

	

9 	threshold for absorbing vtalution that late -20th century life 

	

10 	is inflicting upon the planet. Each day the media seems to 

	

11 	report on polluted waterways and beaches, fish kills, red 

	

12 	tides, brown tides, ozone depletion, global Warming, drought, 

	

13 	record surface ozone levels, forests dying, and a variety of 

	

14 	other signals from the planet that it can no longer absorb 

	

15 	the pollution which we humans routinely inflict upon it. 

	

16 	 The release of pollutants into the environment must 

	

17 	therefore obviously be curbed if we are to procued sensibly 

• 	18 	and rationally, compassionately, into the 21st century, and, 

	

19 	changes made in the way that waste is being handled from the 

	

20 	past has to be a part of any such procedure. Medical wastes 

	

21 	is only one aspect of this much larger global problem, but it 

22 	is a particularly sensitive and potentially dangerous one. 

23 	 The State government therefore, in our view, has an 

24 	important roll to play in moving us towards a :solution which 

	

25 	will protect both public health and the integrity of our 
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1 	planet and of our oceans, and thank you for having us. 

	

2 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Mr. Sulnick, what, in your experience -- 

	

3 	who in your experience is the primary culprit? The pe.marY 

	

4 	depositor, if you will, of medical wastes into the ocean? 

• 	5 	 MR. SULNICK: This is a real hard question for me 1.4 

	

6 	answer, because I don't honestly know. 

	

7 	 It seams to se that the sources are much more visible • 

	

8 	to me than who is generating the sources; obviously, the 

	

9 	hospital communities, and the medical health care providers 

	

10 	are generating the waste, but the question in my mind becomes 

	

11 	how it is being disposed of, and how it is being lonitored, 

	

12 	and why it is going untreated into the environment, and that, 

	

13 	in part, is something that I don't have an answer to. 

	

14 	 From the research that we have done, it is clear to as 

	

15 	that a lot of it does indeed get dumped into the sewage • 

	

16 	systems, and when they malfunction, it just comes into the 

	

17 	water. 

	

18 	 I also believe that there is probably a lot of illegal 

	

19 	dumping going on, which finds its way into the storm drains, 

	

20 	and :Into the ocean, because in our culture we view the ocean 

	

21 	as the ultimately dumping ground. It is that 13th century 

22 	mentality of dig a hole and dump, is now rbeing translated 

23 = into; we will dump it into the ocean, the ocean can absorb 

24 	it. 

25 	 But the fact of the matter is however, the ocean, 

• 
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1 	especially the coastal waters, can no longer absorb the 

2 	taxies, and that the ocean is no longer in our coastal system 

3 	scope of life that it once was, and it nay never be, again. 

4 	 And, so I am not sure thzt I have an answer for you, 

5 	but it seems to me that what is needed is some sort of 

6 	investigatory body set up to pinpoint exactly where the 

7 	medical wastes enter the system and the environment, and why 

8 	it is net being treated, and/or detoxified before it reaches 

9 	our shore, and I don't mean to be non-responsive, but that is 

10 	the best I can do at the moment. 
1111 

11 	 CHAIR DAVIS: What legal sources are available to say, 

12 	small practitioners, medical practitioners with small medical 

13 	facilities? What legal sources are available to them to 

14 	dispose of their wastes? 

15 	 MR. SULN/CK: Well, I think that is a real problem. 

16 	 I think what happens now, routinely:, is the wets goes 

17 	to land fills. I think one thing we could do, although r an 

18 	not sure this is really anywhere near an ultimate solution, 

39 	we could make sure that small practitioners take their 

20 	medical wastes and that they go tc- toxic waste dumps, as 

21 	opposed to just land fills. That would help a lot, although 

22 	our capacity to deal with toxic land fills is rapidly coming 

23 	to an end. I mean, the k''assalia Dump Site up in r^rthern 

24 	Santa Barbara county-- which I am intiAately familiar with -- 

25 	is vastly coming to the paint where it can no longer tolerate 
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any other intrusion of new waste, and until we come up with 

2 	an u.s.timate solution for how we deal with toxic waste, the 

3 	idea of using toxic waste dumps is at best a stop gap, but it 

4 	would be better than allowing the small proctitioners' 

5 	medical wastes to go into a land fill, because then at best 

6 	it will just leap into the groundwater system, and while the 

7 	debris itself may not wind up on the ocean beaches, on thd 

8 	Santa Monica Beach, our ground water will neverthe/ass become 

9 	contamini. 

10 	 So, it seems for me that for the small practitioner -- 

11 	if the small practitioner wc'ild just resolve not to use the 

12 	sewage system by just flushing, and not to use the storm 

13 	drain system, and to take the waste and categorize it as 

14 	toxic and r.Ace sure it goes to a toxic waste dump, that would 

15 	help a lot -- my assumpti-on being that the toxic waste dump 

16 	is appropriately constructed so as to keep the leaching out 

17 	of the groundwater. 

18 	 MAIR DAVIS: Of the recommendations you made to us, 

19 	and many or t:',am were very good about the identifying marks 

20 	for products, treating all illegal dumping ms a felony 

21 	regardless of the category of materials that is being dumped, 

22 	and the others you made today, what would you suggest to this 

23 	Commission as the higbsst priority? Which of those many 

24 	recommendations is the one you think we should act on most 

25 	urgently? 
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1 	 MR. SULNICK: My view would be this, two things: I 

2 	think the first thing you should do is to insure that medical 

3 	wawa is characterized as hazardous, and that it be subject 

to strict monitoring from inception to disposal. 

5 	 I think that the other would be to insure a 

6 	recommendation that the dumping of medical wastes carry with 

7 	it very heavy civil fines, and be classified as a felony, and 

8 	I think that wculd communicate to-the public at large, and to 

9 	the industry that uses medical waste, that a new era has 

10 	become public policy, and that we can no longer treat medical 

11 	waste as garbage, but we must treat it as hazardous waste. 

12 	It seems to me that in terms of a communication device that 

13 	smnia  be the most effective and the 1”.siest to begin to 

14 	implement. 

15 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Leo? 

16 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: No questions. 

17 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you very much. 

18 	 MR. SULNICK: Thank you very much. 

19 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Next we have representation from San 

20 	Diego County that can speak to the numerous instances of the 

21 	dumping of medical wastes in San Diego. 

22 	 First is a representative cif Supervisor Susan 

23 	Golding's office, -- pardon me Myrna if I mispronounce this 

24 	name, Myrna Zambrano 	is that correct -- who it a policy 

25 	specialist for Supervisor Golding. 
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1 	 MS. ZIMBRANO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Lieutenant 

Governor McCarthy. 

Supervisor Golding would have been herr. herself, 

	

4 	however, today is the last session of the Board of 

	

5 	Supervisors for the year, and of course, duty calls in San 

	

6 	Diego. 

	

7 	 San Diego has had a number of medical waste findings 

	

8 	throughout its county, syringes, saline bags, blood filled 

	

9 	vials, and vials filled with unidentified liquid have been 

	

10 	found along our beaches by life guards and other citizens, 

	

11 	and some of that is right on the table before you, as well as 

	

12 	a map showing how closely all of these findings have been 

	

13 	throughout our beaches. 

	

14 	 Untreated, and inappropriate Aedical waste has also 

	

15 	been discovered at local land fills, next to dumpsters in 

	

16 	residential areas, and behind physicians' offices. 

	

17 	Supervisor Golding, along with most San Diegans, vas *hocked 

	

18 	by these recent reports and was moved to do somelo.ling about 

	

19 	this critical situation. 

	

20 	 The number of reported medical waste findings in San 

	

21 	Diego County has increased dramatically in recent months. In 

	

22 	1987 the Hazardous Materials Management Division of the 

	

23 	county responded to seven complaints. Between January 7, 1988 

	

24 	and October 28, 1988 they have responded to 24 complaints. 

	

25 	Since October 28 they have responded to over 40. The source 
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1 	or sources of this waste have yet to be identified. 

When a source has been able to be identified, attempts 

3 	to prosecute those who have inappropriately disposed of the 

4 	medical wastes have not been successful. In 1986, San Diego 

• 	County attempted to prosecute a local laboratory for 

disposing of urine-filled containers in their .  aumpster. 

7 	Disposal of urine through the sewer system is considered an 

8 	appropriate disposal method but the collection of 

9 	urine-filled containers in a dumpster was not only 

• 	10 	displeasing to those who had to pick up the trash, but the 

11 	spilling of the containers may have provided a good breeding 

12 	ground for bacteria. 

13 	 Because of the ambiguity of the definition of 

14 	infectious waste, found in the California Health and Safety 

15 	Code, the District Attorney was not convinced that this waste 

16 	was unequivocally infectious, and therefore did not proceed 

17 	with the case. The District Attorney is currently 

411 
	18 	considering a case of untreated infectious waste disposed at 

19 	the county sanitary land fill. 

20 	 San Diego County is responsible for issuing permits 

• 	21 	for state licensed facilities, and facilities that generate 

22 	more than 220 pound3 of infectious waste per month, according 

23 	to California Code of Regulatims. The county charges a fee 

24 	far this permit, and the fee is based on the type and 

25 	quan'ity of infectious waste generated. In addition, if 
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1 	fines are collected as the result of a court settlement, the 

	

2 	county receives a portion of this; however, there is no 

	

3 	funding for the ,z.ouety to respond to complaints at 

	

4 	nonpermitted businesses, such as small medical offices, or to 

respond to complaints whore there is no known responsible 

party. The medical waste washing up on our beaches is a good 

	

7 	example of that. 

	

8 	 On November 9, Supervisor Golding introduced and 

	

9 	received unanimous support from the San Diego County Board of 

	

10 	Supervisors for an emergency ordinance to better regulate 

	

11 	medical waste. She asked that all generators of medical 

	

12 	waste be required to dispose of it in a professional manner, 

	

13 	thereby eliminating the less than 220 pound exemption for 

	

14 	professional disposal of infectious waste. Infectious waste 

	

15 	should be managed responsibly regardless of quantity. 

	

16 	 Before the ordinance was enacted, current regulations 

	

17 	required hospitals and large medical clinics to place their 

	

18 	infectious wastes in red double walled plastic bags and 

	

19 	autoclave the waste with steam heat, or as with body parts, 

	

20 	incinerate to ash. Smaller facilities needed only to place 

	

21 	untreated wastes in leak-proof bags with regular trash. 

	

22 	Forty'doctors may each dispose of ten pounds of wastes per 

	

23 	month, equaling more than the amount reouired to be disposed 

	

24 	of professionally, before the enactment of our ordinance, the 

	

25 	present law would not effect them. The incongruity, of 
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1 	course is that infectious waste is no less infectious 

	

2 	because it exists in smaller quantities. One pound of 

	

3 	infectious and anatomical waste, is just as potentially 

	

4 	dangerous as 100 pounds. 

5 	 Redefined was the definition of infectious waste in 

6 	the county regulations, to clarify the definition and 

7 	distinguish between which wastes are truly infectious from 

	

8 	those that are not harmful. Infectious waste should be 

	

9 	defined so that the regulators may prosecute violators, that 

	

10 	is, eliminate the requirement that enforcement agencies prove 

	

11 	etiologic agents -- that is disease causing agents 	exist 

	

12 	in the given sample. 

	

13 	 In addition to her proposal that now strengthens Oer 

	

14 	local regulations, Supervisor Golding believes that the 

	

15 	entire issue of medical wastes should be examined to 

	

16 	determine what other actions must be taken to protect the 

	

11 	public health and our environment. 

	

18 	 She proposed the formation oil a local ad hoc medical 

	

19 	waste review committee, which includes members of the 

	

20 	Hospital Council, the San Diego County Medical Society, the 

	

21 	Environmental Health Coalition, representation from cities 

	

22 	that have experienced medical waste, The U.S. Navy, the State 

	

23 	Department, anO others. The committee's task is to improve 

	

24 	the emergency ordinance that was passed, looking at the 

	

25 	definition of medical waste to differentiate even further 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 
• 



- 27 

1 	between medical waste that is infectious troll that which is 

2 	simply aesthetically displeasing, from waste that need's to be 

3 	confined and contained. 

The committee plans on considering the options of 

5 	allowing hospitals to receive and treat offsite infectious 

6 	waste from small quantity generators, that is, doctors 

offices, and to require all generators of medical waste, 

including noninfectious medical waste, to contain this waste 

	

9 	in locked dumpsters, and to provide written documentation of 

	

10 	disposal practices. 

	

11 	 From Supervisor Golding's investigation into existing 

	

12 	guidelines on medical waste, it is apparent that a change in 

	

13 	state law would enhance our local -infectious waste management 

	

14 	programs and provide consistency throughout the state. (I) 

	

15 	 Although San Diego County passed an ordinance, its 

AO 	16 	jurisdiction is only within the unincorporated  areas of the 

	

17 	county, and to truly make the ordinance effective all 18 

	

18 	cities within our county must pass a similar ordinance. 

	

19 	Should state law adopt stricken regulations, the need for 1.8 

	

20 	different ordinances within our county will not be necessary. 

	

21 	 The federal government is expected to have regulations 

	

22 	regarding medical wastes by February of 1989, and the state 

	

23 	revisions should be coordinated with federal law as well. 

AO 

	

24 	 Two other key areas that need study are the 

	

25 	establishment of a mechanism to trace medical waste to its 
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1 	source, and a ,'racking system for waste from generator to 

disposal. These will be beneficial to the future of our 

3 	neighborhoods and beaches, no doubt. 

With doctors using more disposable supplies than ever 

5 	before, the volume of medical wastes is increasing. We need 

6 	good advice from the health community, as well as the medical 

7 	waste and solid waste disposal industries to gauge the 

adequacy of all aspects of disposal. 

Infectious waste on our beaches is intolerable. None 

10 	of us want the coast of San Diego to look like the coast of 

11 	New Jersey. Closing loopholes in the law is a beginning to 

12 	avert major health problems caused by infectious wastes, but 

13 	there is more to do. In San Diego, we will continue to 

14 	carefully review current waste disrmsal procedures to insure 

15 	that all infectious substance& are properly stored and 

16 	treated and that fines and detarents are substantial enough 

17 	to ',mince everyone to obey the law. 

18 	 Thank you. 

19 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Let me ask you a couple of questions. 

20 	 MS. ZIMBRANO: All right. 

21 	 CHAIR DAVIS: There has been nrobably more reported 

22 	cases of wastes washing ashore in Sari Diego than anywhere 

23 	else, at least in Scuthern California. 

24 	 Do you have any idea as to -- I will ask the sane 

25 	question -- do you have ashy idea who the culprit is? What 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 

• 



to 

1 	the origin of this waste is? How it is coming to wash 

ashore? 

3 	 MS. ZIMBRANO: Not at this point. 

	

4 	 We have a hazardous waste task force that is made up 

5 

	

	of the District Attorney, the City Attorney, other agencies, 

and they are doing the investigating on all sightings of the 

	

7 	medical wastes since, I believe, November 17, so they are 

	

8 	collecting and doing the investigation And hopefully trying 

	

9 	to find a source. 

	

10 	 We do know that some of the needles that were found on 

	

11 	the beach -- well, we don't know that unequivocally -- but 

	

12 	that people who are rummaging through dumpsters, or picking 

	

13 	up these needles -- drug addicts -- and then discarding them 

14 	along the beaches, which is one of the reasons why we are 

15 	asking that doctors offices use locked duepsters, so that 

16 	people cannot access the trash as easily. 

17 	 CHAIR DAVIS: But, nothing has come to date 

18 
	

MS. ZIMBRANO: Not of a particular source. 

19 	 4 R DAVIS: -- nothing has come to light that would 

20 	indicate the source. 

21 	 MS. ZIMBRANO: Not at this time, no. 

22 	 nHAIR DAVIS: Okay. 

23 	 Leo. 

24 	 COMMIJSIONER MC CARTHk: Nothing. 

25 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you for coming up. 
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3 
	

Gary Stephany, who is the Deputy Director of the 

	

4 
	

Environmental Health Services Bureau of the Department of 

	

5 
	

Health in San Diego. 

	

6 
	

MR. STEPHANY: Chairman Davis, and Lieutenant Guvernor 

	

7 
	

McCarthy, I have just passed out some pictures of a land fill 

	

8 
	where we had a recent illegal dump of infectious waste from a 

	

9 
	

hospital, which is in fact under permit. 

	

10 
	

The other item that I passed out is a copy of our 

	

11 	recent ordinance that Supervisor Golding's aide, Myrna, 

	

12 	described to you, that we just passed in San Diego County.. 

	

13 	 The reason that I am passing out the pictures on the' 

14 	land fill is because what we are really dealing with, it i3 

	

15 	not just a problem with the beaches -- as the gentleman from 

	

16 	the Ocean's group talked about -- it is a problem of all 

17 	infectious waste, medical or toxic waste. In whatever laws 

MS. ZIMBRANO: Thank you. 

CHAIR DAVIS: Our next witness is also from San Diego, 

13 	we talk about, we need to address the whole problem and not 

19 	just at the beaches. 

20 	 However, in getting to the beaches, itself, when you 

21 	start looking through some cl.! the laws, they are very vague 

22 	as to who really has enforcement jurisdiction over when 

23 	something is dumped into the ocean. You talk about the 

24 	nuisance laws, you talk about the three-mile limit, you talk 

25 	about the Clean Water Act, most of these types of things are 
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then related back to the federal government, which we get 

very little response from, as far as enforcement action 

goes-- at least at the local level. 

So, when we are looking at some of these laws, some of 

changing the definition, and changing the exemption, is we 

need to look at the monitoring of our land fills, themselves. 

8 
	

Every land fill in the State of California has a permit, but 

9 
	

in some states now they are requiring ten percent of the 

10 
	

loads to be dumped on a bed and then scattered around to make 

11 
	

sure that there is no illegal dumping going, whether it is 

12 
	

toxic waste, or infectious waste. 

13 
	

Those pictures that I showed you were just caught by 

14 
	

accident. We had 14 big bags that were right in the middle 

15 
	

of a large truck, and the only reason we found them is that 

16 
	

we happen to be doing a recycling program on that particular 

17 
	

day, at that particular land fill, and they were monitoring 

18 
	

chat was going in and out of the land fill. So, if this was 

19 
	

just a fluke thing that we caught, we wonder how muchof this 

20 	is really going on, whether it is going on in the land r 

21 
	

whether it is going on in the ocean. So, we think that not 

22 
	

only do we need to strengthen the laws in the ocean, but 

23 
	

strengthen the laws in the monitoring. 

24 
	

As far as the exemption goes, and as far as infectious 

25 
	

waste goes, I am sure you will hear later on from the medical 

1 

• 

4 

5 	the other areas that I think we need to look at, besides just 

6 
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community. They will ask, "Where are the ,dead bodies? Where 

2 	are the numbers getting sick?" 

3 	 It is just like when we are dealing with raw sewage, 

4 	every book -- any medical book you can pick up will tell you 

	

5 	that people can get sick from raw sewage, but we don't have a 

lot of evidence that people have gotten sick from raw sewage, 

	

7 	particularly in San Diego where we have the Tijuana problem, 

	

8 	for instance, but we know it is happening. 

	

9 	 So, here, although we don't have any statistics, the 

	

10 	potential is there, and therefore we feel that the laws do 

	

11 	need to be strengthened. 

12 	 Any questions? 

13 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Leo. 1 
14 	 COMMI4SIONER MC CARTHY: Yes, Mr. Stephan"., have you 

) 	, 
15 	been working with other counties to see which counties are 

16 	stepping out and attempting to define the problems that mom 

to be emanating from disposal of medical infectious waste? 

18 	 Are there other counties who have enacted similar 
IP 

19 	ordinances? Is there anybody colating? 

20 	 MR. STEPHANY: I don't know of any -- Lieutenant 

21 	Governor Mc Carthy, I don't know of any county or city that 

22 	has actually taken -- has taken the lead as San Diego-did, as 

23 	far as passing an ordinance. 

24 	 I have talked to other counties, personally, and their 
7 

25 	County Counsel was very reluctant to do this because of the 
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1 	fact that there is a debate whether we have the right to do 

	

2 	this under.-- because of preemption laws at the state level, 

	

3 	or because of preemption laws at the federal level. 

	

4 	 Our County Counsel said it would be a debatable issue; 

5 	however, they felt that rather than a lot of doctors offices, 

6 	et cetera, going to court on something like this, they would 

	

7 	probably go ahead and comply anyway, but it would be a 

8 	debatable issue, once we got to court, therefore some cities 

	

9 	and counties are reluctant to do this, and that is why we are 

	

10 	pressing so hard to get state legislation through. 

	

11 	 I attended a conference two weeks ago in Washington 

	

12 	D.C. for two days on infectious waEte, and this is not a 

	

13 	problem only in California, it is a problem across the United 

	

14 	States. The federal government, as you are probably aware 

	

15 	of, is coming out with some new regulations in February, but 

	

16 	they are only going to go down to 50 pounds. We feel there 

	

17 	should be a zero, just like we have in hazardous waste. 

	

13 	 We do have a Directors Conference Committee on 

	

19 	hazardous waste -- which you will be hearing about from Bob 

	

20 	Merryman later on, who does serve on the state task force 

	

21 	right now, through the Health Department -- that is looking 

	

22 	at this very issue. 

	

23 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTUY: How long has that task farce 

	

24 	been functioning? 

	

25 	 MR. STEPHANIE: I think it has only been a couple of 
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2 

	

3 	 [Remark from audience.] 

4 

5 	 'ewo weeks. 

6 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Two weeks? 

7 	 You have listed in the county ordinance that you 

	

8 	enacted some of the most likely sources of higher volute of 

	

9 	medical and infectious wastes. Do you have a system set up 

	

10 	now to tr? to help you identify how those sources get rid Of 

	

11 	the medical and infectious wastes that are generated by the 

	

12 	nature of their business, medical labs, industrial labs, and 

	

13 	so on? 

	

14 	 MR. STEPHANY: Well, at the present time what is 

	

15 	happening is that the ad hoc committee -- that Myrna referred 

	

16 	to -- we are weeting and hope to have by mid-January 

	

17 	everything outlined by definition) what is infectious? What 

	

18 	is a safety hazard? And, 111,:At is -- just a blight :+n the 

	

lY 	zommunity? 

	

20 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: When you started, did you 

	

21 	just take the most obvious sources, where there would be 

	

22 	volumes of medical and infectious wastes, and include them in 

	

23 	the ordinance? Or, did you have some antecdotal information 

	

24 	to indicate to you that they were likely sources of the 

	

25 	different debris that had been wasliing up on shore, or that 
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you found at different sites in San Diego, and we see this 

2 	board here that indicates there ere many places all over San 

3 	Diego County, inland as well as a long the coast, that you 

4 	found medical infectious waste? 

5 	 MR. STEPHANY: Well, it is my understanding -- 

6 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Were you able toJ tie what 2ou 

7 	found to rarticular sources once in a while? • 
8 	 MR. STEPHANY: -- okay, as Myrna statel earlier, we 

9 	actually started keeping records back in 1987. We felt there 

10 	was a problem some time ago, however, notargav was listening. 
411. 

11 	 Up until just in 	last month, most of our finds 

12 	were on the inland areas, around dumpsters, around clinics, 

13 	around doctors offices, so it was very obvious to us what was 

14 	happening. 

15 	 However, when we would try to take these cases to 

16 	court, since there was an exemption, even if we could say 

17 	that it came from that doctor's offica, we were not getting 

18 	anywhere. And, then in -- even though, the gentleman from 

19 	the Oceans group, again -- I am not sure he is aware of it -- 

20 	act4ally infectious waste is defined as a hazardous waste in 

• 21 	the State of California. It is the only stem.* in the United 

22 	States that has it that way. 

23 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Have you sent -- let me mist 

24 	get to the point of it. 

25 	 Have you sent questionnaires to doctors offices, 

• 
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1 	medical labs, and industrial labs, other likely sources of 

2 	generation of the kind of waste we are dealing with here? 

	

3 	Have you sent any questionnaires to them to ask them cone 

	

4 	obvious questions, like, how do they dispose -- how much 

5 	waste do they generate of this type? How do they dispose 

6 	it? Do they categorize any kind of waste? 

	

7 	 Have you attempted to do that in San -Diego County? 

• 8 	 MR. STEPHANY: No, we have not, and only for this 

	

9 	reason: because of what was happening on our beaches our 

	

10 	Board wanted some quick action, and we had a lot of 

	

11 	information on our own -- 

	

12 	 CPMMISSIONER MC CAFTHY: I appreciate and applaud whet 

	

13 	you are doing -- 

	

14 	 MR. STEPHANY: -- but, then -- and so 

	

15 	 -COMMISSIONER MC CLRTHY: -- but what is in the 

	

16 	process -- 

	

17 	 MR. STEPHANY: -- okay, what is in the process? I 

	

18 	figure we will do just exactly what we did when we got into 
• 

	

19 	the hazardous waste business. 

	

20 	 What we did was to send out the questionnaires you are 

40 	21 	talking about. We started out with saying: Do you do this? 

	

22 	Do this? And, do this? 

	

23 	 First we asked, did you hand'.e hazardous wastes? And, 

• 24 	55 percent of them said, "No". And, then as we got down and 

	

25 	had them answer other questions, and then we asked that 
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1 	question again, and it then turned out that most of thew, in 

2 	faot, did. 

	

3 	 We plan on doing the same thing with the doctors, 

although we have sent out a physicians' bulletin to every 

5 	physician in San Diego County explaining this now ordinance. 

6 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Yes, and are you also 

	

7 	searching for -- it is often not easy for a doctor's office 

	

8 	to disposal of certain kinds of zz_ktes, or perhaps it is in 

	

9 	San Diego County -- are you searching for ways to deal with 

	

10 	medical or infectious wastes. 

	

11 	 MR. STEPHANY: Yes, we are. 

	

12 	 We are meeting -- as the ad hoc committee entails -- 

	

13 	with the medical community, and the solid waste, and the 

	

14 	hazardous waste haulers, we don't agree with thQ gentleman 

	

15 	from the Oceans group that this stuff cannot go into a land 

	

16 	fill if it is properly handled. 

	

17 	 The problem right now for a small doctor's office 

	

18 	though, is they don't have the wherewithal to autoclave, or 

	

19 	incinerate, or even dispose of it properly, except to throw 

	

20 	it into the local trash can. 

	

21 	 Ard, one of the problems that we are having with the 

	

22 	State Health Department is the fact tha' 	iould like to -- 

	

23 	most doctors are'associated with hospitals, and hospitals 

	

24 	have permits. Hospitals can take care of this kind of thing, 

	

25 	but they are not willing to take a doctor's office material 

• 
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1 	becarse they would have to go through what they call a TSD 

2 	permit, which takes years and sometimes gets rejected by the 

3 	State Health Department. If, in fact, they could take this 

4 	back to the hospitals that would work as that would take care 

5 	of probably 90 percent of the problem, and then we could 

6 	track it from there. 

7 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Okay. 

8 	 One final question: in trying to gauge the degree of 

9 	risk to the public in all of this, when you found medical and 

10 	infectious waste in San Diego, and I think with each month 

11 	that passes by, everyone is more alert to gathering whatever 

12 	evidence there is there, would you care to inform us as to 

13 	what kinds of research was done to determine any dangerous 

14 	elements in the medical and infectious waste that you found, 

15 	that if members of the public were exposed to it they might 

16 	contract serious illnesses? 

17 	 MR. STEPHANY: Well, as the City Attorney from Los 

18 	Angeles stated earlier, one of the reasons why we have 

19 	trouble prosecuting cases under the present law is a lot of 

20 	times by the time we find a needle or a syringe, for 

21 	instance, it may have been infectious when it was dumped, but 

22 	after being exposed to the elements for two weeks, we are not 

23 	going to find anything, so from that point it is really 

24 	nothing more than the safety hazard. 

25 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: I understand. 
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1 	 MR. STEPHANY: Now, you see a vial of blood up there, 

	

2 	if in fact that has hepatitis in it and you are jogging on 

	

3 	the beach with bare feet, you step on that, and it cuts your 

	

4 	foot, and the blood intermixes, you have a very good chance 

of getting hepatitis. 

	

6 	 Now, what is the risk of that to the public? It is 

	

7 	very small. I scan, it is sore of a safety issue than 

	

8 	anything else, but if you are that one person, it is very 

	

9 	significant -- 

	

10 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Well, that is the -- 

	

3.1 	 MR. STEPHANY: -- but, to the community at large, it 

	

12 	is not significant. 

	

13 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: 	second part of my 

	

14 	question. 

	

15 	 The first part was, in the various examples you have 

	

16 	found -- and I appreciate that with the passage of tins, 

	

17 	infectious elements may well be washed away or gone, but were 

	

18 	you able to find any continuing infectious materials in what 

	

19 	you have presented to us, and what you have gathered over 

	

20 	recent months? 

• 21 	 MR. STEPHANY: Well, we were advised that it would be 

	

22 	just a waste of time and money to even test most this, and so 

	

23 	we have trot tested it. 

• 24 	 As far as a vial of something, when it has blood in 

	

25 	it, and we know it is blood, we are just assuming the worst. 
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1 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Is it your plan now to begin 

2 	testing these materials? 

	

3 	 MR. STEPHANY: No, it is not. There is no reason to 

4 	do any testing. 

5 	 Again, it is like testing an open well, it may show 

6 	good today, but if something gets in there it could be bad 

	

7 	tomorrow. The same way, if you have a needle out on the 

	

8 	beach, and if it sticks you in the foot, if there is nothing 

	

9 	on it today, you may be a carrier, and the next person who 

	

10 	sticks thair foot may get stuck -- 

	

11 	 cormissioNER MC CARTHY: I understand. 

	

12 	 MR. STEPHANY: -- so it is just a waste of time and 

	

13 	money to do the testing. 

	

14 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: I mean anything contained, 

	

15 	like vials of blood, or -- 

	

16 	 MR. STEPHANY: You see in the pictures -- 

	

17 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: -- wrapped fetal tissue, the 

	

18 	other things that you might see. 

	

19 	 MR. STEPHANY: -- in the body parts, that is easy, 

	

20 	because under state la 4 that cannot even go into the land 

	

21 	fill. It has to be incinerated, so that is an easy one to 

	

22 	prosecute, and this other -- again, AIDS generally will 

	

23 	disappear within anywhere from three to nine hours, hepatitis 

	

24 	is generally a couple of weeks. It is just really one of 

	

25 	those things that it is just not worth the time and effort to 
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1 	test. 

	

2 	 I know they did this, some of this, back east in New 

	

3 	Jersey, and they found somethings, so we just assume that 

4 	the potential is there, and as long as the potential is 

5 	there, we are going from that angle. 

6 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Okay. 

7 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Just one question: do you have any 

notion, from your experience in San Diego County, as to the 

9 	sources of this contamination? 

	

10 	 MR. STEPHANY: Well, as Myrna stated, we have a lot of 

	

11 	theories. We think that some it came from -- we have a lot 

	

12 	of facilities along the beach that any street person -- and 

	

13 	we have a lot of people who like to live on the beach, 

	

14 	especially during the summer -- that rummage through the 

	

15 	trash, and this could end up very easily that way. There are 

	

16 	some things that we really feel that come off of ships, 

	

17 	whether they are cruise ships, freighters, tuna boats, Navy 

	

18 	ships, we don't know. We just feel that some came directly 

	

19 	from the ocean. 

	

20 	 You heard earlier about this big swath that somebody 

	

21 	saw off of Catalina that may have drifted towards San Diego, 

	

22 	and we sent out helicopters and couldn't find anything. 

	

23 	 But, at this point in time, this task force is 

	

24 	continuing in its investigation, but other than a lot of 

	

25 	theories, no. 
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1 	 CHAIR DAVIS: But, there is nothing about the waste 

	

2 	and its marking, how it is -- 

	

3 	 MR. STEPHANY: Well, we know that some of. it was 

	

4 	military, because it had military markings on it, but again, 

5 	we don't know that it -- it could have come through a 

6 	surplus, or through -- it my understanding that anybody that 

7 	has a grant, or is getting funds from the federal government, 

	

8 	can purchase these things through the Defense Department, so 

	

9 	any agency -- it could be a veterans hospital, a university 

	

10 	that has a grant -- any of these people have access to this 

	

11 	type of material. 

	

12 	 Yes, there were military numbers. We did trace it 

	

13 	back to the Department of Defense, but that is as far as we 

	

14 	could get. 

	

15 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you. 

	

16 	 Our next witnesses will be one from Orange County and 

	

17 	one from Ventura, and then we are going to call upon the 

	

le 	Navy, and I would like to get at least that far before our 

	

19 	noon break, so with that in mind, let me call Mr. Merryman 

	

20 	from Orange County, who is the Director of the Environmental 

	

21 	Health Division of the Department of Health for Orange 

	

22 	County. 

	

23 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Chairman Davis, Lieutenant Governor 

	

24 	McCarthy, I appreciate the opportunity of addressing your 

	

25 	group here today. 
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1 	 I have given you a package of materials that I would 

	

2 	1ik you to walk through. My comments are divided into two 

	

3 	parts: one, is a scenario of the incidents which we will 

	

4 	walk through with the pictures; and, then I would like to 

	

5 	make some comments on some of the things that have been 

	

6 	discussed earlier this morning. 

	

7 	 Beginning on Monday morning, November 14, and 

continuing for several days, medical wastes' washed ashore on 

	

9 	the beaches in Orange County. This incident was initiated by 

	

10 	the finding of two vials found in photo Number One, which you 

	

11 	may find in your blue booklet. Because of their unusual 

	

12 	packaging and lack of identifying labelLtg, these four-inch 

	

13 	long vials raised considerable concern. This concern grew as 

	

14 	additional sightings were reported on beaches throughout 

Orange County. 

	

16 	 The Orange County Health Care Agency, Division of 

	

17 	Environmental Health, maintains an emergency incident team 

	

18 	which responds to chemical and infectious waste releases. 

	

19 	The Environmental Health also enforces the provision of the 

	

20 	state's hazardous waste control laws, relating to illegal 

	

71 	disposals of both hazardous, and infectious waste. 

	

22 	 Because of our role in hazardous and infectious waste 

	

23 	regulations, cities receiving complaints regarding the vials 

	

24 	requested Environmental Health's assistance in investigation 

	

25 	the incident. Due to the fact that the vials were originally 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 



44 

1 	from the ocean, Environmental Health notified the United 

	

2 	States Coast Guard and required that a representative be 

	

3 	present at the incident command post that was set up in 

4 	Huntington Beach. 

5 	 After determining ',.;hat the vials found were sealed, 

6 	and could be safely picked up by the local Fire Depftztment 

	

7 	and the life guards, Environmental Health issued a request 

	

8 	for periodic beach patrols. Any vials or other suspicious 

	

9 	materials found were to be investigated by Environmental 

	

10 	Health staff upon request. 

	

11 	 Orange County efforts were then directed to 

	

12 	identifying the containers. Thanks to public assistance, 

	

13 	Coast Guard personnel were able to identify the vials and 

	

14 	their contents the following day. The containers were 

	

15 	identified as containing concentrated germicidal chemicals 

	

16 	used to decontaminate military personnel exposed to 

	

17 	biclogicca agents -- and that's in Pictuve No. 1 that you 

	

18 	have in your blue folder. 

	

19 	 Other items recovered on Orange County beacAes also 

	

20 	suggested a military source. An aircraft surface cleaning 

	

21 	compound and a life vest flashlight shown in Photo No. 3, 

	

22 	bottle of Antibiotics with military stock numbers, which is 

	

23 	in the middle of item No. 2, a chemical identified as 

	

24 	acromycin, 

	

25 	 On the next page we found a -- no, I am sorry. 
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1 	 There was an expended phosphorus flare that was 

	

2 	collected, `aut this was taken by the Coast Guard, and we did 

	

3 	not maintain possession of that 

	

4 	 There was a plastic tag labeled bag, waterproofing 

	

5 	chemical biological M-1 and that is in Photograph Na. 4. 
9 

6 	 A Lewis light indicator in Photos 5 and 6. Lewis 

7 	light is a highly toxic blister aas. 

• 	
8 	 A Navy Technical Manual cover for the flank ship 

	

9 	defense system, is identified in Photo No. 7. 

• 
	10 	 A prescription vial issued from the Naval Medical 

	

11 	Clinic in San Diego is identified in picture o. 8. 

	

12 	 Other items found included vials of antibiotics and 

• 	13 	medicines, syringes, and needle assemblies typicall lead to 

	

14 	draw blood, swabs in a variety of empty medical section 

	

15 	vials, shown with other items collected are shown in a 

• 	16 	grouping on Photograph No. 11. 

	

17 	 On Tuesday afternoon, NotJember 15, Coast Guard 

	

18 	officialA informed our agency that they would not be able to • 

	

19 	assume legal status of the investigation to the incident The 

	

20 	Coast Guard indicated that their authority to operate was 

	

21 	provided under CERCLA, which did not include the regulation 

	

22 	of medical wastes. 

	

23 	 Since it appeared that these wastes were disposed of 

• 	14 	at sea, we've been informed by our local District Attorney in 

	

25 	Orange County that it will be difficult for our agency to 

• 
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1 	investigate and prosecute. In light of this, we called upon 

2 	the federal Environmental Protection Agency. EPA staff 

3 	indicated that federal ocean dumping laws regulate all wastes 

4 	disposed! at sea. Because EPA has statutory authority to 

5 	enforce these laws, our agency requested EPA to investigate 

6 	this incident. All information collected has been eererred 

7 	to the Environmental Protection Agency. EPA. 

S 	 In addition to EPA, Environmental Health also notified 

9 	the U.S. Navy officials regarding our findings. Naval 

10 	investigators have examined the collected materials on three 

11 	occasions, and have offered to handle the disposal of these 

12 	items. The Navy has indicated to our agency that Navy 

13 	regulations require the medical wastes be disposed of in 

14 	weighted containers at distances of at least 50 miles 

15 	offshore. 

16 	 The Navy appears to be very interested in determining 

17 	if Naval regulations were violated. To date they have not 

18 	accepted responsibility for the incident. The Navy has 

19 	indicated to our agency that Naval regulat5ons, and not the 

20 	the ocean dumping laws, would apply if a Navy ship was at 

21 	fault. 

22 	 We have chosen not to release the material to the 

23 	Navy, at this time. EPA agrees with that, and we are working 

24 	with EPA, primarily to obtain iltformation and pass it on to 

25 	EPA. 
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1 	 The material that washed ashore in Orange County 

2 	starting on November 14, exhibited flammable, toxic, and 

	

3 	corrosive properties. This was not done by any type of 

4 	chemical test, because of the fact that we were not going to 

5 	be the lead agency, so we did not feel it appropriate to 

6 	start doing chemical testing on these materials, so we 

	

7 	evaluated the materials, and using medical references made 

	

8 	these determinations. 

	

9 	 While public injury was avoided in this incident, it 

	

10 	is clear that these types of materials do not have a place on 

	

11 	public beaches. 

	

12 	 At this time, it is not known by our agency if the 

	

13 	information provided to EPA regarding the materials collected 

	

14 	on our beaches, has assisted their investigation. Since EPA 

	

15 	is responsible for the enforcement of the federal ocean 

	

16 	dumping laws, we are deferring this whole matter to EPA. 

	

17 	 Now, I would like to make some comments about 

	

18 	infectious wastes. In 1982, both Los Angeles and Orange 

	

19 	Counties, had some problems with some infectious waste, and 

	

20 	it became quite a high profile item, and Orange County 

	

21 	implemented a program with just some very loose authority, 

	

22 	general authority that the local health officer has, and set 

	

23 	up some criteria for the disposal of infectious waetss. 

	

24 	 Later, these guidelines and other guidelines, were 

	

25 	adopted into regulations. In the last year and a half, we 
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1 	have prosecuted successfully three illegal disposal incidents 

2 	of infectious waste in Orange County. 

	

3 	 One of the big problems that has been mentioned 

4 	befo=e -- without being too redundant -- infectious waste has 

5 	to be proven to have etilogical agents, in other words 

6 	pathogens, or organisms that will cause disease. And, this 

7 	is extremely difficult tc detect. 

8 	 It would be our recommendation that the definition of 

	

9 	infectious waste include blood contaminated materials. 

	

10 	Presently, it is just -- the definition only includes the 

	

11 	proof that etilcqical agents are present. 

	

12 	 There is another problem in Orange County, we've had 

	

13 	this, the oversight of infectious waste, and we haven't had a 

	

14 	problem with the major generators of infectious waste in 

	

15 	Orange County, and we do have an infectious waste treatment 

	

16 	facility, but there is a problem, and I would like to 

	

17 	re-emphasize that, because to me this ics one of our major 

	

18 	problems, at least in Orange County, and that is the problem 

	

19 	that leads to what we refer to as the bleeding refuse 

	

20 	dumpster. And, that is the issue where a laboratory or 

	

21 	physician's office who generates less than 220 pounds, or 100 

	

22 	kilograms a morth, does not come under any regulatory 

	

23 	authority, and is basically exempt from any type of practices 

	

24 	required for the proper disposal of infectious wastes. 

	

25 	 Without any type of regulatory authority, they have no 
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1 	other option but to dump it in the dumpster, and we do get 

2 	called out periodically from dumpster that are literally 

	

3 	bleeding, and this creates a great deal of concern. In some 

	

4 	cases, people will be going through dumpsters, people that 

• 	5 	would not be -- rummaging for other things, and they come 

6 	across these things, and they are exposed to all types r 

7 	toxic wastes, as well as sharps. 

	

8 	 Sharps are needles and bleb:less, and things of this 

	

9 	sort. They do have to be handled in a very special way, so 

	

10 	the regulation -- the weak part of the regulations is really 

	

11 	with the limittion of the 103 kilograms. 

	

12 	 flow, Mr. Stephany, in his program in San Diego, said 

	

13 	something that I think is really worth while, but I don't 

	

14 	think it should be done locally from county to county. I 

	

15 	think it should be done statewide, and statewide we have 

	

16 	uniformity. One of the problzms with county to county is 

	

17 	that we have different interpretations, we have different 

	

18 	interests, and it leads to really a lack of uniformity, which 

	

19 	really is not the best way to handle the disposal of 

	

20 	infectious waste. 

	

21 	 Another problem that was brought up, which I would 

	

22 	like to re-emphasize, is the problem of dealing with 

	

23 	treatment facilities- Right now, the way the hazardous laws 
• 

	

24 	are worded, if a facility treats hazardcus waste -- and in 

	

25 	California hazard waste is an infectious waste -- if a 

• 
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1 	facility treats hazardous waste, it must obtain a TSD 

2 	facility permit -- this is a treatment storage and disposal 

3 	facility permit. 

4 	 There is an exemption for the treatment of infectious 

5 	waste -- where infectious wastes are generated. Hospitals can 

6 	treat their infectious wastes by autoclaving. 

7 	 There was a question about the efficiency of the 

8 	autoclaving. We have had this in our program for a number of 

9 	years, and we have vials of bacillus organisms that are 

10 	placed in the center of the autoclaves on an annual basis, 

11 	and we check the autoclaves and check the procedures, and we 

12 	feel quite comfortable that the autoclaving that is done for 

13 	the treatment of infectious waste is done in a very 

14 	satisfactory manner: however, with this exception, the 

15 	hospital cannot receive infectious waste from physicians' 

16 	offices. We have an incident right now where a physician's 

17 	office is located across the parking lot from a hospital. He 

18 	used to take his infectious waste to the hospital, and they 

19 	would throw it in their autoclave, he war on their staff, 

20 	there was no problem. 

21 	 But, with all of the requirements for the TSD facility 

22 	permit, the hospital would now have to obtain a TSD facility 

23 	permit, because they are not treating just their waste. This 

24 	is kind of a key issue that Mr. Stephany raised. 

25 	 If the hospitals could treat these wastes, many 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 

• 



51 

1 	physicians would be glad to get rid of their infectious waste 

	

2 	through a very safe channel -- physicians that generate leas 

	

3 	than 220 pounds a month. 

	

4 	 Right nnw the hospitals will say, "No, we can't take 

	

5 	your infectious waste. Ve cannot go through the 

	

6 	time-consuming process of geting a permit, so you will just 

	

7 	have to do it any way you can." 

	

8 	 Another way that we have suggested to the medical 

	

9 	community in dealing with infectious waste, is grouping, 

	

10 	grouping their infectious wastes. There are service companies 

	

11 	that will, and will go on a milk run, and will pick up 

	

12 	medical and infectious wastes from physicians' offices, even 

	

13 	though they be small generators; but, now we have a firancial 

	

14 	burden on the physician, and there may be the question of 

	

15 	whether he wants to follow through with that t7pe of burden. 

	

16 	 With that, I will be happy to answer any rruestions. 

	

17 	 CHAIR DAVIS: I have got a couple of questions. 

	

18 	 You said that some of the waste you have discovered 

	

19 	recently in Orange County exhibited flammable and toxic 

	

20 	properties, can you describe the nature of that waste and why 

	

21 	you came to that conclusion? 

	

23 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Going through the research as well, ye 

	

23 	had ethenol which is a flammable material, and one of the 

	

24 	vials contained an amount of ethenal that appeared that it 

	

25 	would flammable. We have not done a flammable test on it, so 
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1 	that has not bson verified by a laboratory analysis. 	was 

2 	dons as -- as some people say, we dry labbed it. We looked 

3 	at the material, and then looked in our references. 

4 	 There was material that had a pH of 1'4. In California 

5 	law, a pH of 13 would be a corrosive material which would 

6 	make it a toxic material. 

7 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Another point you ought up, is this 

8 	permit a TSD permit? 

9 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Yes, issued by the: Toxic Substance 

10 	Control Division of the Department ci Health Services. 

11 	 CHAIR DAVIS: And, give me -- I understand the obvious 

12 	advantages of either eliminating that requirement to obtain 

13 	that permit or streamlining the issuance of the permit, and 

14 	what is the argument against changing that -- be the devil's 

15 	advocate for met and explain public policy reasons for not 

16 	changIng with the permit issuing process as it now stands at 

17 	the Department of Health. 

16 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Well, I hate to 

19 	 CHAIR DAVIS: If you can make such a 

20 	 MR. MERRYMAN: -- debate the policy of DHS without 

21 	having them be here, but they will be following me, so maybe 

22 	they can contradict me if they disagree with me. 

23 
	

Infectious wastes are hazardous waste in California, 

24 	so a facility that treats hazardous waste is class fled as a 

25 
	

treatment, storage, and disposa1 facility, and they must 
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obtain a permit. The method to obtain a permit is very time 

2 	consuming, and very burdensome. 

With infectious waste there is an exception. If the 

4 	generator generates infectious wastes he can trait it on his 

5 	own premises, i.e. hospitals can autoclave it, but if a 

6 	hospital takes the material, the infectious waste, from thi 

	

7 	doctor's office, or from another acute are facility, or 

	

8 	convalescence home, and brings it in, they are now receiving 

	

9 	a hazardous waste (infectious waste) zo therefore they would 

	

10 	be classified by state law as a treatment, storage and 

	

11 	disposal facility and they would be required to go through 

	

12 	the permitting process. 

	

13 	 CHAIR DAVIS: But, apart from -- I understand that 

	

14 	bureaucratic requirement, but are there any public policy 

	

15 	arguments against allowing hospitals to accept this waste 

	

16 	from doctors that serve on theirstaff? 

	

17 	 I mean, it would seem at first blush that that is a 

	

18 	strong public policy reason to encourage them to do that, 

	

19 	because in your opinion, at least, this autoclaving process 

	

20 	works and is an effective way of treating medical wastes, so 

	

21 	it would seem on first blush, that goad public policy would 

	

22 	encourage doctors to transfer that waste to a hospital that 

	

23 	can dispose of it effectively. 

	

24 	 MR. MERRYMAN: But, the hospitals are not going to 

	

25 	accept it, because then they would be violating state law 
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1 	because they do not have a TSD facility permit. 

2 	 I am serving on the committee that -- the task force 

3 

	

	that Dr. Kaiser has set up -- dealing with the safe 

management of infectious wastes, a task force, and we are 

5 	having a meeting -- as a matter of fact tomorrow -- and this 

6 	is one of the issues that I am hoping to get feed back from, 

7 	and my feeling is that the hospitals should be allowed to do 

8 	this, but they should be required to have a permit, and the 

9 	permit should be issued by the local enforcement agency, 

10 	bemuse right now in California the infectious waste 

11 	regulations are enforced by the local enforcement agencies, 

12 	and I. think that is where the permit should be issued. 

13 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Let me try this one sore time. 

14 	 I know you need to have the permit -- but, you are 

15 	really bogging the question. 

16 	 The question is why do we make you have the permit? 

17 	What public policy argument or reason necessitates you having 

18 	to get the permit? What are the hazards of accepting the 

19 	waste? 

20 	 MR. MERRYMAN: This is an interpretation of the Toxic 

21 	Substance Control Division of the State Department of Health 

22 	Services. 

23 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Oh, you are not really answering my 

24 	question, but I -- 

25 	 OR. MERRYMAN: I am sorry. 
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3. 	 CHAIR DAVI3: -- have asked it four times, so I am 

	

2 	going to give up. 

	

3 	 MR. MERRYMAN: You asked me about public policy -- 

	

4 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Yes, the public policy argument, what is 

40 	5 	the reason? We don't just do things in government for just 

6 	no reason -- we aren't supposed to -- 

	

7 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Oh, we don't? 

	

8 	 CHAIR DAVIS: What is the reason for requiring 

	

9 	hospitals to get this permit? What is the health reason? 

	

10 	The public policy reason for requiring them to have to get 

	

17 	this permit to accept wastes from doctors that serve on their 

	

12 	staffs. 

10 	13 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Well, the policy, basically, deals with 

	

14 	-- it goes back to RCRA -- the Resource Conservation Recovery 

	

1• 	Act -- and the state enforcing all of the RCRA regulations, 

• 16 	and one of the things that is in RCRA regulations is the 

	

1? 	requirements for a treatment, storage, and disposal facility; 

	

18 	however, in California they have added on infectious wastes. 

	

19 	So, since that ig all tacked in, the Department of Health 

	

20 	Services has interpreted that they are required to have this 

•
11 	

21 	permit as a matter of state law. 

	

22 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Okay, fine, I am raising the white flag. 

	

23 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: I think it unfair of the 

	

24 	Chairman to insist that you give reasons for the existence of 

	

25 	state laws. 
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1 	 CHAIR DAVIS: I don't -- I am happy to acknowledgs 

2 	that there may not be a reason, but that has not been 

3 	associated -- 

4 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Our position at the local level -- 

5 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: You have done its  and don't 

6 	go into it ar deeper. 

C1AIR DAVIS: -- I know, yes, you got it. 

Thank you very much. 

4 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: No, no, wait a minute, can I 

10 	ask a question? 

11 	 CHAIR DAVIS1 Oh, yotl. are going to ask a question. 

12 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Thank you. 

13 	 We could eliminate half of the laws in the state if we 

14 	insisted on giving good reasons for creating them in the 

15 	first place. 

16 	 I notice ii. your photos that 10 out of 11 of then deal 

17 	with military sources of medical wastes -- 

18 	 MR, MERRYMAN: I think they all did. 

19 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: -- well, Photo 1 is vials of 

20 	decontamination solul"ons for use to counteract military 

21 	biological chemical warfare agents. 

22 	 And, then as I proceed through, military items found 

23 	among the medical waste collected, a water proofing bag from 

24 	military issue, chemical, biological warfare personnel face 

25 	mask, and so en. 
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So, 10 out of the 11 deal with military :sources for 

	

2 	this, and 4 out of the 11 deal with chemical, biological 

	

3 	warfare. 

	

4 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Yes. 

	

5 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Are you trying to tell us 

	

6 	something in selecting these photos? Is the evidence you are 

	

7 	gatherin4 indicative that there is a special, or peculiar, 

problem with military installations in Orange County? Or; 

is that something not to be read into this, that this is just 

10 	some examples -- photographic examples that you are giving us 

11 	here? 

12 	 MR. MERRYMAN: No, all of the examples that were 

13 	pictured all occurred during a series of incidents from 

14 
	

November 14 to the November 17, and was -- what we felt was 

15 
	

one incident that lasted over four days -- 

16 
	

COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY. Okay. 

17 
	

MR. MERRYMAN: -- and those were all materials 

	

. 18 
	

gathered from Huntington Beach down to San Clenente -- 

19 
	

COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY_ Okay, all right. 

20 
	

MR, MERRYMAN: -- so we feel that all of lelee Ore 

21 
	

COMMISSIONER MC COMM: Se, they are not intended 

22 
	

be representative of a two-yeer maple of -... 

23 
	

MR. MERRYMAN: No, no, it was the one incident. 

24 
	

COMMISSIONER MC CARTNY: All right. 

25 
	

Second question: if there is ta=lk-of chemical or 
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1 	biological warfare agents, this causes great controversy. We 

	

2 	read about Iraq and what they are doing to the Kurds. Our 

	

3 	national leadership tells us that the Soviets are doing 

research in this area, and have the capability of using 

	

5 	chemical or biological weapons against us, and this 

	

6 	information here seems to be some training program to teach 

	

7 	our personnel how to protect themselves againnt the use of 

chemical or biological warfare. 

	

9 	 Is this an area that you are lookirg at, without 

	

10 	unduly alarming anybody, but just to have knowledge so that 

	

11 	we know what it is we are dealing with? Are you working with 

	

12 	the military installations in your county to try to determine 

	

13 	what it is, what programs exist for chemical, biological 

	

14 	warfare, and what consequences, if any, this has to the 

	

15 	civilian population in the area? 

	

16 	 MR. MERRYMAN: No, we have not pursued that avenue 

	

17 	with the military. We have only pursued the results of the 

	

18 	incident that occurred from November 14 to the 17. 

	

19 	 As far as how these chemicals are-uesd, or where they 

	

20 	are used, we have not pursued that at all. 

21 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Yes, there is no evidence 

22 	from the photos you've got here that there are, in fact, a 

23 	lot of chemical or biology ingredients on any military 12se. 

24 	 These seem to be defensive,proceSures, and I am 

25 	wondering if you are, lust for the ,sake of enlightenment, 
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1 	you arc pursuing that as one area of knowledge here that you 

2 	are trying to gain? 

	

3 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Well, the only thing we have pursued is 

4 	to identify them, and it appears thor.,  are definitely part 

5 	of -- or they originated from one part of the military, and 

with the materials that came along with them that identified 

7 	the Navy, it appears very much that it came from the Navy, 

	

8 	and that has been basically our involvement, to refer it to 

	

9 	the Navy for their follow-up and the EPA. 

	

10 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY4 Thanx you. 

	

11 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Let ne ask one question, and 1 think you 

	

12 	mentioned this in your prepared remarks. 

	

13 	 You have been working with the Navy to try and 

	

14 	identify the reasons that these materials found their way 

	

15 	onto the beaches? 

	

16 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Primarily the Navy has been trying tin'', 

	

17 	find avenues of information that would show that it artual..1y 

	

18 	came from the Navy. 

	

19 	 Now, how they got onto the beach, we have not received 

	

20 	any inforwation from the Navy as to what conclusions they 

	

21 	have, or what they have been able to deduce from the 

	

22 	information we;ve given tea. We've given them all the 

	

23 	information, and showed then the material, some of which I 

	

24 	brought today. 

	

25 	 CHAIR DAVIS: All right, thank you very much for 
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1 	coming up here. We appreciate it. 

2 	 MR. MERRYMAN: Thank. you. 

3 	 CHAIR DAVIS: The Chair, with the indulgence of Mr. 

Bros. of the Ventura County D. A.'s office, -would :ike to 

5 	call the Navy representation to testify at this point, and 

6 	then I promise Mr. Grose that we will hear his before we 

7 	adjourn for lunch. 

8 	 So, with that, if I could ask Commander Ron 

Wildermuth, if Ile-could come forward. 

10 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, 

11 	Lieutenant Governor, Commissioners, on behalf of the United 

12 	States Navv Al would like to thank you for inviting us to 

13 	participate today. 

14 	 I would like to -- 

15 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Excuse me Commander, I might ask 

16 	Commander Porter, after you finish, if he could make some 

17 	comments, and then we would address-questions to both the-- 

18 	Navy and the Coast Guard, if that is sufficient with you. 

1.9z 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: Yes, ,--sir. 

20 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you. 

21 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: I would like to assure this committee 

22 	that the United States Navy is strongly committedc.:o. 

23 	protecting the ocean environment. Since the late 1970s the 

24 	Navy has been usi shipboard trash compactors anii 

25 	incinerators to reduce th-t amount of materials discharged 
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2 	into the ocean. The Navy is also working on da\velopinf 

2 	improved trash compactors, muichers, and p antic waste -- 

processors as future trash facilities on Navy ships 

4 	 Recently we have begun various training and supply 

5 	initiatives trying to eliminate plastics at the source, i.e. 

6 	before they go aboard our ships. Gither initiatives include 

	

7 	trash separation, specific medical waste compactots, and 

	

8 	transferring as such shipboard packaging as posei .1 *Con — 

	

9 	to biodegradable cardboards aria other non-plastic pickagkfig. 

	

10 	 Recently Secretary of the Navy Bill asked that Na 

1e our efforts to intin,lre that we comply with the 

	

12 	environmimtal regulations aimed at protecting our oceatia. 

	

3 	 The recent medical debris that washed ashore in 

	

14 	Southern California concerns the Navy as much as it dos 

	

15 	anyone because we are also California residents. 50.400 be409- 

	

16 	a concerned community minded organizat:Wn„ *fallacy 

	

17 
	

dependents also enjoy these sane wonderfq1 baaChea. 

	

: . 14 
	

We believe the Navy has a very safe, effeCtive program 

	

19 	to deal with medical wastes, both afloat and ashore. 

	

20 	 Let me bk.-la6y highlight the Navy's program: for 

control of medical wastes at sea. Since 1945, Navy pal i0} has 
, 	- 

	

Q 	re /411y diecas0/1‘t;4wartes to 	 a  

from shore, and--Only When n40,0114**„._ 

504,044PUe waste had to be autoclaved, :teamed aar:4; 

and only then could it be discharged into the 00'0846 and 

21 

22 

24,  

25 

only allowed medical 

Ma at least 50 miles 

( 
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1 	again at least 50 miles from shore. 

2 	 In actutatty, in the areas immediately off of the 

	

3 	Califyznia coast, medical waste has for many year* been 

4 	r'*tained on board Navy ships for disposal at Ahem. Since our 

5 	//ships generally train off the coast for short periods of 

6 	time -- one, two, throeweeks -- they can easily retain any 

7 	infectious or other medical wastes on board, and wtaci4oH, 

8 	do so routinely. 

	

9 	 In October of this year, the Chief of Naval or rations 

	

10 	reaffirmed this existing practice in a message to Navy 

	

11 	Commanders. I have provided you a copy of that tessagel,,and 

will briefly summarise it an its important points at this 

	

13 	time. 

	

14 	 Medical waste is divided into two categories: 

20 4  potentially infectious waste, and other wastes. Potentially 

	

16 	infectious waste is that waste which could result in an 

	

17 	infectious disease and includes the following examples: 

	

1.8 	isolation wastes, waste generated by patients isolated to 

	

19 	protect them from other communicable dimOses; cultures at& 

	

120 	stocks of infectious agents, and associated biologicals; 

	

21 	discarded live and attenuated vaccines; human blood and blood? 

	

22 	products; pathological waste such as tissues; sharp*, sua se,  

	

23 	needles, syringes, scalpel blades; surgical wastes such 4AL 

	

24 	soiled dressings, sponges, and surgical gloves. 

	

25 	 Other waste is defined as disposable medical equipMent 
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1 	and materiel, which do net fall into the categories 

	

2 	just mentioned, for example: ace bandages, medical pack 

	

3 	et ceterr. 

	

4 	 Potentially infectious waste shall be managed as 

	

J 5 	follows: potentially infectious waste shall be suitably 

	

6 	packaged, sterilized, and stored until disposal shore. After 

	

7 	sterilization, potentially infectious paper a!4 cloth-bated 

	

8 	medical wastes may be incinerated aboard ship if the ship has 

	

9 	that capability, or else it will be brought ashore. 

	

10 	 All sharps are collected in plastic autoclavable 

	

11 	sterilized containers, retained onboard and disposed of 

	

12 	ashore. The only allowable deviation from this policy is 

	

13 	when potentially infectious waste would endanger the health 

	

14 	or safety of personnel on board, or create an unacceptable 

	

15 	nuisance or compromise combat readiness. Only then is 

	

16 	overboard discharge authorized, under the following restrict 

	

17 	guidelines: ships must be beyond 50 miles from shore, waste 

	

18 	must be sterilized and properly packaged, and weighted to 

	

19 	insure that it will sink. 

	

20 	 Additionally, an administrative record must be aac of 

	

21 	this discharge; however, we do not envision this type of 

22 	discharge in the peace time Navy off of the California coast. 

23 	 Liquid waste, once properly treated, say be disposed 

A4 	of by discharging through the ship's sanitary arah,a6 Vimi" 

25 	Chemically treats waste before going into the ocean. 

1  
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1 	 Other medical waste does not require autoclaytwor 

2 	special handling, but still must be weighted to insure it 

3 	will sink. 

4 - 	I voullike to further point out that senior flag 

5 	officers in the San Diego and Long Beach area have recently 

6 	addressed this issue, stressing the importance of rigidly 

7 	adhering to the CNO's policy. Vice Admiral Kihune, 

8 	Commander of the Naval Surface Force, U.S. Pacific Fleet, who 

9 	owns all of the surface ships except for carriers, has direct 

10 	operational control over vast majority of surface ships, and 

11 	went so far as to point out that: "Unless there is a 

12 	compelling requirement, anything resembling medical wastes 

13 	should be properly disposed of ashore." 

14 	 Medical waste ashore is disposed of by a bonafila 

15 	civilian contractor, who is licensed by the State of 

16 	California Health Department. In San Diego, our medical 

17 	facilities are serviced by Browning Ferris Industries of LOS 

it 	
18 	Angeles, and in Long Beach we are serviced by PerdOma 40* 

19 	Sons of Los Angeles. 

20- ' 	Standard procedures at most Naval mediCM1 

21 	require medical wastes to be double red bagged by the 

2: 	generating department and hand carried to a secured on-base 

23 	infectious waste holding area. Then it is deposited in -keawy 

24 	gauge plastic barrels which are collected with varying : 

25 	frequency by designated contractors. Contractors dist_ 
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1 	the materials by incineration or autoclaving. Autoclave 

2 	material is not infectious and can be disposed of in sanitary 

3 	landfills. We know of no instance where one of our 

contractors has been cited for improper disposal. There are 

5 	few Navy medical facilities that do not use civilian 

6 	contractors. Those units incinerate or autoclave materials, 

7 	and then dispose of the material -- medical waste 

8 	by-products with the general refuse on the base. 

9 	 For the record, I would like to point out that to date 

10 	no hazardous medical waste has been linked to the Navy on the 

11 	west coast. The Chief of Naval Operations hagstated-  that it 

'12 	ii- the responsibility of all Commanders to insure that-no 

13 	medical materials are disposed of in a manner that may pam4Wat 

14 	risk to the public health and welfare, or marine env*renW686. 

IS 	 Thank you. 

16 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Commander, let me just ask a couple, 

17 	questions. 

18 	 You say in your statement that you don't envision a 

19 	discharge of infectious waste during peace tLlie. 

20 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: I don't envision any medical waste 

21 	=being dumped off of the coast of California -- or needed to 

22 	be dumped. Based on the CNO guidell.nes, which are -- bec.uts,-, 

23 	it would -- the medical stuff onboard would create an 

24 	unacceptable nuisance, compmmise combat readiness, or 

S 	endanger the health of the people ,:triboard. In other iirdtdiir  
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1 	think those are more or less eituatioas that would arise 

2 	under extended war time operations. 

3 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Let me ask you this question: heather* 

4 	been any disposal of waste, to your knowledge, by the Navy 

-5 	t.long the California coast, seyond the 50-milelimit? 

6 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: We have asked' the Commanders involVed, 

7 	when the medical wastes first came ashore, and they assured: 

8 	us that the standard -serrating procedure was that they bring 

00 

9 	the stuff ashore. 

10 	 I might add that when we did trace down the two 

11 	prescription bottles to the COs of the ships, we asked them' 

12 	that question in writing and they responded that, "Ho, they 

13 	had not dumped medical wastes.." 

14 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Is it possible that some personnel 

15 	onboardthe ship could have disposed of waste without 

16 	authorization from the Commander of the -vessel? 

17 	 MR. WILDERMOTH: Alything is possible, sir. 

18 	 CfYAIR DAIS: <UR- -- are you working with Orange 

19 	County -- Mr. Merryman? 

2O 	 MR. WILD!RMUTH: Yes, sir, we are -- both with 86% 

21 	Merryman, and Gary Stephany's °fact, in fact we are, 

22 	ourselves, trying to identify the source of some of Vie 

23 	material, based on the federal stock numbers. 

24 	 To date, the federal stock numbers have led our 

25 	researchers to defense depots, which means that the Retard:it 
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1 	could have gone to VA Hospitals, to civilian- hospitals with 

	

2 	government contracts, and to the military. Unfortunateity, 

	

3 	the lot number-r.; are not tracked, you knew, from that defense,  

	

4 	depot onward, and that is where we have had a problem. 

	

5 	 CHAR DAVIS: But you are satisfied that Caere has 

	

6 	been no authorixod dumping off the coast of California, oven 

	

7 	of tauerial that is not classified as infectious waste, bat 

	

8 	simply medical wastes? 

	

9 	 MR. WILD 
	

Yes, sir. 

	

10 	 The only thing that I think that has been authoritod 

	

11 	to be dumped is at 50 miles, and that is trash. Now, whether 

	

12 	there was a plastic, or a rubber glove, in that trash, you 

	

13 	know, that is entirely feasible, bit after the CommaadWa 

14 	recent flurry of messages, i guarantee you that even that 

	

13 	will not happen, or at least will be watched for. 

LW  

	

16 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Well, under the iinisting guidelines, 

17 	which Lieutenant Governor reminded me is new federal law, I 

	

18 	don't know if these guidelines predated the passage of the 

	

19 	law or the result there of, but legislation was passed by 

	

20 	the Congress on this subject before they adjourned this gal,  

	

21 	 At least under your guidelines, and = I bel*Wwa WM! 
„S o 	 r  

22 	the law, certain forms of medical wastes can be de*olitaa 

2.3 	miles offshore 

	

24 	 WILDERMOTH: Yes, sir, packagAaq, ace 

25 
	

CHAIR DAVIS: -- it is that kind of waste that I sU 
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talking about when I ask you whether or not there was ant 

	

2 	to yoUr knowledge whether there haa been any diRP*001410 

	

3 	that form of wastes, to your knowledge, of of the 00iifogia 

coastline? 

	

5 	 MR. WILD "..4, 
	

YoU know, not being out on the ihalcIr 

	

6 	I cannot, you know, delineate where they drew the line. .841- 

	

7 	sir, I cannot tell you. 

	

8 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Is it -- is this the kind of activity 

	

9 	that would be recorded on a ship's log? Would them be any 

	

10 	record of this type of disposal? 

	

11 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: Not as to specifically what is inth0 

	

12 	trash. The fact that trash was dumped would be 10444 

	

13 	except for now if medical telish were ever dumped it wOUta ,  

10-4404. 

	

1.5 	 I think you -- 

	

16 	 CHAIR DAVIS: But, that is a new requirement. ItiL 

	

1, 	did not exist -- 

	

18 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: -- yes, sir. 

	

10 	 CHAIR DAVIS: -- prior to the adoption of these 

	

20 	-,-----togulations. 

	

21 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: That is correct. 

22 

23, 

24 

,aftion? 

CHAIR DAVIS: And, they were adopted? 

WILDERMUTH: In October. 

et • v DOW: Was that pursuant to COOgOOMO&Onal 
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5 

6 

7 

putting it over the side, even if it is packaging or 

related. 

CHAIR DAVIS: Putting it in a container whiCh wattle 

disposed of onshore? 

CHAIR _DAVIS: I see. 

	

8 	 MR. WI. 	 Yee, sir. 

	

9 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Or at sea? 

	

10 	 MR. 	4 	 Taken ashore. 

11 

	

12 	 Leo. 

0 _I ISSIONER MCCARTHY: No. 

on their face, there is a kit that they use that tells what 21 

22 	kind of agent that they are being threatened with, and 

23 	than,fhat there are no chemical materials on the ships -- 

24 	strictly defensive. 

0 25 

1 

2 	 I would add that we would probably err on the side Of -1- 

3 	being -- of putting this stuff into a container rather 

MR. WILDERMUTH: I would like to also, if I 00014, 

15 	LieUtenant Governor, sir, address those CVR materials 

16 	little bit. 

17 	 Those CVR materials are a decontamination material 

18 	that people put on their face or on their hands and arms, in 

19 	the event they get into that type of environment. It is a 

20 	defensive type thing. In addition to the material theY 

ISSIONER MC CARTHY: Okay, there are hb trainiW 

13 

14. 

1 
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1 	procedures at any military installations that you aware of, 

2 	Commander, that use chemical or biological warfare germs 

3 	ingredients in the training of the men. 

4 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: No, sir. 

5 	 In fact .1111/1.P.  

6 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: This is simply to say that 

7 	should you be in an area where such chemical or biological.  

8 	agents might be used against you, this is the deensiva mode 

9 	that you will employ. 

10 	 I. WILDERMUTM: Yes, sir, and only then would we 
41 

11 	break open those packages. 

12 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Thank you. 

13 	 CHAIR DAVIS: So that there is no actual -- no real 

training of that process, because that would necessitate 

15 	opening these materials. 

16 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: Right, and we have training versions 

17 	of these same wipes that are nothing but alcohol and water,: 

18 	so that ilia people know where to put them, but that's the -,: 

19 	only aspect of that. 

20 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you very much for comAng here 

21 	today. 

22 	 MR. WILDERMUTH: Yes, sir, thank you. 

23 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Could I ask Commander Porter to come 

24 	forward and speak on behalf of the CoastIAmard. 

25 	 MR. PORTER: Good morning Mr. Chairman, Lieutanant. 

• 
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1 	Governor, my name is Scott Porter. I am a Commander in the 

	

2 	U.S. Coast Gua, and I am stationed at the 11th Coast Guard 

	

3 	District headquartered in Long Beach, where I am presently 

	

4 	assigned as the Chief of the Marine Environmental ProteCtion 

	

5 	and Port Safety Branch. Our office oversees the operations 

of the Coast Guard within the State of California, and in 

	

7 	particular, the branch that I am in charge of has the 

	

8 	responsibility for overseeitsg the Marine Environmental 

	

9 	Protection Program within the State of California -- Coast 

	

10 	Guard's Marine Environmental Protection Program. 

	

11 	 I would like to discuss with you this morning the 

12 	federal regulations that the Coast Guard has responsibility--  

13 	for enforcing, which are applicable, or may be applicable to 

14 	the discharge of medical wastes at sea, discuss the role of 

15 	the Coast Guard with response to reports of medical waste 

16 	spills, and outline the Coast Guard's policy for discharge of 

17 	medical wastes from our own ships. 

18 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Commander, if I could just interject, 

19 	arc -chess regulations substantially similar to the ones the 

20 	Navy has promulgated pursuant to recent Congressional action? 

21 	 MR. PORTER: The policies that were discussed with 

22 	regard to discharge from our own ships is exactly the same. 

23 	 The laws that I was going to discuss are the federal 

24 	statutes which we, the Coast Guard, get involved with in 

25 	enforcing the Ocean Dumping Act, the Refuse Act, and a new 
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1 	set of regulations that will be coming out on the first of 

	

2 	January. It is an international law, MARPOL, 1978, Annex 5 

	

3 	has to do with the dumping of garbage at sea, a new 

	

4 	reg4lation, again will be out 1 January, and the Coast Guard 

4, 	5 	will be involved with the enforcement of those regulations. 

	

6 
	

CIIhIR DAVIS: Well, if you wouldn't mind, if you could 

	

7 	skip the portion of your testimony that referred to the 

regulations, since we've covered those, if they are identical 

	

9 	with the ones the Commander gave us. 

	

-10 	 MR. PORTER: The policies with regard to the handling 

	

11 	of the waste on board ships? 

	

12 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Yes. 

	

13 	 MR. PORTER: Yes, sir. 

	

14 	 As I mentioned, there are two federal statutes with 

	

15 	application to the medical waste problem, that the Coast 

	

16 	Guard is involved with, enforcing -- one, is the Ocean 

	

17 	Dumping Act, which is codified in Title 33 of the U.S. Code, 

	

18 	1401, and the Refuse Act, codified in 33 U.S.E. Section 407. 

	

19 	 The Ocean Dumping Act prohibits the transportation of 

	

20 	any materials from shore to sea for the purpose of ocean 

	

21 	disposal, unless such =s permitted by the EPA. The keys there 

	

22 	are the transportation from shore to sea for the purpose of

•  

	

23 	dumping. It primarily regulates U.S. citizens and vessets, 

	

24- 	but does also prohibit foreign vessels from transporting 

	

25 	materials from foreign sources for disposal into the U. S. 

14 

1 
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1 	territorial sea or contiguous zone. 

This law provides for a $50,000 civil penalty, and 

also provides for $50,000 and one-year criminal penalty. 

4 	 EPA administers this law. The Coast Guard is active 

5 	in its enforcement at sea. 

6 	 The second Act is the Refuse Act, unfortunately a very 

7 

	

	old act, 1899, basically prohibits the discard of any 

materials, with a few exceptions, such as street water runoff 

9 	and sewage. It prohibits the discard of these materials into 

10 	U.S. navigable waters, which would take it only out to three 

11 	miles from the teritorial sea baseline. 

12 	 The Act provides only for criminal sanctions, $2500 

13 	maximum penalty, and 30 days in jail. It is a misdemeanor. 

14 	the Corps of Engineers is the primary federal agency bole 

15 	enforcement of the Refuse Act, and again, the Coast Guard 

16 	participates as a maritime federal agency in its enforcement. 

17 	 I mentioned that on the 1st of January there will be a 

18 	new set of regulations that wIll have some application in the 

19 	medical waste arena. These regulations will govern the 

20 	discharge of garbage into U. S. waters. They were developed 

21 	pursuant to an international agreemont on maritime pollution, 

22 	and although the final regs are not yet published, they are 

23 	required to prohibit the following: 

24 

25 	 - The discharq of plastics into the seas of the world. 
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1 

2 	 - The discharge of dunnage, lining, package materials, 

3 	which float, within 25 miles of land. 

4 

5 	- The discharge of food wastes, paper, rags, glass, 

6 	metals, and similar materials within 12 mile of land, unless 

7 	they are ground up, in which case they can be discharged_ 

outside of three miles. 

9 

10 	 - The regulations will also -- are also required to 

11 	prohibit the discharge of any garbage from fixed or floating 

12 	platforms engaged in the exploration of mineral resources, 

13 	and the only exception for those types of sources is ground 

14 	food wastes, which can be discharged outside of 12 miles. 

15 

16 	 - The regulations will also provide for special areas 

17 	where discharge may bP-  prohibited in total, except for food 

18 	wastes, again outside of 12 miles. Special Areas, at the 

19 	present time, that have been identified in the international 

20 	arena do not include any U. S. waters, however, the Gulf of 

21 	Mexico is being pursued at this time for dosignatior as a 

22 	special area. Most of the sincial areas are enclosed seas, 

23 	like the Mediterranean, Red Sea, Bladk Sea. 

24 

25 
	

Again, those regulations have not been fnalized : yet. 

• 
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1 	The proposed rules caw out in November. We expect final 

2 	rules within the next few weeks, so that the 1 January 

3 	enforcement data can begin. 

4 	 As far as the Coast Guard's policy with regard to 

5 	response to medical wastes, the Coast Guard considers medical 

6 	wastes to be a wolid waste, which is regulated at the state 

7 	or local level, and considers lead response agencies to be 

8 	state or local health agencies. 

9 	 These wastes can also be considered pollutznts or 

10 	contaminants, within the meaning of CERCLA. Response actions, 

11 	all Coast Guard units have been tasked to receive reports of 

12 	medical wastes washing ashore, and pass the reports on to the 

411 
	13 	federally predesignated Coast Guard on-scene coordinator for 

14 	the area where the wastes are washing ashore. In California, 

15 	those ?redesignated on-scene coordinators are the Coast Guard 

16 	Captain of the Port Offices in Alameda Long Beach, and San 

17 	Diego. 

18 	 The on-scene coordinator is tasked with passing that 

19 	report to the appropriate federal, state, and local agencies, 

20 	and tcprovide assistance as available on scene, and that may 

21 	be providing transportation, surveillance, site security, or 

22 	any of the other special needs that the Coast Guard has 

23 	-spabilities to assist with. 

24 	 The Coast Guard will conduct cleanup actions only if 

25 	the responsible party cannot be identified, and the state and 
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1 	local agencies who we believe have the responsibility arm not 

	

2 	taking appropriate action, and then again, only if the waste 

	

3 	presents an imminent and substantial danger to the public 

health and welfare. 

5 	 Our actions, in that case, would be funded with 

6 	super-fund moneys, and would consist of only the emergency 

	

7 	removal to eliminate the immediate danger to the public 

	

8 	health. That may amount to nothing more than collecting 

	

9 	materials from the beach and getting them to a safe location, 

	

10 	at uliich point in time the immediate danger to the public 

	

11 	health is eliminated, and then it becomes a state or local, 

	

12 	or possibly even an EPA, responsibility from that point on. 

	

13 	This is our standard procedure with regard to chemical 

	

14 	discharges. 

	

15 	 The rest of the statement that I had has to do with 

	

16 	our policy with regard to our own ships. 

	

17 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Let me ask you a couple of questions. 

	

18 	 This report that we had from a San Diego citizen who 

	

19 	noticed medical debris, approximately one square mile, even 

	

20 	though I guess that was not confirmed by at least one 

	

21 	governmental agency that has helicopters to go up and try to 

	

22 	inspect it, but should you see such a barge-like material of 

	

23 	medical debris, you would not view your role as cleaning that 

	

24 	up, or escorting that off of the sea, but simply reporting 

	

25 	that to your designated people in Long Beach, San Diego and 
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1 	Alameda? 

MR. PORTER: If we were to sight a slick, such as was 

reported? We would monitor the movement of the slick at 

4 	most, and report to the designated agencies that we believe 

5 	have primary responsibility. 

6 	 CHAIR DAVIS: And, you only view your clean up 

	

7 	responsibilities as occurring in those cases when there is an 

	

8 	emergency, or an immediate health threat? 

	

9 	 MR. PORTER: Yes, sir. 

	

10 	 And, again, that is consistent with the way we handle 

	

11 	hazardous chemical releases under CERCIA as well. 

	

12 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Have you -- are you aware of any 

	

13 	instances in the last 12 to 18 months of medical debris 

	

14 	floating at sea? 

	

15 	 MR. PORTER: Not other than the report in November, 

	

16 	but that has already been discussed here this morning. 

	

17 	 CHAIR DAVIS: That is where the debris washed ashore 

	

18 	in Orange County? 

	

19 	 MR. PORTER: Oh, I ao familiar with the incident of 

	

20 	the materials washing ashore. We have received reports from 

	

21 	our field commanders, the Captain of the Port in San Diego, 

	

22 	the capta =of the Port in Long Beach, describing their 

	

23 	actions with regard to those specific incidents, and also 

	

24 	have received one message report from the field about the 

	

25 	slick offshore, the reported slick of materials offshore, 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 



78 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

which was investigated by the county and there were no 

	

2 	further sightings. 

	

3 	 CHAIR DAVIS: From your perspective, is there 

	

4 	sufficient coordination between the Coast Guard and the local 

	

5 	and state agencies? 

	

6 	 MR. PORTER: Well, this is -- as far as I know this is 

	

7 	the first -- this recent incident in November was the first 

	

8 	time we've really gotten into it on a joint response effort, 

	

9 	and from what I gather from our field commanders, things went 

	

10 	well in the field. 

	

11 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Leo? 

	

12 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: No. 

13 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you very much. 

	

14 	 I want to go back and I want to just acknowledge two 

	

16 	things. 

	

16 	 I guess Dr. Cottrell from the California Medical 

	

17 	Association has to leave, and I would just ask him if he 

	

18 	could -- if he has any written testimony that we could enter 

	

19 	into the record so we have the benefit of his testimony. I 

	

20 	am sorry he won't be available to testify after lunch. 

	

21 	 And, then I want to go back and pick up Greg Erase 

22 	from the Ventura County's District Attorney's office. After 

23 	his testimony we will adjourn for lunch, and reconvene at 

2:00 p.m. 

25 	 MR. )ROSE: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. My name is 
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Gres Brose. I am a Deputy District Attorney with Ventura 

2 	County. I also serve as the state chair for the • 
3 	Environmental Subcommittee of the Consumer and.Environment  

4 	Protection Council, standing subcommittee of the California 

• 	5 	District Attorney's office. 

6 	 I brought some written material with me this morning. 

7 	First, tha formal report and recommendations on the 

8 	regulation of infectious waste that was prepared by the 

9 	Minnosota'e Attorney General's office, and also an overview 

10 	article that appeared in the National EnvirotImental • 
11 	Enforcement Journal, a Iteurnal that is published by the 

12 	National Aasociation of Attorney Generals. 

• 	13 	 That renort indicates that there are a number of 

14 	different classifications of infectious waste -- as has 

15 	already been covered by a number of the persons who have 

• 	16 	testified this morning -- end they focused on the fact that 

17 	it would be important to d, termine which categories require 

18 	Cae more significant regulation, as opposed to theee that are • 
19 	not of such a degree of hazard as would pose a significant 

20 	hazard to the publie and should be present eutside of a 

21 	regulated area. 

22 	 The Primary point that I would like to make this 

23 	morning -- and it has already been made by a number of 

• 	24 	speakers -- the existing law in California, under the 

25 	Hazardous Waste Control Law, covers infectious wastes, but 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 



80 

1 	there is a real problem there with the definition. If we go 

	

2 	into court and we have got to prosecute one of these cases, 

we have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that that 

	

4 	particular sample of material that we are dealing with, that 

5 	was disposed of at a ncnauthorized point into the e(-. An, in 

6 	fact, carried disease-causing agents in the sample. 

	

7 	 Because of the very type of agents we are talking 

8 	about, they have a very short life in some instances, that 

	

9 	may be impossible to prove, but the actual dan4c_-=' to the 

	

10 	public who could have been expo'.1d any time those agents were 

	

11 	present, and could be very real and very significant. 

	

12 	 I think that what we need to focus on in the law, is 

	

13 	to have some easily identifiable categories of materials 

	

1* 	that, in fact, the medical community and the scientific 

	

15 	community agree is material that is, in fact, something that 

	

16 	poses as a significant hazard and harm to the public. We 

	

17 	need to have categories that are defined per se as being 

	

18 	infectious wastes under t.-se circumstances. 

	

19 	 The second main point that I would make would be to 

	

20 	the extent that there are other categories that are not as 

	

21 	critical to the health, but pose a substantial concern to the 

	

22 	public, and something that we definitely don't want to see on 

	

23 	the beaches of cur state, there shouL, be a separate 

	

24 	provision of law, perhaps similar to existing law in the Fish 

	

25 	and Game Code, one that we've used quite a bit in our office, 
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1 	Section 56.50 of the Fish and Game Code, prohibits the placing 

	

2 	or causing to be placed where it can be passed into the 

	

3 	waters of the State of California petroleum products or other 

	

4 	induatrial wastes. 

• 5 	 A similar provision that would deal with those medical 

	

6 	wastes that are not infectious wastes, but nevertheless are 

	

7 	ones that you don"; want in the waters of the State of 

	

8 	California, will give prosecutors a tool to address those 

	

9 	types of violations as well. 

	

10 	 As part of that legislation I would suggest that the 
4D 

	

11 	definition for the responsible party be as broad as the 

	

12 	existing definition for the responsible party in the 

• 13 	hazardous waste control law, so that a person who would cause 

	

14 	this could include political subdivision or other 

	

15 	governmental agencies, as well as an individual or a 

	

16 	corporation. 

	

17 	 In summary the existing law that deals with the 

	

18 	illegal disposal of infectious wastes carries very • 
19 	significant penalties, allows a prosecuting attorney to 

20 	prosecute that case potentially as a felony, but we need to 

21 	have a very secure and certain way of proving that that 

22 	material was, in fact, infectious, and a standardized 

23 	category of wastes, I believe, would be the best way of - .ping 

24 	that. 

25 	 Thank you. 
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1 	 CHAIR DAVIS: I just want to ask you a couple of 

4, 
	2 	questions. 

3 	 I understand the distinction you want to make between 

4 	basically waste that poses, as you say, a significant hazard, 

0 	5 	and waste that is deemed not to be infectious, but let me be 

6 	the devil's advocate for a second. 

7 	 Do you -- from the perspective of the fishing 

41 	8 	industry, which is more than a $1 billion .L:Austry in 

9 	California -- is that distinction actually necessary? I 

10 	mean, you've got -- as I mentioned earlier this morning -- 
• 

11 	the fish in Sanca Monica Bay are too toxic to eat, and I have 

12 	got figures here that irlicate that about a third of the 

41 	13 	nation's shell fish beds have been closed because of 

14 	contamination. I wonder if we would look at it from a Ifirger 

15 	perspective, not just simply confine our thoughts to the 

16 	threat to the health of the people using the ocean, but to 

17 	the problems of insuring that the ocean survives, and also 

18 	the problems that the fishing industries encounter, whether 
9 

19 	or not we need to make that distinction? 

20 	 MR. BROSE: Mr. Chairman, I agree with that 

41 	21 	philosophy. 

22 	 Let me add that I think that any impact 154r che 

23 	environment that ,auses degradation or harm to that extent 

41 	24 	should be vigorously prosecuted with a felony prosecution. 

25 	 What I am suggesting is that there are some materials 
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1 	that are, in fact, classified as medical wastes that are more 

	

2 	in the realm of standard refuse, where still a criminal 
• 

	

3 	prosecution may in deed be highly appropriate, and I think it 

	

4 	would be appropriate to draw the distinction so that those 

	

5 	areas that, in fact, are ones that degrade the environment, 

	

6 	should carry even higher penalties than a standard refuse. 

	

7 	 CHAIR DAVIS: What about -- do you have any 

41 	8 	suggestions about increased civil penalties? 
.6 

	

9 	 MR. BROSE: I think increased civil penalties would be 

• 
10 	appropriate under the second area. 

	

11 	 Under the existing law as it stands right now, the 

	

12 	Hazardous Waste Control Law, we have the option of bringing 

• 13 	the strict liability action, and that carries a penalty of 

	

14 	$10,000 for each violation, or $10,000 a day. 

	

15 	 For those where we can show intent, the penalties go 

• 	16 	up to $25,000 for each violation. Where there is a very 

	

17 	limited ability to prosecute is in the more generalized area 

	

18 	of ways that would not pose an infectious threat, and that is 
• 

	

19 	quite limited at this point. 

	

20 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Okay, thank you very mach. 

• 21 	 MR. BROSE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

	

22 	 CHAIR DAVIS: We will recess until 2:00 o'clock, and 

	

23 	again I would invite Dr. Cottrell, if he is still here, to 

• 24 	provide the staff with whatever written testimony he might 

	

25 	have, so we could have the benefit of that in our review of 

• 
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1 	these materials. 

	

2 	 We will recess until 2:00 o'clock. 

3 

5 	[Recess: 12:20 p.m. to 2:05 p.m.] 

6 

7 • 

	

8 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: Ladies and gentlemen, if we may 

	

9 	resume the meeting of the Commission. 

	

10 	 I would like to ask Dr. Joe Devinny to please step 

	

11 	forward and give his testimony. 

	

12 	 Dr. Devinny, how are you? 

• 13 	 DR. DEVINNY: Fine. 

	

14 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: Welcome. 

	

15 	 DR. DEVINNY: Thank you. 
• 

	

16 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: Thanks for coming and we know 

	

17 	you are under your own time pressures -- 

• 
18 	 DR. DEVINNY: Yes. 

	

19 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: -- so, we'd love to hear your 

	

20 	testimony. 

	

21 	 DR. DEVINNY: Thank you. 

	

22 	 I would like to thank the Commission for inviting me 

	

23 	to Game here, and I am happy to represent the University of 

41 

	

24 	Southern California, and its Environmental Engineering 

	

25 	Program at this hearing. 
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1 	 I have been asked to give a brief but more general 

	

2 	overview, I think, than some of the things we have heard 

	

3 	already today. We do have to be aware that pollution comes 

	

4 	to the ocean by a great many routes. We have to look 

	

5 	carefully at all of those possible routes to have some hope 

	

6 	of being able to control the problem of medical wastes in the 

	

7 	ocean. 

• 8 	 I heard some comments on sewage discharges this 

	

9 	morning which I have to disagree with, to some degree. The 

	

10 	Southern California bight does receive over one billion • 

	

11 	gallons a day of sewage discharges, but I believe that the 

	

12 	traditional methods that we have for sewege treatment and 

• 13 	disposal, if they are properly followed, are adequate to 

	

14 	protect the ocean environment, and particularly to prevent 

	

15 	that route from being a source of medical waste in the ocean. 

• 16 	 By "properly done" I mean to include secondary 

	

17 	treatment for all facilities discharging into the ocean, and 

18 	grudgingly, I think the municipalities are generally coming • 
19 	.1.:; line with that, and that will happen before long. 

20 	 It should include the sludge ban, that is the sewage 

• 21 	sludge which is generated during the treatment process, and 

22 	should not go in the ocean. And, it must include a vigorous 

2:s 	program of what is called "source control," that is where 

• 24 	each municipality is responsible for monitoring sewage 

25 	discharges -- or discharges to the sewage system within its 
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1 	area of service, and making sure that hazardous and toxic 

	

2 	waste discharges to the sewage system are minimized. 

	

3 	 All three of these things rut together will mean that 

	

4 	we are discharging Sewage to the ocean, I think, in a way 

• 5 	which is not incompatible with the protection of public 

6 	health. 

	

7 	 We should remember that sewage itself is a highly 

• 
infectious waste. The primarily -- at least the number one 

	

9 	rationale for proper sewage treatment is to prevent that 

	

10 	infectious waste from becoming a threat to public health, and 
• 

	

11 	as long as things are done well, it can be done that way. 

	

12 	 A final concern there is, that we must maintain a 

	

13 	program in these municipalities of appropriate routine 

	

14 	maintenance. We have all seen several times in the news 

	

15 	lately about breaks in lines, and clogged lines, which have 

	

16 	caused the discharge of raw sewage to wetlands, and 

	

17 	eventually to the ocean. Of course, that constitutes a 

	

18 	serious infectious waste problem. It could be anything is 

	

19 	getting into the ocean during those periods of time, and so 

	

20 	we have to exercise some serious diligence to make sure that 

• 21 	those things don't happen again. 

	

22 	 Again, that technology is well in hand. It is 

	

23 	primarily a matter of having the appropriate funding, and the 

	

24 	appropriate will, to make sure that pr'sper maintenance is 

	

25 	done. 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 
• 



87 • 
1 	 A second major source of waste to the ocean, and one 

• 2 	which is much more difficult to deal with is the storm 

3 	drains. Just an important thing to note, of course, storm 

4 	drains are those pipes and channels and rivers and collection 

• 5 	systems which collect the water which falls directly onto the 

6 	streets and buildings, and washes into the gutters on the 

7 	sides of the streets, and eventually ends up in the ocean. 
• 

8 	 On its way that water can pick up anything which is on 

9 	the ground, and that includes oil and other petroleum 

• 
10 	products which may be present on the streets. It includes all 

11 	sorts of trash -- and I would emphasize that that storm drain 

12 	system is a major source of litter, including paper, and 

• 13 	plastic, and styrofoam, and no doubt including sometimes 

14 	medical wastes, which may be left anywhere that the rain 

15 	water can wash it away. 

• 	
16 	 I say this is much more difficult to deal with. The 

17 	amounts of water are very large. The flows are extremely 

• 
18 	irregular, that is, they are very large for short periods of 

19 	time, and zero for most of the rest of the time. There are no 

20 	treatment systems which handle this waste. Our only 

• 21 	effective hope for dealing with that waste, once again, is 

22 	the source control. In order to keep the medical wastes, and 

23 	other toxic wastes, out of the storm drain system, we have to 

• 	
24 	prevent people from dumping them on the ground, from 

25 	surreptitiously putting them into the storm drains and 
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1 	channels, and et) on. 

	

2 	 And, so that is going to be a harder job. We are 
• 

	

3 	dealing with a great many small illegal disposals instead of 

4 	a few point mources, which are easier to needle. 

4P 	5 	 Agricultural run off in agricultural areas which may 

6 	contribute pesticides, petroleum products, and fertilizers, 

	

7 	to the ocean are a similar difficult problem, because there 

41 
8 	are many small sauces which add up to a single large problem, 

9 	and which are therefore quite difficult til% deal with. 

	

10 	 Perhaps a little bit away from the medical waste 
41 

	

11 	problem, I think one thing that can be done about that, and 

	

12 	perhaps the time is finally coming for this, is to begin to 

4, 	13 	insist on the manufactures of litter-causing materials 

	

14 	like styrofoam cups, and styrofoam fast food containers -- to 

	

15 	begin to make materials which are biodegradable, or at least 

• 16 	photo-degradable, because it is very difficult -- it is going 

	

17 	to be very difficult for us to control the litter problem. 

	

18 	 The litter problem is a major threat to the aesthetic 

	

19 	character of the ocean, to many individual species, birds, 

	

20 	and seals, which can become tangled in the litter , and also 

	

21 	to the wetlands. It is a very unfortunate experience to 

	

22 	vist, for instance, Ballona Creek, and see the chain link 

	

23 	fences that surround the area have become windbreaks which 

	

24 	collect huge windrows of various kinds of styrofoam and paper 

	

25 	and all sorts of things which have blow4 up against the 
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1 	fences. So, I believe the storm drains are a serious 

	

2 	problem. 

	

3 	 Probably a major source --and I am sure we have all 

	

4 	come to suspect this, in what we have heard so far -- special 

	

5 	kinds of trash Gael pollutants, and including medical wastes 

	

6 	for the ocean, are boats and ships. The regulatory problem 

	

7 	is particularly severe here because you can't put an 

41 

	

8 	enforcement officer on every boat. It is very difficult to 

	

9 	follow them. And, given that ships and boats have problems 

• 
10 	with storace, not much space to work with, it is very easy 

	

11 	for someone to just solve their waste disposal problem by 

	

12 	throwing it over the side. I think this has to be a target 

• 13 	for impmved enforcement in the future, but I see that as a 

	

14 	very setcious -- very difficult job to deal with. 

	

15 	 1 think ona step, if we -- if I can talk more 

	

16 	specifically again, about hazardous wastes and medical 

	

17 	wastes -- one step which I haven't heal-3 seecifically 
7 

	

18 	suggested here today, but I would like to make, i5 that waste 

	

19 	disposal requirements for medical facilities should include 

	

20 	the requirement to label the waste with the name of the 

	

21 	facility it comes from. I think this could be done very 

	

22 	easily. We could simply require that any time a facility 

	

23 	puts together a red bag of medical wastes, that this bag 

	

24 	should include a label inside the bag with the name of the 

	

25 	Zicility on it, and then later on when some of this material 
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1 	is discovered in the environment we will know where to begin 

	

2 	the search. Of course, it may not be the facility itself who 

	

3 	is at fault, but we are going to know who they are paying to 

	

4 	handle their wastes, so we can trace back and find out who it 

	

5 	is who is doing the illegal dumping. I think that could be 

	

6 	done without great difficulty. 

	

7 	 I would emphasize a fer points that have been made • 

	

8 	here earlier on about providing a good method for disposal, 

	

9 	as well as regulating against poor methods of disposal. I waE 

41 	10 	a little disturbed at one of the early morning speakers who 

	

11 	vigorously opposed every poszible method for disposing of 

	

12 	medical wastes. You can't do that. There has to be some 

	

13 	approved method, and the system will be far more effective if 

	

14 	that approved method is reasonably economical and reasonably 

	

15 	convenient for people to use. 

	

16 	 I think there have bees several good suggestions about 

	

17 	allowing hospitals to get into this business for more than 

• 
18 	just their own waste. I would encourage the regulations to 

	

19 	allow that, and to allow the hospitals to make money at it, 

	

20 	that is, to charge fees for the waste disposal services hay 

• 21 	are providing, so that they will have the incentive to to it 

	

22 	well, and the incentive to encourage customers to use that 

	

23 	service, and so that they can have the money necessary to 

41 

	

24 	comply with regulations to enter that business vigorously and 

	

25 	with the proper initiative, rather than being forced 
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1 	reluctantly into it. 

	

2 	 I might also want to emphasize that among the possible 

	

3 	ways of disposal of medical wastes, I think far and away the 

	

4 	best one, in terms of fundmental environmental protection, is 

	

5 	incineration. This is preferable to land disposal where the 

	

6 	material, although it may be safe for a long time, is going 

	

7 	to be there forever, and we nave to be concerned about it in 

0 
that sense. 

	

9 	 Incineration is a final solution to the problem. The 

	

10 	high temperatures are generally very effective at destroying 

	

11 	the infectious nature of the waste, and the ash, although it 

	

12 	may still be a disposal problem, is a relatively small 

	

13 	disposal problem in comparison to the very large amounts of 

	

14 	ash we have to get rid of anyway, so I think incineration is 

	

15 	the way we may eventually want to go. 

41 	16 	 To get back to perhaps the more genera/ things, just 

	

17 	on a final note, I think with our concern for toxic and 

	

18 	hazardous wastes in the ocean environment, we have to be 
0 

	

19 	careful we don't move eway from some of the traditional 

	

20 	problems which are less in the headlines these days, but 

• 21 	which remain important as ever, and I am thinking in terms of 

	

22 	things like coastal wildlife protection, rocky shore 

	

23 	ecosystem protection, wetlands protection, fisheries control, 

41 

	

24 	the wildlife in thc ocean off Southern California is still in 

	

25 	decline, and the primary reasons -- or perhaps the most 
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1 	important reasons for that decline -- remain over use, over 

2 	fishing, too much removal, too much damage by too many people 

3 	at the shoreline. 

4 	 With respect to wetlands, about 90 percent of the 

5 	wetlands whiah existed in California before civilization has 

6 	been lost, so if anyone suggests to you that we can 

7 	compromise on the remaining wetlands, I hope yot... will not 

• 8 	accept that compromise. It has already been made, and we 

9 	have lost a great deal. 

10 	 Well, I ti ink you for this opportunity the speak. 

11 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: Thank you. 

12 	 When do you have to be back at USC for your -- what is 

13 	your time frame? Do you have time for a couple of questions? 

14 	 DR. DEVINNY: Sure, please do. 

15 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: You opened up by mentioning 

• 16 	that the main answer to the sewage die 	-- and a lot of 

17 	what we are talking about here, medical waste and infectious 

18 	waste materials, would go into the sewer system -- you were • 
19 	assuming in your opening statement, I believe -- 

20 	 R. DEVINNY' Well, I think, if I could say -- 

• 21 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: -- are you assuming that? Do a 

12 	lot of medical wastes and infectious waste materials -- 

23 	 DR. DEVINNY: I am sure that some does. 

24 	 vier; CHAIR MC CARTHY: -- go into the sewer system? 

25 	 DR. DEVINIU: Probably not the solid materJela, like 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-770 
• 



93 

	

1 	syringes or bandages or that sort of thing, but perhaps some 

• 
2 	liquid materials do, yes. 

	

3 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: What kinds of materials? 

	

4 	 DR. DEVINNY: I am not sure. I am not very familiar 

40 	5 	with, specifically, hospital procedures. 

	

6 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: Okay, if a fair amount of 

	

7 	medical or infectious waste materials goes into the sewer 
41 	

8 	system, you mentioned that secondary treatment systems are 

	

9 	the main answer. 

41 
	10 	 DR. DEVINNY: Yes, I believe so. 

	

11 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: All right. 

	

12 	 You know that the feder..al government has repealed its 

• 13 	financing mechanism? 

	

14 	 DR. DEVINNY: Yes. 

	

15 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: And, that the state, w►iich was 

• 	
16 	picking up 22.5 percent is not really going to be in a 

	

17 	position to replace the federal share. 

	

18 	 DR. DEVINNY: Yes. 
• 

	

19 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: In other words now, virtually 

	

20 	all of the funding cos=,s for creating secondary trextment 

	

21 	systems would fall on local government -- 

	

22 	 DR. DEVINNY: Yes.- 	 1 

	

23 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: -- and as a realistic matter,  

	

24 	the likelihood of secondary treatment systems being 

	

25 	constructed in major urban areas is diminishing rapidly. 

O 
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1 	 I will give you an example: In San Diego, had it 

• 
2 	opted to go forward with constructing a secondary treatment 

3 	system 10 or 11 years ago, it would have cost a total of $347 

4 	million, only one/eighth of which would have been paid for by 

• 5 	local government. Today, the same system would cost 61.5 

6 

	

	billion, and the total cost would fall on the City of San 

Diego. How they resolve that problem is unknown to anyone, 

• 
8 	because what you are talking about is probably an increase in 

9 	sewage treatment fees to every household that is five to ten 

10 	fold. 

11 	 Now how do cities in America cope with this kind of 

12 	problem if they failed to apply to the federal government at 

• 13 	an early enough stage, and of course, coastal areas and 

14 	cities -- that are shoreline cities, have some pretty 

15 	sizeable problems, and somewhat connected with what we are -- 
s 

16 	how do we get at that pfoblem? The financing is gone for 

17 	secondary treatment systems. 

• 
18 	 Got any good ideas? 

19 	 DR. DEVINNY: tloe  that is obviously a very difficult 

20 	problem. 

• 21 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: So the idea of a secondary 

22 	treatment center now is becoming more and more theoretical 

23 	and less and less real, because the federal government has 

24 	withdrawn from funding those programs, and the state is in 

25 	the process of doing the same thing unless there is some 
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1 	public policy outcry. 

	

2 	 How do you -- when you were talking about labeling • 
3 	medical wastes, did you mean at the site? Where the medical 

	

4 	waste are generated, of course, you were talking about 

• 5 	segregation of the medical wastes at the site? 

	

5 	 DR. DEVINNY: Yes, that is right. 

	

7 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: At the source. 

	

8 	 DR. DEVINNY: Typically in a hospital, you can see in 

	

9 	the rooms or in the hallways, holders which have red 

	

10 	containers, where they put -- 

	

11 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: Do you see any reason, for 

	

12 	medical waste disposal to be treated differently than other 

	

13 	kinds of toxic wastes? Wouldn't they go to a common 

	

14 	incinerator? Are they more dangerous to be treated 

	

15 	differently than many other kinds of toxic: wastes? 

	

16 	 DR. DEVINNY: No, I wouldn't think so, and if the 

	

17 	incineration, which is adequate for toxic wales, would also 

	

18 	be adequate for medical wastes, certainly. 

	

19 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: Okay, 

	

20 	 Any questions? 

	

21 	 Jim, did you have a question? 

	

22 	 COMMISSIONER 79cKER: Just briefly, what is the impact 

	

23 	of the untreated sewage now if it gets into the ocean in 

24 	California, in your opinion? 

25 
	

DR. DEVINNY: Well, In most cases. we are not talking 
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1 	about untreated sewage -- or excuse me -- 

2 	 COMMISSIONER TUCKER: I am talking about in the 

3 	instances of the spills that we've had, like in the Santa 

	

4 	Monica Bay and other places, and to the extent that there 

	

5 	isn't going to be the secondary treatment available? You 

	

6 	know, I am wondering why the experience has shown so far as 

	

7 	to the impact of these kinds of spills -- 

• 	
8 	 DR. DEVINNY: Well, the spills are a particular 

	

9 	problem because in general they are releasing completely 

	

10 	untreated sewage and it goes in right at the shoreXine, in 

	

11 	mIparison to prrTer outfalls where it is disposed of 200 

	

12 	feet deep several miles offshore. 

	

13 	 So, you have this infectious materials  Hugel, At* 

	

14 	is right in tha shoreline, and the most immediate off 	is 

	

15 	that the berh has to be closed for public health ressones. 

	

16 	Various indicators of possible disease traftsmissiort gees up, 

	

17 	so people can't be allowed out there. 

	

18 	 At the same time, that sewage will contain all sorts 

of trash, conceivably some of it medical materials that have 

	

20 	been improperly disposed of, There may be some ecological 

	

21 	effects, although those are usually fairly small, I think, 

	

22 	because a spill usually only occurs for a short time. 

	

23 	 So, the mus',, immediate effect, I think, is the threat 

	

24 	to public health, and then this has the necessity for closing 

	

25 	the beach, which is an inconvenience for its user and a 
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1 	financial threat to the people who have beach-side 

2 	businesses, and so on. 

3 	 In the greater case of disposing of sewage with only 

4 	primary treatment, that is worse because it is a chronic 

• 	discharge. It is not so bad that it is going to be 

6 	discharged from an outfall which is away from the shoreline. 

7 	The effects are that you may have severe contamination of the 

8 	ocean floor in the area of the discharge, and ontawination 

9 	may easily include tc.xic materials, because there are some 

10 	toxic substances inevitably in sewage, which will not be 

11 	removed by the treatment process in the absence of secondary 

12 	treatment. And, so you will end up with a probably fairly 

13 	localized -- by which I mean a few miles in extent -- region 

14 	of seriously contaminated ocean floor, and that is the kind 

15 	of thing that contributes to problems like the crokers being 

16 	unfit for human consumption. 

17 	 COMMISSIONER TUCKER: How good is the research, so 

le 	fart  in to 	of what the impact -- long term impact of those 

19 	outfalls is? 

20. 	 DR. DEVINNY: I think I would have to say it is at 

41 	21 	least reasonably good. 

22 	 People have been working on those problems for a long 

23 	time. I think it is good enough to the point where we can 

24 	say we have a general feel for the extent of the problem. We 

25 	have a pretty good idea that secondary treatment and the 

• 
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sludge ban would be an answer. We are finding out that is 

2 	financially very difficult to do. 
41 

	

3 	 COMMISSIONER TUCKER: Okay, thank you. 

4 	 VICE CHAIR MC CARTHY: Thank you very much, Dr. 

5 	Devinny. 

6 	 Mr. Wesley Marx, member of the National Academy of 

7 	Sciences Panel on Marine Monitoring in the Southern 

8 	California Bight. 

9 	 Welcome, glad to have you. 

	

10 	 MR. MARX: Thank you. I appreciate being here, and I 

	

11 	appreciate the opportunity to testify before the State Lands 

	

12 	Commission, one of the bright spots in our coastal protection 

	

13 	has been the work of this Commission with other state 

	

14 	agencies on protecting and restoring our wetland heritage, 

	

15 	particularly in the San Francisco Bay area. 

40 

	

16 	 Getting groups like this together for a compreheAsive 

	

17 	look at our coastal problems is also laudatory. Pollutiot on 

	

18 	a watery planet has a way of mocking those who would abide by 
41 

	

19 	arbitrary, political boundaries. 

	

20 	 Despite major inv,t3tments in rollution control and 

41 	21 	some major reductions in certain iolIutant loads, our coastal 

	

22 	waters continue to be haunted by beach closure signs, seafood 

	

23 	health warnings, periodic closure of mariculture projects in 

	

24 	Carlsbad, and in the Santa Barbara Channel, plastics that can 

	

25 	maims and kill marine life, chemical hotspots, and the wash 
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1 	up of medical debris including these antiseptic agents for 

	

2 	biological and chemical warfare. 

	

3 	 Effective protection of our coastal environment, from 

	

4 	the competition to use it as an all-purpose dump, either by 

• 5 	intent, or by accident, would imply a comprehensive system 

	

6 	able to sort out multiple impacts, transcend arbitrary 

	

7 	political boundaries, and coordinate sometimes conflicting or 

overlapping legislative mandates; however, our ability to 

	

9 	predict and monitor, much less control, this waste onslaught 

	

10 	can have serious gaps and shortcomings. 

	

11 	 I think, as a previous speaker has mentioned, controls 

	

12 	can vary greatly from the various sources that are coming 

	

13 	into the marine environment, and also the effectiveness of 

	

14 	controls that do exist can also vary. For instance, controls 

	

15 	on municipal and industrial sewage discharges have focused on 

	

36 	contaminant concentration within the water column, but these 

	

17 	contaminants can settle out and accumulate at much higher 

	

18 	levels in the sediments below, and at the sea surface above. 

	

19 	These contaminants are the toxic materials that can be taken 

	

20 	up in the marine food chain where they can prevent Potential 

	

21 	risks to marine life and seafood consumers. 

22 	 Chairman Davis was mentioning about the possible 

23 	application of the public trust doctrine to this problem of 

	

24 	where the tidelands, and the submerged lands, are becoming 

	

25 	virtually toxic warehouses, in certain areas, and possibly 
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20 

• 21 

22 

23 

24- 	our ports, and more patrol resources for an already over 

25 	extended Coast Guard. 

	

1 	looking at the public trust doctrine to see if there is 

	

2 	applicability. 

	

3 	 In the Santa Monica Bay area alone, there are five 

	

4 	chemical hotspots that have been identified, and three of 

	

5 	them are located at the terminuses of outfalls. I think this 

	

6 	would be very interesting to try to pursue something in this 

vein, because certainly our tidelands and submerged lands -- 

and this involves lake beds as well as the sea bed -- are 

	

9 	being impacted in a very long term manner by this problem of 

	

10 	toxic in the marine environment. 

	

11 	 You have heard testimony about this Annex 5 MARPOL 

	

12 	that will be coming into effect. One Of the provisions of 

	

13 	MARPOL is that the plastics are not to be dumped at sea by 

	

14 	ships, and this is through the entire ocean and not just 

	

15 	coastal waters. This international convention exempts one 

	

16 	major source, government owned vessels, including warships, a 

	

17 	major generator of plastic debris. 

	

18 	 When our Congress, the U.S. Congress, ratified this 

	

19 	international convention, Congress went beyond the 

international convention, and it is requiring that government 

vessels, including the Navy, come into compliance by 1992. 

Given the extent of the oceans, this ban will require 

extensive publc education, provision of waste faclaities tn 

100 
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1 	 The National Association of Attorneys General is 

2 	considering a recommendation that state officials share 

3 	concurrent jurisdiction with federal officials to at least 12 

4 	miles out tL zetter enforce anti-dumping regulations. State 

enforcement powers generally end at the three-mile 

6 	territorial sea. Hearing some of the testimony on the 

7 	infectious medical wastes, I think this is something that the 

8 	state should perhaps be seriously considering, trying to get 

9 	sow: concurrent jurisdiction with the federal agencies. 

10 	 Major shortcomings also are cropping up in another 

11 	vital policy area, and that is the protection and restoration 

12 	of critical wetland habitats that help sustain our fish 

13 	stocks, and our water foul. The previous speaker has again 

14 	alluded to the importance of these wetland habitats. As you 

15 	are aware, the Corps of Engineer in the Section 404 Program, 

16 	must issue permits for wetland alterations subject to review 

17, 	and recommendation by resource agencies like EPA, and 

18 	resource agency .:3 like your agency. However, a major cause 

19 	of wetland loss, normal farming and draining that occur in 

20 	wetlands, in nut regulated. What is left to regulate faces 

21 	inconsistent reviews. 

22 	 The GAO found -- the General Accounting OffiCs found 

23 	in certain project sites, the corps of Engineers would 

24 	determine that wetlands cover 20 percent of the site, the 

25 	resource agencies, 80 percent. Besides this split vision, 
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General Accounting Office found a lack of monitoring to 

	

2 	insure compliance with permit conditions. where illegal or 

	

3 	unpermitted wetland activity did occur resource agencies 

	

4 	would recommend penalties and restoration of thoa wetlands, 

the -Zorps instead would issue after-the-fact permits. 

Today Orange County proposes to build a 

	

7 	hillside-hugging tollway 10-lanes wide, through the coastal 

	

8 	San Joaquin hills. The up and down roller coaster 

	

9 	right-of-way will impact not one, not two, but three wetland 

	

10 	areas, while generating some eight million cubic yards of 

	

11 	excess excavated spoil. 

	

12 	 Clearly, we need a before-the-fact process here and 

	

13 	elsewhere, if we truly want to protect what coast land 

	

14 	wetlands heritage we have and we can keep. 

	

15 	 Environmental groups, researchers, and regulators, 

	

16 	differ over the severity and scope of coastal pollution, and 

	

17 	proper levels of habitat protection. However, there is a 

	

18 	growing consensus on the need for improved monitoring that 

	

19 	could serve as an early warning sign of environmental stress. 

	

20 	An estimated $18 million is spent by public and private 

	

21 	agencies on marine monitoring in the Southern California 

22 	region. However, much of this monitoring has been conducted 

23 	on a piece-meal basic, in response to specific legislative or 

24 	regulatory mandates. There is no integrated regional 

25 	perspective that cuts across agency lines. 
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1 	 The voluminous data generated by some dischargers 

receives limited analysis and interpretation. Regulators 

	

3 	like the State Water Resources Control Board, have limited 

	

4 	budget resources to do such tasks. The dumping of dredge 

	

5 	spoils has no post-sampling to monitor fate of any toxins in 

	

6 	the spoil and the degree to which they-may leach out into the 

	

7 	surrounding environment. 

	

8 	 Lines of communications can be ragged. One member of 

	

9 	a local resource agency told me that he had to file a freedom 

	

10 	of information request to obtain sampling data from another 

	

11 	agency. The agency later informed him that the sampling data 

	

12 	had been losta There is now greater interest among zany 

	

13 	agencies that do monitornq to share resources, avoid 

	

14 	duplication, and work towards an integrated regional 

	

15 	perspective. 

	

16 	 The state Water Resources Control Board has created a 

	

17 	Southern California wide review committee 'to help accomplish 

	

18 	this. California Fish and Game Department, and the State 

	

19 	Water Resources Control Board, work together on the State 

	

20 	Mussel Watch Program. The State Water Resources Control 

	

21 	Board is also investigating the possibility of sediment 

	

22 	controlled toxicity mechanisms to try and control this toxic 

	

23 	deposition in our sea beds. 

	

24 	 The Southern California Coastal Water Research 

	

25 	Project, under contract with the National Research Council, 
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has developed a review of mfr-mitorng activities in the 

	

2 	Southern California bight area. The Marine Bort'd of the 

	

3 	National Research Council is performing a comprehensive study 

	

4 	of marine programs, including a report, as I mentioned, on 

	

5 	the bight. 

	

6 	 There is also the opportunity for citizens to 

	

7 	participate in monitoring eforts. The U.S. Fish and 

	

8 	Wildlife Servic uses volunteer groups to monitor 

	

9 	distribution and abundance of birds in Lo_ -Ac Francisco t",ay, 

	

10 	and to watch for signs of illegal or unpermittai wetland 

11 	alterations. 

12 	 The Puget Sound and Chesapeake Bay regions also rely 

13 	on citizen monitoring. In the 1987 Marine Plastics Pollution 

14 	Control Act, Congress directed the Secretary of rommerce, in 

15 	cooperation with EPA to encourage the formation of volunteer 

40 
16 	groups to be designation as citizen pollution patrols, to 

17 	assist in monitoring, reporting, clean up, and prevention of 

18 	ocean and shoreline pollution. This type of citizen 

19 	involvivment will really be critical in addressing this 

20 	problem of non-point source pollution because of the vast 

40 	21 	extent and area that has to be covered in inventorying where 

22 	these non-point sources are evolving. 

23 	 The Center for Environmental Education is also working 

24 	with the California Coastal Commission to develop data cards. 

25 	When they are doing these beach clean ups, there is now 
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1 	enough scientific information that has peen developed that 

0 
	2 	the waste can be categorized by possible sources, including 

3 	whether it is offshore or land based. The Center for 

4 	Environmental Education, being involved in these beach clean 

40 	5 	up campaigns throughout the American shoreline, is going to 

use these data cards to begin to assess how our tiontrols are 

working in this beach litter problem, including plastics, and 

8 	I think this could be a very important program, in that, for 

the state to be able to find out what is being cast up cn the 

10, 	beach each year, and what sort of trends are occurring, and 

11 	whether certain laws are relating to degradable plastics, the 

12 	degradable beverage yokes, whether this type of approach is 

13 	working, and where we may have gaps. 

14 	 In listening to the testimony on initious medical 

15 	wastes, certainly this would be one aspect now to be looked 

16 	at closely from year to year, seeing what typig of medical 

17 	debris, what sorts of waste are continuing to be cast ur on 

13 	our beaches. 

19 	 One of the points bought up of the infectious medical 

20 	wastes -- and noticed Chairmai, Datois was questioning Mr. 

MO 	21 	Merryman rather closely on what is the basis for not having 

22 	the hospitais accept wastes off site, even though the medical 

23 	clinic may be only a block away -- the Office of Technology 

24 	Assessment did a national review on issues in medical wastes, 

25 	and they felt that one of the problems for hospitals 
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1 	accepting waste off site is a liability problem. 

	

2 	 I was talking with this professor Davinnr and Jia Rote 

	

3 	during lunch, and if therm is a liability problem this may be 

	

4 	something that could be addressed at the state level. 

5 	 I certainly enjoyed the chance to talk with you, and 

6 	touch in on some of the issues that have keen raised hewe, 

	

7 	rather than do a formal type of presentation or statement. I 

	

8 	wanted to tie-in ‘iith the testimony you have been receiving 

	

9 	and I look forward to the other hearings that will be going 

	

10 	on throughout the year in addressing this issuft. It has to 

	

11 	be addressed at the state level in a comprehensive manner and 

	

12 	in a cooperatiVg manner throughout the many agencies that are (- 

	

13 	involved in this area. 

	

14 	 Thank you. 

	

15 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you, Mr. Marx. 

	

16 	 Do you have any questions? 

	

17 	 [No response.] 

	

18 	 Jewel Sikes is the next witness, representing BPI 

	

19 	Medical Wastes. 

	

20 	 MS. SIKES: Thank yo 

21 	 Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, thank you 

22 	for inviting us. 

23 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you for being hef 

24 	 MS. SIKES: You bet. 

25 	 There has been a lot of testimony today, and I am 
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going to kind of pass over a lot of the written testimony 

2 	that I have given you, since I dor't want to be redundant and 

3 	take all ttfiernoon. 

4 	 BFI Medical Waste is a an offsite treatment for the 

5 	management and treatment of medical waste. We currently are 

the largest company doing this throughout the United States. 

We currently are servicing over 8000 medical facilities 

8 	throughout the country in 44 states. 

Browning Ferris Industries is our parent company who 

10 	is primarily involved in solid waste collection and disposal. 

11 	When they made the decision to get into the medical waste 

12 	business, they felt it was appropriate to create a separate 

13 	division for this, due to the unique handling and treatment 

14 	technologies necessary for this type po waste stream. Our 

15 	roots are in California, however. 

16 	 We are a California based company. We started helm in 

7 	the early '70r as the result of the medical community having 

18 	a lot of needs for offsite treatment. Air quality standards 

were increasing, and our first treatment facility was wilt 

20 	in 1974 in Huntington Beach. We have expanded those 

21 	throughout California. We now have treatment facilities in 

22 	San Diego, Los Angeles, and Fresno. 

23 	 I guess, with respect to our specific practices in Los 

24 	Angeles and Orange Counties, our permitted treatment 

25 	facilitier handle the infectious waste, which is defined by 
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1 	statute in the Health and Safety Code. We currently are 

	

2 	servicing, just in those two counties, over 1000 medical 

	

3 
	

facilities, and they range anylithere from the large acute care 

	

4 
	

hospital generator, to the small physician's office. 

	

5 
	 The wastes we primarily are receiving are the disposal 

	

6 
	patient waste items, which includes needles and syringes, 

	

7 
	

laboratory cultures, and other contaminated items with either 

	

8 
	

blood or body fluids. 

	

9 
	

In Los Angeles and Orange Counties, and some of the 

	

10 
	surrounding areas, we process out of our Vernon facility 1.3 

	

11 
	million pounds of medical wastes per month. As you can see, 

	

12 
	

there is a great amount of this waste that is coming out of 

	

13 
	

the medical community currently. 

	

14 
	

Due to the increasing concerns for the air quality, We 

	

15 
	

do have both treatment technologies, of autoclaving or steam 

	

16 
	sterilization and incineration; however, in our California 

	

17 
	operations, autoclaving is our primary treatment method. 

	

18 
	About five percent of the medical waste stream currently is 

	

19 
	mandatorily incinerated by California State Statutes, as well 

	

20 
	as those recommended by the EPA. 

	

21 
	

What we do with our customers, in terms of the 

	

22 
	services that we provide, is we provide containerization of 

	

23 
	the waste on site. We provide a collection ssrvice, where we 

	

24 
	go and collect the waste, giving and replacing the containers 

	

25 
	

that we remove with the clean, nterilized, reusable 
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1 	containers. Those are packaged onto our vehicles. They are 

	

2 	transported to one of our local treatment sites where they 

	

3 	are then treated and ultimately disposed of. 

	

4 	 One of -- and maybe this is an appropriate time as 

	

5 	well to talk about the issue of tracking, which law something 

	

6 	we provide for all of our clients -- from the time of 

	

7 	collection we have a computerized system with bar coding 

	

8 	where we actually can track that customer's waste from the 

point of collection through the disposal that we provide for 

	

10 	them. 

	

11 	 When you -- when it has been mentioned a couple of 

	

12 	times, why a lot of hospitals do not currently accept waste 

	

13 	from other facilities, possibly in California it is true that 

	

14 	they don't do it becar-se it is not within the law; however, 

	

15 	throughout the rest of the United States, they don't do At, 

	

16 	not because the law does not require them not is do it, but 

	

17 	for the mere reason that they get themselves into a very 

	

18 	libelous position when they start assuming that another 

	

19 	hospital's policies and procedures, definitions, and 

	

20 	packaging requirements are the same as theirs. 

	

21 	 As I have gone to hospitta to hospital throughout 

	

22 	California, and some of the other parts of the country, every 

	

23 	hospital has some uniqueness to their unique needs and 

	

24 	definitions of infectious waste. One hospital may call a 

	

25 	certain chemical a solid waste, and frankly put it in with 
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I 	13 	jurisdiction of the State Department of Health Services, 

	

9 	 So, across the country, that is not occurring for even 

	

10 	doctors or some generators, or other hospitals, they are 

13 	 As I indicated earlier, we do have four sites in 

14 	California, and all of those sites are permitted within the 

11 	taking their waste to major medical facilities thiA do have 

12 	onsite treatment. 

110 

1 	their medical wastes, another one might consider it a 

hazardous waste, and some people may sewer it. And, I guess 

3 	• when Another hospital assumes another medical facility's 

waste stream, they are assuming that maybe their definitions 

5 	and procedures are identical to their own, and when you are 

6 	incinerating and you are using -- and you are disposing maybe 

7 	improperly, or maybe trace amounts of flammable, liquids, 

8 	there is a lot of liability associated with that. 

16 	Toxic Substance Conrol %vision. 

17 	 Hospitals, as well as other inpatient facilities 

18 	licensed in this state, are regulated and come under the 

19 	infectious waste requirements outlined in Title 22; however, 

there are a couple of changes that have been mentioned today, 

21 	and Iv i.1 reiterate them quickly and move on. I guess, 

22 	specifically, the state law currently allows for the disposal 

23 	of untreated infectious waste in sanitary landfills. Even 

24 	though this is not a current practice in Southern California 

25 	counties so much, it is a practice in many of the counties in 
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1 	central and northern California. 

	

2 	 I guess, secondly, the prudent practices for the 

	

3 	management of medical wastes should apply to all generators. 

	

4 	Currently, as you have heard many times, the small generators 

	

5 	of 220 pornds a month are exempt from regulation. There have 

	

6 	been a couple of comments made that the small physician 

	

7 	doesn't have any alternatives, that there are no places for 

	

8 	them to take it that are cost effective -- in fact, there 

	

9 	are -- we have worked for some time on developing a very cost 

	

10 	effective -- less than $.50 a day, which is not, I don't 

	

11 	think, a tremendous burden on the physician's office to 

	

12 	handle their medical waste appropriately, giving them the 

	

13 	same comprehensive package that we give to the large acute 

	

14 	care hospita:: b!Ttt we now serve. 

	

15 	 After doing a lot of telemarketiR4 throughout the 

	

16 	medical community, with these particular small quantity 

	

17 	generators, it was about 60 percent unanimous that their 

	

18 	concerns were not as great as our concerns for the waste, and 

	

19 	they really felt that until someone said they had to handle 

	

20 	it appropriately they would continue to handle it legally, 

	

21 	which is what they are doing now by commingling it in the 

	

22 	solid waste stream. 

	

23 	 The changes that I just mentioned certainly would 

	

24 	insure a comprehensive cradle-to-grave managermt program for 

	

25 	medical wastes throughout the state. There seems to be a 
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1 	greater trend in our health care systems right now, placing, 

	

2 	I guess, a greater reliance on some of the out-patient 

	

3 	centers, the small physician's office, as opposed to the 

	

4 	dependency on hospitalization as it has been in the past. 

• 	5 	 The small urgent care centers, the emergency care 

	

6 	free-standing units, are not regulated currently, not that 

	

7 	they all don't do somethIng responsibly, we do service 
e 

	

8 	several 100 independent physicians out of Los Angeles; 

	

9 	however, that is out of the 10,000 that are here, endue do 

	

10 	have a lot of clients that are responsible and are handling 

	

11 	the waste appropriately, currently. 

	

12 	 That is all I am going to say, and will conclude this 

	

13 	statement. II you have any questions, I'll be glad to answer 

	

14 	them. 

	

15 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Yes, let me just ask a couple of 

	

16 	questions. 

	

17 	 I gather that BFI is one of the larger disposers of 

	

18 	medical wastes? 

	

19 	 HS. SIKES: That is true. 

	

20 	 CHAIR DAVIS: And, I just want to make sure that I 

	

21 	understood. 

	

22 	 You said that under current law -- and I gather you 

	

23 	said this in the spirit of hiving us change this law, that 

	

24 	was your purpose for saying it -- but, did I correctly 

	

25 	understand you to say that under current law untreated 
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infectious medical wastes could be disposed of in a landfill? 

	

2 	 MS. SIKES: With the approval of thrz local county 

	

3 	health officer, yes. 

	

4 	 CHAIR DAVIS: And, was my inference correct, that you 

	

5 	thought that was a change -- that we should change that law? 

	

6 	 MS. SIKES: Yes, your inference is correct. 

	

7 	 And, I say that only because a lot of the wastes that 

	

8 	are being disposed of untreated are not disposed of in a 

	

9 	manner separate and apart from the other waste streams, but 

	

10 	there are some small private landfills, in some of the remote 

	

11 	areas of the country, that currently are commingling their 

	

12 	wastes. 

	

13 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Since this is your business, and you 

	

14 	probably have a pretty good sense of what's happening out in 

	

15 	the real world, as they say, do you -- I taws asked everyone 

	

16 	this question -- who is the culprit? Who is basically either 

	

17 	ignoring the law and dumping illegally, or do you have any 

	

18 	observations that would help- us in identifying who is 

	

19 	responsible for the waste we have been finding, particularly 

	

20 	that on our beaches? 

	

21 	 MS. SIKES: Not really any other 1:han the ones that 

	

22 	have been mentioned. 

	

23 	 When the storm drains were being mentioned a few 

	

24 	minutes ago, I have personally been made aware of a couple of 

	

25 	incidences where -- not in the State of California, I might 
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clarify that -- in some other states, where independent 

2 	physicians were contracting with a person, or a company, 

3 	whoever it was, to come and take their needles and syringes 

4 	away on a regular basis. We further found out that this 

• 5 	person admitted that what they do with these needles and 

6 	syringes is they take them and they sell them down on the 

7 	street, where there are needle users that are looking for 

8 	usable needles, and that is what they do with them. Those 

9 	that are usable, I am sure are taken wherever they are taken, 

10 	and those that aren't used are probably thrown in the gutter • 
11 	somewhere. Those types of things certainly can be said to -- 

12 	if it is appropriate they can end up in the ocean. 

• 13 	 I don't think that someone standing on the beach with 

14 	a bag waving it, and tossing it into the ocean, certainly -- 

15 	I do believe there might be some companies throughout 

16 	California -- and not just California -- throughout the 

17 	United States right now, that are looking at the medical 

waste issue possibly as an opportunity for an entrepreneurial 

19 	business venture, without treatment capabilities, and are 

20 	collecting this waste and disposing of it improperly. 

21 	 CgIAIR DAVIS: Do we have a licensing problem, or are 

22 	we not -- 

23 	 MS. SIKES: In the State of California, no. In the 

24 	State of California, the regulations governing everything 

25 	from a treatment facility to licensing, packaging, 
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1 	transportation, is very well regulated. 

CHAIR DAVIS: Leo. 

	

3 	 MS. SIKES: Thank you. 

	

4 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: No. 

5 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you. 

6 	 The next witness is Bob Heilig. 

	

7 	 I would ask you to indulge the Chair, as we are a 

	

8 	little behind schedule, and we also have a meeting that we 

	

9 	have to conduct of the Lands Commission, so if you could try 

	

10 	and confine yourself to about five minutes, and then we can 

	

11 	ask whatever questions we think are appropriate. 

	

12 	 MR. HEILIG: L would be happy tc. Mr. Chairman. 

	

13 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you. 

	

14 	 MR. HEILIG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Lieutenant 

	

15 	Governor McCarthy, my name is Bob Heilig. I am the Director 

	

16 	for Professional Services for the California Association of 

	

17 	Hospitals and Health Systems. Thank you for inviting ua to 

	

18 	come and provide testimony before your Commission today. 

	

19 	 I think the first thing I would like to do is to 

	

20 	perhaps clarify a couple of misconceptions that we seam to 

	

21 	have heard this morning. The first is that to_date, there is 

	

22 	no epidemiological evidence to suggest that hospital or 

	

23 	medical waste is any more infectious than residential wastes. 

	

24 	As a matter of fact, in 1983, there was a well published 

	

25 	study that found that hospital wastes contained 10 to 10,00i': 
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1 	less microbial contaminants than residential wastes does. 

	

2 	 Secondly, in studies performed by the CDC, the Center 

	

3 	for Communicable Diseases in Atlanta, and the American 

	

4 	Hospital Association, they have been unable to find any 

evidence of illness or disease that is related to waste 

	

6 	disposal. That would exclude, of course, occupational needle 

	

7 	sticks, and that is an occupational injury, but disease 

	

8 	transmission from -- waste disposal, that is. 

	

9 	 But, despite the lack of any evidence of risk, the 

	

10 	California Association of Hospitals believes that generators 

	

11 	of all infectious waste should contime to take appropriate 

	

12 	steps to maintain a safe environment -- Z think that is what 

	

13 	we are here discussing today. 

	

14 	 Inisposition of wastes from hospitals is regulated by a 

	

15 	nu3ber of different laws: Title 26 of the California  

	

16 	Admjajatratjyag, the lipiatlansigsursas90, and then 

	

17 	also the worker protection laws -- federal OSHA and 

	

18 	CAL-OSHA -- have laws protecting workers from hazardous or 

	

19 	infectious wastes in hospitals. 

	

20 	 Hospitals basically handle their wastes as follows: 

	

21 	 Sharps, which we have heard and talked about this 

	

22 	morning. 

	

23 	 Needles and cutting instruments are in impervious 

	

24 	containers at the point of origin and are taken to a secure 

	

25 	holding area, and then generally a contract agency -- such as 
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we just heard speak -- comes and picks up those containers 

and disposes of them properly, generally through 

incineration. 

4 	 Pure, infectious waste, defined in the law, is placed 

6 	in red bags at the point of origin or the point of use, 

6 	wherever it became infected, and it is autoclaved generally 

7 	onsite. Most hospitals autoclave it onsite through steam 

8 	sterilization, which again, contrary to previous testimony, 

9< 	has proven to be a very effective way of reducing pathogens, 

10 	and then disposed of or burned in land fills. At that point, 

11 	those red bags are sterile. They aren't infectious any more. 

12 	 We heard the Navy comment earlier that only in certain 

• 13 	situations did they evt7 dump infectious waste overboard, and 

14 	that would be a war-typo situation. What the Commander 

15 	actually described though, was dumping over sterile bags. He 

16 	described that infectious waste is being autoclaved and then 

17 	dumped, so, in fact, they never even dump infectious waste 

18 	into the ocean. He was describing sterile material, much 

19 	cleaner than would be in your normal garbage container at 

20 	home. 

The next category, pathological wastes, or surgical 

22 	specimens, again placed in red bags, and impervious boxes, 

23 	and then generally burned onsite, although some hospitals do 

24 	contract with professional solid waste management firms to do 

25 	the burning for them, then that ash is disposed of. 
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Laboratory waste is placed in red bags, leak-proof 

4/ 	2 	containers, in the laboratory, then autoclaved or burned and 

3 	then transported to a land fill. And, of course, in that last 

4 	category would be regular trash, which is treated as regular 

5 	trash. 

6 	 The California Association of Hospitals provides for 

7 	all of its hospitals a Hazardous Waste Materials Manual which 

8 	codifies all of the laws, and has suggested ways of dealing 

9 	with all hazardous waste and infectious waste. 

41 10 	 In your letter to us, you asked the question-- 

11 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARThY: Is that for the membership? 

12 	 MR. HEILIG: -- that is for the membership. It is 

• 13 	available for anybody who would like L.. copy of it from us. 

14 	 In your letter to us, you asked a question about the 

15 	quantities of materials generated by hospitals. We really 

16 	don't know the answer to that at this time. Rough estimates 

17 	suggests that perhaps somewhere in the range of 90 million 

18 	founds per year, of at least statutorial defined infectious 

19 	waste, is generated by health care institutions in this 

20 	state. 

21 	 Congress recently parsed a Medical Waste Tracking Act 

22 	which will have pilot projects -- primarily on the east 

23 	coast -- which will attempt to determine exactly how much 

24 	infectious or hazardous waste is coming Jut of medical 

25 	institutions, and I think we will have a better handle then 
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on what we are talking about when that is finished with -- 

2 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: That 90 million pounds is 

3 	just for California? 

4 	 MR. HEILIG: -- that is just for ralifornia, yes sir. 

5 	 CHAIR DAVIS: There isn't -- there aren't records to 

6 	suggest how many -- the tonnage of red bags that have to be 

7 	disposed of by someone, or have to be carried off by someone? 

Who I am sure you nave to pay to perform that chore. 

9 
	

MR. HEILIG: Well, actually, once an infectious 

10 	material -- red bag material, if you will -- is autoclaved, 

11 	then that is no longer infectious material, ard it could 

12 	legally be treated much the same as any other trash. It is no 

13 	lc,ngor infectious, and there has been no tracking system for 

14 	that in the pact. 

15 	 Of the regulations that currently exist, the one that 

16 	we would like to see most changed, would be the separation of 

17 	infectious waste from hazardous materials. Currently, under 

18 	state laws, they are combined together, and they are two 

19 	dramatically different elements. Hazardous materials can't 

20 	be rendered, very easily, not hazardous, where infectious 

21 	waste merely needs to be burnt or sterilized, and it no 

22 	longer is infectious, it is no longer a danger to the 

23 	environment from the infection standpoint. 

24 	 The management of all hazardous materials, at the 

25 	state level, comes under people who are basically sanitatin 
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1 	engineers, solid waste management engineers, not medical 

2 	personnel -- that comes into a very separate and distinct 

3 	part of the Department of Health Services. I think it would 

4 	be a benefit to all of the citizens of the state to see that 

5 	separated out into a unique area where you have people from 

6 	tho medical sector who really, truly understand the issue of 

7 	medical wastes and infectious wastes, because it is so 

8 	different than hazardous waste. 

9 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Okay. 

10 	 MR. HEILIG: I have nothing further. 

11 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Jewel Sikes, who spoil.: before 

12 	you, indicated that her company, BFI Medical Wastes, disposes 

13 	of 1.3 million pounds of sudical and infectious wastes, each 

14 	year from their clients. 

15 	 Maybe there is a way to extrapolate from that, looking 

16 	at their specific sources of acute care hospitals, and 

17 	doctors offices, looking at the nature of the hospitals, how 

18 	much lab work is done, the kinds -- if there are any 

19 	specialties at the hospital, and try to figure -out whether it 

20 	is 9 million pounds of medical and infectious wastes 

21 	altogether in California, ar a little more or less than that. 

22 	 Is part of the book that you have there, does it 

23 	encourage any particular disposal methods? Do you have any 

24 	idea of how much of the medical waste coring from the 

25 	hospital members that you represent, go into land fill, 
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1 	versus BPI type disposal? 

MR. HEILIG: I could not tell you right of what 

percent goes to BFI, but I am sure that -- 

4 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: I don't mean BFI, itself. 

MR. HEILIG: - well, or similar type of -- 

COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: I meant that I wanted to --

MR. HEILIG: -- firms, right. 

8 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: -- yes, I don't know if there 

9 	are any other competitors to BFI 

10 	 MR. HEILIG: They are certainly -- 

11 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: 	active in the -- 

12 	 MR. HEILIG: -- yes -- 

13 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: 	state? 

14 	 MR. HEILIG: There are, but they are certainly the 

15 	largest -- 

16 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: In California? 

17 	 MR. HEILIG: -- yes, in California, and in the nation, 

18 	as far as I am aware of. 

19 	 IrJur suggestion of a way of tracking the amount -- and 

20 	there may be a way to extrapolate from their numbers. My 90- 

21 	million pounds was an extrapolation from a broad knowledge of 

22 	how much total hospital waste there appears to be, and then 

23 	suggestions are that approximately 10 percent of all of that 

24 	waste would be categorized as infectious, and then just 

25 	extrapolated back to 90 million pounds. 
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1 	 But, I would be happy t7 work with them and sae if we 

2 
	

could arrive at a figure that is perhaps more solid. 

4 

3 

BFIs in California, and whoever the others are, and figUring 

COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Yes, and maybe looking at the 

4, 	5 	out what they are burning, we could get to a fairly firm 

estimate of the size of the problem we are dealing with. 6 

Would you think a state law fair that all hospitals 7 

and all generators of medical and infectious waste be 8 

required to use BFI type disposal methods, and that we should 9 

prohibit land fill of untreated wastes? 10 

MR. HEILIG: I think that a lot of the large hospitals 11 

12 	currently manage their own waste onsite. They either 

13 	incinerate it themselves, or autoclave it and -- 

14 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Yes, and it is the type of 

15 	methods. It doesn''t have 	it can be onsite as well -AS a 

16 	private business. 

17 	 MR. HEILIG: Certainly, and it is certainly what we 
- _- 

18 	encourage for all hospitals to do now, is to take care of 

19 	their infectious waste as I described, that it is, by the 

20 	law, given the health officer's permission it county by 

21 	county, the law does not strictly require -- 

22 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Right. 

23 	 MR. HEILIG: -- infectious waste to be treated, but to 

24 	be buried. 

25 	 The fact of the matter is that that does occur in 
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northern California, but not that much. Most health officers 

	

2 	simply won't allow it. 

	

3 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: What percentage of all 

	

4 	medical and infectious wastes would you estimate are disposed 

4, 	5 	of by incineration? 

	

6 	 MR. HEILIG: A very small -- 

	

7 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Or, any of the methods that 

40 

	

8 	have been described to us here today, other than deposited in 

	

9 	land fill as untreated waste? 

	

10 	 MR. HEILIG: By far and away the majority of it is 

	

11 	either sterilized or incinerated. 

	

12 	 It is the minority of the infectious waste that would 

	

13 	be buried -- 

	

14 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: The testimony received frdm 

	

15 	Jewel Sikes suggested that only five percent is incinerated, 

	

16 	unless I misunderstand her. 

	

17 	 MR. HEILIG: Well, it is purely incinerated, that is 

	

18 	correct, and one of the reasons for that is of course, the 

	

19 	EPA rules on how much black smoke can be admitted per day, 

	

20 	and so incineration is almost exclusively -- at least at the 

	

21 	hospital level -- limited to body parts and tissue, that are 

	

22 	eliminated by incineration. The rest of the infectious 

	

23 	materials, bandages or whatever, are autoclaved, and then 

	

24 	disposed of with burial at a land fill. 

	

25 	 So, she is correct, that a very small amount is 
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incinerated, alit by far and away the majority is, at least, 

	

2 	reduced to be noninfectious. 

	

3 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Do hospitals do their own 

	

4 	autoclaving? 

	

5 	 MR. HEILIG: A large number of them de, yes. They have 

	

G 	latge autoclaves where they literally cook their infectious 

	

7 	waste, and at that point then it is no longer infectious. 

	

8 	 And in fact, that has presented at least one problem 

	

9 	that I am personally aware of where sanitary land till people 

	

J.0 	have discovered red bag's, and said,."Oh, my modnesa, this is 

	

11 	infectious waste.' 

	

12 	 Well, red bags are not impervious to the autoclave 

	

13 	process ao there is an autoclave bag in which they go into 

	

14 	and then into the autoclave machine. That bag, unfortunately 

	

15 	right now, is a claar bag, so what they eat at the lead fill 

	

IS 	in a red bag, even though it is a sterile bag, and there ie 

	

17 	panic generated. 

ail 
	le 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Could you give me a rouge 

	

19 	eatimate of how -many, tillat percentage of our total medical 

	

20 	and infectious waste generated are disposed of onaite at 

	

21 	acute care hospitals? 

22 	 MR. HEILIG: I would have to give you 	it would have 

23 	to be an estimate of ay own, and off the top 

24 	 COMMISLIONER MC CARTHY: Right. 

25 	 MR. HEILIG: -- 5 ,could venture to say probably 70 
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1 	percent. 

	

2 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Now, the 9 million pounds we 

	

3 	are taking about, that is what is generated at acute car* 

	

4 	facilities? 

41 	5 	 MR. HEILIG: That is correct. 

	

6 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Okay, and there is no plan 

	

7 	under way, that you aware of, teat doctors affiliated with 

	

8 	hospitals, who have, of course, their own firms and their own 

	

9 	offices, where they generate some medical wastes that they 

41 	10 	could contractually enter into an agreement with the 

	

11 	hospitals with which they are affiliated to use that as a 

	

12 	site for disposing of their medical wastes? 

	

13 	 MR. HEILIG: Well, certainly you heard testimony today 

	

14 	that hospitals are precluded,-  statutorily, from doing that, 

	

15 	because they don't have a license to be an onsite receptor of 
41 

	

16 	other people's waste to treat. 

	

17 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Was that clear? That state 

	

18 	law ciciarly prohibits? I thought it was an insurance 

19 

	

20 	 MR. HEILIG: No, they could do it -- 

41 	21 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Is t!'''e a clear prohibition? 

	

22 	 M.R. HEILIG: -- but -- well, they would have to have a 

	

23 	special license for that, and the p-, ocess of obtaining that 

	

24 	license -- 

	

25 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: So, existing law does allow' 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 

• 



126 

that kind of contractual agreement to be entered into. 

2 	 MR. HEILIG: It does allow it, yes. 

3 	 CHAIR DAVIS: But, we have heard a good deal of 

4 	testimony that obtaining the permit neqessary to d(.0 that is 

5 	time consuming, and is not always forthcoming. 

6 	 MR. HEILIG: That is correct, and then there is -- 

7 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: That, perhaps, we could be 

useful with in trying to smooth out the administrative 

9 	problems. 

10 	 What I was asking was whether existing law does permit 

11 	partnerships, or incorporations that are doctolA in their 

12 	offices whore some medical wastes are generated, are those 

13 	entities permitted under existing state law to enter into- 

14 	contracts acute care hospitals that have disposal facilities 

15 	onsite? 

16 	 MR. HFILIG: The answer is, yes that is correct, there 

17 	is no -- 

18 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Okay. 

19 	 MR. HEILIG: -- prohibition. There are a number of 

20 	other problems, but certainly no prohibition. 

21 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Do you analyze those other 

22 	problems in anything you have printed out for your 

23 	membership? 

24 	 MR. HEILIG: Not that we have printed out, but I 

25 	certainly have personally -- 
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1 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Would you list those? Put 

	

2 	together something for this Commission? 

	

3 	 MR. HEILIG: Certainly, it could be provided to you. 

	

4 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: Thank you. 

	

5 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you very much. 

	

6 	 MR. HEILIG: Thank you. 

	

7 	 EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: I would like to make a 

	

8 	comment. 

	

9 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Yes. 

	

10 	 EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: You testified, and I am 

	

11 	sure correctly, that in the main the materials that are 

	

12 	buried are autoclaved. I just would like to point-out that 

	

13 	the pictures we saw this morning, red bags containing organs 

	

14 	and blood, clearly had not been autoclaved. The tissues were 

	

15 	raw, and with no autoclaving, and so you understand that when 

	

16 	things are autoclaved they are cooked. The protein 

	

17 	coagulates, toe color changes, they don't look r _ 	like 

	

18 	they do in the pictures that we saw this morning. 

	

19 	 MR. HEILIG: No question, there was a problem there -- 

	

20 	 EXECUTIVE OFFICER DEDRICK: I w7Anted just to point 

	

21 	that out. 

	

22 	 MR. HEILIG: -- and I would make no excuses for that. 

	

23 	 I would point out that I didn't think it was made 

40 

	

24 	clear that the violator was known -- 

	

25 	 CHAIR DAVIS: We don't know. 
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1 	 MR. HEILIG: -- and was contacted about that 

lb 	2 	particular incident. It is not an unknown incident, and I 

3 	can't make any excuse for it. It did happen. An employee 

4 	was discharged because of the mistake. I don't think it is a 

40 	5 	continuing problem. 

6 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Let me ask one final question. 

7 	 An earlier witness testified -- as a matter of fact, I 

8 	think it was Ms. Sikes ---that existing law does allow public 

9 	health officers to approve burying untreated infectious 

4 

10 	_medical waste. 

11 	 mg. HEILIG: That is correct. 

12 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Now, from your experience, hoit 

13 	frequently does that occur? 

14 	 I grant you this is off of the top 	your head, but 

15 	what percentage of infectious medical wastes would you think 

16 	would be disposed of in that fashion? 

17 	 MR. HEILIG: Again, it is off the top of my head, and 

18 	it seems to be relatively geographic. In Southern 

19 	California, it is almost unheard of, at all. In northern 

20 	California, there are cases where health officers have 

21 	permitted it, and it is more on a local case-by-case 

22 	incident. 

23 	 And again, where they have evaluated the issue of 

24 	infectious waste, and what is infectious, and that is a real 

25 	dilemma for the medical personnel to try and explain that 
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1 	every -- and somebody suggested earlier that any cloth 

2 	material contaminated with blood should be considered 

3 	infectious -- well, we would have a horrible problem with our 

4 	own residential trash if that was the case, and most medical 

• 5 	people -- physicians and epidemiologists, and infectious 

6 	disease specialists -- do not consider that infectious, and 

7 	it is certainly outside the realm of the law. 

So, I think the oajority -- to answer your question 

9 	-- is treated properly, and the minority, in northern 

10 	California, there are instances whey_ untreated infectious 

11 	waste is buried in a land fill. And, like there is a -- 

12 	 CHAIR DAVIS: And, would you oppose that under any 

13 	circumstances? In other words, are there any circumstances 

14 	where that is an appropriate disposal mechanism? 

15 	 MR. HEILIG: Where it is appropriate? 

16 	 CHAIR DAVIS_: Yes. 

17 	 MR. HEILIG: There is a large body of medical 

18 	practitioners who feel that that is perfectly legitimate, in 

19 	that if it is bagged at the site, or the source where it was 

20 	contaminated, and then buried, that that is a perfectly safe 

21 	way to deal with that. And, I am not a physician, so I as 

22 	not going to speak to that issue, but there ie a large 

23 	medical body that does feel that that is appropriate. 

24 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you. 

25 	 MR. HEILIG: Thank you. 
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CHAIR DAVIS: Our final witness on this category is 

Dr. Cottrell, who was kind enough to stay this afternoon, and 

we appreciate that very much, doctor. 

4 	 DR. COTTRELL: Thank you, Mr. Davis and Mr. McCarthy. 

5 	 I think that first of all you should bear out that I 

6 	am from Imprial County. I am the Health Officer thare, and 

7 	I swear that I will always mention the new river when I have 

more than two high ranking office people together, and remind 

9 	you that that is in our county. 

10 	 I am Lee Cottrell, M.D. and I serve as Chairman of the 

11 	California Medical Association Committee on Environmental 

12 	Health. I am representing them today. I am also chair of the 

13 	California Conference of Local Health Officers Environmental 

14 	Health but I will not be speaking on their behalf on this 

15 	occasion. 

16 	 We have certainly come head on with a language 

17 	problem. I don't know what great writer it was thit-said 

1P 	America and England were two great nations separated by a 

19 	common language, but it is certainly manifested here today, 

20 	and it reminds me of an experience I had with a Texan that 

21 	came in to be examined, and I found a very large and 

22 	unsightly scar on his head, and I asked him how he had gotten 

23 	that and he said, "It was when I was drugged." 

24 	 And, I thought, "Oh, my, I really have got *problem, 

25 	here," and I started asking him about it, and he said, "Well, 
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doctor, it isn't any real problem. r went to work for a 

ranch in Texas. I took a new horse, and I didn't cinchithe 

3 	saddle and I feta off, and I was drugged." And, that is how 

4 	he got the scar. 

4, 	5 	 I think that the first thing that we would ask you to 

6 

	

	do is to change the term, or change infa,Jtious waste that has 

been inaccurately placed with the waste stream of hazardous 

waste, and we would make a giant step forward in clarifying 

9 	some of the problems that we encounter in dealing with 

10 	medical waste. 

11 	 I think that by placing it there with the hazardous 

12 	wastes, we've increased the threat and perception among our 

13 	poople d our population. There is little rationale for the 

14 	basis of this fear, although biological agents such as 

15 	bacteria and viruses, require oxygan survival. There may be 

16 	some that are anaerobic, end some of them are facilitative, 

17 	but as a whole they need an environmental condition that is 

18 	very fragile. 

19 	 We have heard today a challenge made to the very 

20 	concept of sterilization, and it is so stark to hear that 

40 	21 	kind of a statement made that I am going to have to go back 

22 	and refresh my reading on the subject, because sterilization 

23 	has been the cornerstone of the practice of sterile surgery 

24 	since almost the time of Pasteur, himself. 

25 	 We have also heard the suggestion that any law 1,6u 
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1 	might make would certainly have to add AIDS, and I find this 

	

2 	very unacceptable, and I would be the first to caution you 

3 	against this. The AIDS virus is so fragile that it took us 

	

4 	five years to even find it. You could take a handful of the 

5 	virus and decontaminate it, or make it noninfectious with a 

6 	teaspoon of Clorox, so I would hate to see any language in 

	

7 	law that would perpetrate the already fear that we have on 

	

8 	our public. 

	

9 	 The doctors, as members of the CAA are appalled and 

	

10 	will do anything to cooperate with any government agency, and 

	

11 	cooperate with any law making, that would assure us that our 

	

12 	beaches would not be contaminated with this unslightly waste. 

41 	13 	 We do challenge, and we do it scientifically, and you 

	

14 	have heard it throughout the testimony today, that the reason 

	

15 	that some of these cases are difficult to prosecute is that 

	

16 	they cannot prove infectivity, and I would present to you 

	

17 	that it is not very likely that they ever will, bacause most 

41 	
18 	of the bacteria and viruses cannot survive in this 

	

19 	environment that they are placed in. 

	

20 	 It seems that it is in our field that tests are 

41 	21 	governed by sensitivity and specificity, and certainly when 

	

22 	you see a waste that can be identified with the medical 

	

23 	community, it certainly is specific. But, the sensitivity of 

	

24 	it is practically zero -- and I can see that you are trying 

	

25 	to mate your meeting, or something? 
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CHAIR DAVIS: No, I want to ask a question, if I may 

	

2 	doctor. 

	

3 	 Apart frog whether or not medical waste is a public 

	

4 	health hazard to people on the, beach, wouldn't you agree that 

	

5 	the disposal of medical wastes can very well have degrading 

	

6 	effects on the environments of the oceans, as well as create 

	

7 	problems fcr the commercial fishing Industry? 

DR. COTTRELL: I would now speak very strongly, as an 

	

9 	individual, and hope that I would represent all of the 

	

10 	doctors: the ocean is not the place for disposal. I think 

	

11 	that even water treatment should go to secondary, possibly 

	

12 	tertiary treatment, before it is exposed to our ocean. That 

	

13 	is a very strong feeling that I have. 

	

14 	 I think that, unfortunately, at this time incineration 

	

15 	is the cutting edge of technology, and probably the most 

	

16 	difficult to discuss with people, and that would reduce a lot 

	

17 	of this -- environmental contamination would be reduced a 

	

18 	great amount if we were allowed to bring in incinerators that 

	

19 	are of a much larger scale. 

	

20 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Would you go -- I applaud your 

	

21 	sentiments on that subject -- would you go farther and remove 

	

22 	the current requirement that prosecutors show that waste is 

	

23 	infactious before they can bring criminal sanctions against 

	

24 	the improper disposal of waste in our oceans, and on our 

	

25 	beaches?. 
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1 	 DR. COTTRELL: I want to make sure that our 

	

2 	terminology is clear. This is waste that has been 

	

3 	indiscrislinately disposed of, and I would certainly think 

	

4 	that the prosecutors would not have to prove infectivity. 

	

5 	They would have to prove only nuisance, and inappropriate or 

	

6 	indiscriminate waste disposal. 

	

7 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you. 

	

8 	 DR. COTTRELL: I think that you have thrown me off a 

	

9 	little bit here, and I don't know where -- 

	

10 	 CHAIR DAVIS: I did, and I apologize, but I wanted to 

	

11 	seize on that. 

	

12 	 You were making the point that rarely will waste be 

	

13 	infectious, for the reasons you suggested, and I just wanted 

	

14 	to see if that was critical in your thinking to how the 

	

15 	pmblem should be treated, and how sanctions would be 

	

16 	aOplied. 

	

17 	 DR. COTTRe. : I hope that I satisfactorily answered 

	

la 	it. 

	

19 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Yes. 

	

20 	 DI. COTTRELL: I feel very strongly that in the field 

	

21 	of waste we have to deal with it realistically, and deal with 

	

22 	it properly, and I don't see any reason why medical wastes -- 

	

23 	and that is what they amount to -- cannot be disposed of 

0 	24 	without the classification of hazardous. 

	

25 	 I think that then I would commit the California 
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1 	Medical Association to advocating a more stringent .- 

2 enforcement of existing laws, and judicial tracing of alleged 

3 	violators. This would also create a deterrent to those that 

4 	casually violate the law. This would not require additional 

5 	lawa that we don't already hive in place, and that .-47-pear to 

6 	be working well in California. We don't have,  a real serious 

7 	problem, and it can be dealt with on local levels. 

8 	 We have to be aware that even though that if it costs 

9 	bilions of dollars, as Mr. McCarthy pointed out on the 

10 	secondary treatment of sewage, if that could give us a 

11 	billion dollars of improvements to the quality of life of our 

12 	citizens, it would be a dollar well spent, but I don't think 

13 	that we will get it out of making it more difficult to 

14 	dispose of medical wastes. 

15 	 In summary then, the California Medical Associat,i-on 

16 	believes that except for a few isolated, recent, incidences, 

17 	the problem of improper handling of infedtious wastes is not 

18 	serious. We can do more to educate our members -- and we 

19 	will do thi3 after this hearing -- we will make arrangements 

20 	with the editors of our publications, and put: forth a strong 

21 	effort to promulgate throughout California and the medical 

22 	community instruction as to how to comply with-every feature 

23 	of the law, and thereby relieve them of any pi Antial 

24 	incrimination of being part of the problem instead of the 

25 	solution. 
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1 	 I think that if we even considered that each doctors' 

	

2 	office would have to be licensed, I think that most counties 

	

3 	would like to generate $100 a piece. That would increase 

4 

	

	medical costs just for the permitting, somewhere in the 

neighborhood of $7 million, based on roughly 70,000 doctors 

6 	practicing in the United States. 

	

7 	 And, in all due respect to the yoong lady who said 

	

8 	that her company could dispose of the mists for $.56 a day, 

	

9 	that would amount to only $1410 a month, and tie experLanos in 

	

10 	Kern County when they were utilized to go to each dootoes 

	

11 	office, it was nearly $1000 a yeerz  and we are talking about 

	

11 	$35 million and we really have nut addressed a probien 

	

13 	because we are convinced that the infectivity of these wastes 

	

14 	are so low that sterilization would take care of it, 

	

15 	incineration would take care of it, and proper land fill 
40 

	

16 	would take care of it, and the argument that this umuld 

	

17 	perculate into our water supply is nonsense. 

	

18 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Just because I don't want you to leave a 

	

19 	misimpression with people, when you say the problem is not 

	

20 	serious, you mean serious in terms of a public health hazard 

	

21 	to individuals, as opposed to degrading effect on the 

	

22 	environment of the disposal of medical wastes in our oceans 

	

23 	and on our beaches. 

	

24 	 DR. COTTRELL: Oh, yes, that is correct. 

	

25 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Okay. 
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Leo? 

COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: No. 

3 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you very much. I appreciate you 

staying so long, doctor, to provide this testimony. 

We are going to take one more witness, and then -- to 

6 	accommodate the Lieutenant Governor's scheduling concerns, 

7 	want to take up the Lands Commission agenda. Aopefully, wu 

can finish that and then come back to the last three- 

9 	witnesses, who will speak to proposeC changes in the law. 

10 
	

I would like Jack McGurk to briefly •describe this law 

11 
	

as it stands, and then if you will permit us we will then g0 

12 
	

into a formal meeting of the Lands Commission to coneuct iov■ 

13 
	

business on the agenda, and then and pick up the That couple. 

14 
	

of witnesses who will speak to proposed changes in the law. 

15 	 MR. MC GUM: T am here today to update you on the 

16 	status of the infectious waste management in California to 

17 	provide you with an overview of the Departaint of Health 

18 	Services plans to improve moagement of infectioles 

19 	 The department adopted infectious waste imaamgcsont 

20 	regulations in 1984, pursuant to legislation annitairea 

21 	Senator Doolittle. The legislation defined infectious weate 

22 	as a hazardozs waste, which lead to a more stringent ()Ingram 

23 	than most states, which deal with infectious wastes only as a 

24 = 	factor in health care facility licensing. 

25 	 Because it is governed under hazardous Weste Laws, 
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infectious waste management violations in California carry 

2 	civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation, plus 

3 
AV 

a'Iministrative orders that have the same practice as these 

4 	violations, and also the possible criminal penalties that can 

5 	even result in imprisonment of up to two years. 

The department is currently working with the 

7 	legislature to strengthen statutes as appropriate. A 

8 	departmental task force, which includes representatives of 

9 	the local media and environmental health community is 

10 	currently addressing the need for statutory and regulatory 

11. 	enhancement. 

12 	 Several representatives that were here tufty, Mr. 

13 	Merryman, and ,74 staff person from Mr. Stephany's office, are 

14 	on that task force, is well as a member representing CCLHO. 

15 	 California's regulations which pertain to trsatment, 

16 	handling, and disposal of medical wastes 'Apply to all 

17 	generators of infectious and medical wastes regardless of the 

18 	amount generated, on sharps, such as hypodermic needles and 

19 	scapels, cultures of etiologic agents, and recognizable human 

20 	anatomical remains. 

21 	 Small generators, that generate less than 100 

22 	kilograms per 1-,nth, are exempt from these iegulations only 

23 	for wastes that is not in one of those three categorie.l. 

24 	This would include items such as discarded bandages, gloVEis, 

2"5 	and other disposables. 
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1 	 Implementation and enforcement of these regulations 

	

2 	rests primarily with local authorities. Counties currently 

	

3 	have authority to perform inspections as part of their 

	

4 	enforcement efforts. Counties also have authority to impose 

40 	5 	a fee structure on generators to fund their programs, 

	

6 	 California's regulations require that infectious waste 

	

7 	be transported by a registered hauler when the wastes 

40 

	

8 	generated are in amounts greater than 100 kilograms per 

	

9 	month. The regulations do not require the waste to be 

	

10 	manifested. The United States Environmental Protection Agency 

	

11 	will be implementing a two-year pilot program to track 

	

12 	medical wastes. Ten eastern states were named as 

13 	participants in the federal law, however, any of the 

14 	remaining states -- the remaining 40 states -- may opt into 

15 	the program. 

16 	 Last week California received a letter from EPA's 

17 	aUministrator, Lee Thomas, inviting California to opt into '  

18 	the program. The eepartment is researching EPA's proe-ram to 

19 	determine if it meets California's tracking needs. The 

20 	federal program is in the process of being developed now. 

40 	21 	Once the program is outlined, California 	be in a 

22 	position to aetermine whether it meets our needs. 

23 	 One of the major aspects of a tracking program that 

40 	24 	nobds to be considered is the universe of medical wastes that 

25 	the program would encompass. We believe that medical wastes 
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should be divided into two broad categories for tracking 

purposes. The first is infectious waste, as well as medical 

waste that presents a safety risk but that is not necessarily 

infectious, such as hypodermic needles, and broken glass 

vials. This category should be manifested and tracked. 

The second category would include aestliPtically 

displeasing wastes that do not present an infection or safety 

risk. This type of waste would include discarded bandages, 

gloves, and other disposables. These types of waste should 

be handled and disposed of properly; however, we do not 

believe it is necessary to manifest then. If manifesting 

were required of this low risk category, it could present an 

unacceptable burden for generators, and could jeopardize the 

success of tracking the truly infectious and higher risk 

medical wastes. 

The department will consider these and other impacts 

when evaluating EPA's pilot tracking program. Whether 

California opts into EPA's tracking program, or designs a 

tracking program specifically tailored to California's needs, 

the department intends to work actively with EPA in the field 

of managing medical wastes to assure that federal policy 

meets California's as well as other states' needs. 

In closing, I would like to emphasize that the 

Department of Health Services is evaluating California's 

existing Ltfectious Waste -Management Program to determine if 
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8 

	

1 	it is adequate to deal with the present situation. We are 

	

2 	also working closely with the legislature, the Governor's 

	

3 	Office, EPA, to assess the need for legislation or further 

	

4 	regulation of infectious and othar medical wastes. 

	

5 	 That concludes my presentation. 

	

6 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you. 

	

7 	 I don't have any questions. 

	

8 	 Leo, do you? 

	

9 	 COMMISSIONER MC CARTHY: No. 

	

10 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you very much for coming here 

	

11 	today. 

	

12 	 MR. MC GURK: Thank you. 

	

13 	 CHAIR DAVIS: All right, what I would like to do now 

	

14 	is to recess the hearing and move into the formal State Lands 

	

15 	Commission Agenda. 

	

16 	 At the end, we will go bw-lk and pick up Ulf executive. 

	

17 	Session, but I want to go to the formal Agenda. 

'a 

20 

	

21 	(State Lands Commission formal Agenda taken up at this tins. 

	

22 	2:50 p.m. to 3:45 p.m.] 

23 

24 

	

25 	 CHAIR DAVIS: We will now adjourn the meeting of the 

Pike Court Reporting -- (805)658-7770 



3, 

Lando Commission, artd onconvene the hearing on ocean 

2 	p011ution, without objection, and there are three remainiag 

Witnesses. 
• 

I don't even know how many are here, but is Mr. 

GOOtnin, Mr. Carter, or Mr. Manning here? 

6 

[Affirmative response from audience] 
• 

8 
	

Zwappreciate your indulgence .s we try to accommodate 

variant) potpie's schedules. Thank you for your patiency,. 

10 
	

Hr. Gladstein, You represent Assemblyman Ryden? 

11 
	

AR. GLADSTEIN: Yes, sir. 

12 
	

CHAIR DAVIS: And, you have been askeq to come before 

13 	this body to suggest any changes in the lai that would'.,410W 

, it 	$0410400, be it:infectious medical wash or noninfectious 

*45 	medical wastes. 

17 	 MR GLADS-TEM: Yes, sir. 

Good afternoon, gentleman. My nese is Cliff 

IO 	aadetein:-  and I as a field representative for 'Assemblyman 

20 	Hayden. 

21 	 The Assemblyman is sorry that he can't be here today. 

ii 
Hfk is probably -- judging from the record low temperatures in 

23 	'Washington D.C. he is probably very sorry 	but he asked me 

24 
	

to come here today and read the following letter. 

*Dear Chairman Davis, and members of the COmmission. 

brab state- to come to grips with the problem of medical 
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1 
	

Althought I am unable to personally attent today's 

	

2 
	

hearing on ocean dumping, I greatly appreciate your 

	

3 
	

investigation into the problem of medical wait**, and 

	

4 
	

would like to take this opportunity to shore with yoU, 

a bill I recently introduced in th-;\ State Assembly On 

	

6 
	

the subject. 

	

7 
	

Improper disposal of medical wastes, some of which im 

	

8 	 potentially infectious waste,- is becoming an 

	

9 	 increasingly serious problem nationally and in 

	

10 	California. 

	

11 	 "I am summit are all familiar with the situation last 

	

12 	 summer when medical wastes dumped in ths\Atlantic 

	

13 	 washed up on the New Jersey shore, resulting in the 

	

14 	 closing of popular beaches. 

"In California, we are also wit:Assing the result* of 

	

16 
	

inadequate regulations of our medical wastes. 

	

17 
	

Hypodermic needles, vials of blood, and other medical 

	

18 
	

wastes are washing up on our public beaches, found in 

	

19 
	

regular trash bins, and even dumped in public parks. 

	

20 
	

Except for large generators, the collection 741 

disposal of medical wastes is virtually unre*Mat'Ild. 

EuSn for large generators, there has been lax 

enforcement. 

4Current law allows many small generators of nediuna 

wastes to dispose of this potentially infectious 
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1 	 material in the regular trash. This can expo** 

sanitation workers, children, or others who may have 

3 	 contact with trash, to infectious diseases. 

4 	 "This growing menace encouraged me to introduce 

5 	 legislation to regulate medical wagtail disposal from 

-6 	 all sources, AS 109 would create a new medical west* 

section of the law in line with recommendations of the 

National Center for Disease Control. The provisions 

9 	 of this bill would remove the exemption for small 

10 	 generators of medical wastes, and increase the 

11 	 penalties for improper disposal. 

12 	 "The bill also allows local sanitation officials to 

13 	 .inspect any medical facility to insure proper 

14 	 and disposal of medical wastes. The mere thorough ?he 

15 	 control over disposal of medical waste at its stucco, 

16 	 the less likely it will end up on our beaches. 

17 

19 

"I am submitting, for your information, a copy of my 

bill, and SCOW background material my staff prepared 

for its introduction. I have been in touch with the 

State Department of Health Services Task force on 

medical wastes, and we have agreed to work tog* 

addressing this problem. 

"Likwise, I look forward to the results of your 

ftiring, and your comments on thm bill." 

Thenk you. 

 

S 
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1 	 Any questions. 

2 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you for your patience, and for 

 

6 

providing us with the-letter from the Assemblyman, as well as 

a cqpy of his legislation. 

MR. GLADSTEIN: Thank you. 

R DAVIS: Is Mr. Carter here? 

7 MR. 	ING: I think he left. 

CHAIkDAVIS: He left? 

	

9 
	

Is this Mr. Manning? 

	

10 
	

MR. MANNING: Yes. ---' 

	

11 
	

R DAVIS: You are a Deputy City Attorney from the  

	

12 	City of Santa Monica? 

	

13 	 MR. MANNING, Yes, that is correict. 

MR. DAVIS: We are delighted to be in your hams harts  

	

15 	and thank you. 

	

16 	 MR. MANNING: Yes, and delighted to have you. 

	

17 	 I an in charge of environmental enftrcement 

18 	 R DAVIS: Do you recognize this fallow? 

19 	 M.. a  ING: -- I was lust going to say that he is ini 

al • c' 

20 	the same seat that he used to occupy not too long ago. 
r"--) 

21 	 CHAIR DAVIS:, And, did he cause you u lot of tmouble 

22 	Y kind of a councilman is he? 

23 	 MR. MANNING: He was fine. Ha didn't cause 	*NV 

38 	Adb.4.4 

CHAIR DAVIS: Fin*, all right yes, we got that. We 
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got the *usage. 

[Gel oral discussion hela.] 

MR. KAMM: I hAVe some pictures that 1 breelht4W, 

which you can look at. 

CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you. 

MR. MANNING: These are photographs from several 

	

9 	incidents of illegal disposal of medical waste in the City of 

	

10 	ante Monica, "which has occurred over the last six months. 

	

11 	Contained in the pictures are needles, blood, urine saMplea,-  

	

12 	chemotherapy wastes -- which is carcenogenic and esmorta 

	

13 	other items which are not so pleasant to look at, but they 

	

14 	are reality. 

I prosecuted this year a medical group in Santa Kenca 

	

16. 	for illegal disposal of syringes in the normal tom, and 

	

17 	those plptures are included there as well, and I curroittk* I 

	

13 
	

prOsecuting another doctor in Santa Monica for aspoming of 

	

19 
	

noodles and blood in the trash. 

	

20 
	

CHAIR DAVIS: Is this waste found in the City Santa 

	

21 	Monica? On the beaches of Santa Monica? 

MR.. MANNING: No, this waste is being dumped every drly 

in dumpsters, open bins in thL alley ways, aixa other falaceit 

where sanitation, workers every day are paged wig 

	

26 	2;4 having blood spilled on them. When the trash is 

k)\-  
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compacted, several sanitat;kon workers have_actually been 

2 	stuck with used needlus, and children,-animals, and anybody 

3 	else could easily access these items, especially in a city 

like Santa Monica, where you have many alleyways which are 

5 	commonly used thoroughfares. 

6 	 In addition, I are also going to speak for Bill Carter, 

7 	who I have worked with closely over the years in 

8 	environmental enforcement in the Los _Angeles County D.A.'s 

9 	office. They recently found bags of -- red bag wastes on 

10 	park benches in-the City of Los Angeles, as well as blood 

11 	vials generated from an AIDS clinic 	unfortunately - being 

12 	disposed of in the dumpsters, as well. 

13 	 As well, the City of West Hollywood has also contacted 

14 

	

	se with problems regarding people, drug addicts, removing 

used hypodermic syringes from dumpsters. 

16 	 So, the problem is very real. I heard some of the 

17 	speakers today sort of diminishing the gravity of the 

18 	problem/  I think. The problem is very real, and for those of 

19 	us on the front line every day who respond to the calls when 

20 	they come out of illegal dumping, and then try and prosecute 

21 	the cases, there are serious problems, which I think you will 

22 = be in a position to help remedy. 

23 	 Recently I sent a letter to all medical groups in the 

24 	CItty of Santa Monica regarding their responeibil-ItieslinMt 

tOk laW. I fond out that many of the doctors did nOt 

S 
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1 	understand the basic notion of proper disposal of medical 

	

2 	wastes, and many were uninformed, and had no idea, that this 

	

3 	area was regulated at all, and those were some of the doctors 

	

4 	whose clear guidelines were applied to. 

	

5 	 Many of the small generators of medical wastes are 

totally unregulated by current law. As the result of that, 

	

7 	have worked with Assemblyman Hayden, and Bill Carter from the 

D.A-la office, to write legislation t 'help remedy the 

	

9 	problem. 

	

10 	 Briefly, I would like to outline three things that the 

	

11 	bill does do, and then a couple of things that I think you 

	

12 	could address through the State Lands Commission. 

	

13 	 It removes infectious waste from the Hazardous Waste 

	

14 	Control Act, which several people talked about today as being 

	

15 	necessary. And, reclassifies it as medical wastes, thereby 

	

16 	allowing prosecutors to win cases by proving that the waste 

	

17 	is a type of waste which is potentially infectious, as 

	

18 	opposed to having to prove the infectious characteristics. 
40 

19 	 It eliminates exemptions for small generators of 

	

20 	medical wastes, which are currently a major problem. And, it 

	

21 	empowers local sanitation officials to do inspections of 

22 	medical offices and work with them to sake sure that they are 

23 	disposing of medical wastes, properly. 

24 	 This is necessary because, as you may have heard pr 

25 	may not have heard -- I am not sure -- tho county and state 
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1 	health officials are overwhelmed by trying to deal with the 

2 	problems of hazardous waste. They do virtually no 

3 	inspections in Los Angeles County of licensed clinics and 

4 	health facilities. The only people who inspections are done 

5 	for are large hospitals, and even then-regulation is very 

6 	loose. With no inspection and no enforcement, and a lack of 

7 	personnel, and a lack of money, we feel it is necessary to': 

8 	empower local sanitation officials with more control, to 

9 	become directly affected and to get involved vith the issue 

10 	and do inspecti=--4s. This is a novel solution tn problems 

11 	which will cost little money for lo,Tal governments to 

12 - implement. 

13 	 Two things the legislation doe's not do, Which I hope 

14 	you can remedy, it does not establish a tracking or 

15 	manifesting system for medical wastes. O the federal level, 

ill 	
_ 

16 	Senator medley- this year Introduced legislation for pilot 

17 	pr as in New Jersey ancl New York, to establish a monitoring 

18 	system. This should be dock, „..--,-, -'1/411 state level in California, 

19 	and should be studied by yourself 0.!„-ad the State Department of 

20 	Health Services. An effective tracking and manifertior 

21 	system would go a long way to identifying the 

22 	problems with wastes being disposed of illegally rs both land 

23 	fills- and the ocean. 

24 	 CHAIR MVIST. There is nu tracking provision in -- 

25 	 R. MARRING: In the legislation, no, 	is not. 

• 
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1 	 Ws felt that needed further study, and we didn't want 

	

2 	to bite off siiore than we could chew in this bill. 

	

3 	 Also, another thing which people address is to 

	

4 	eliminate the permitting requirement, the TSD permitting 

	

5 	requirement for hospitals to treat wastes generated by 

	

6 	doctCrs in the community. This would go a long way in 

	

7 	helping to solve the problem. 

	

8 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Now, there has been some people here who 

	

9 	suggested -- and I haven't told Leo -- but people have 

	

10 	suggested the permit shou;xd still issue, but it should issue 

	

11 	fromk a local agency, rather than the State Department of 

	

12 	Health. 

	

13 	 MR. NANNING: That is possible. 

	

14 	 I think \eller* has to be some permitting, but the 

	

15 	problem is, at the state level, the ,oermitting, they arc so 

	

16 	far behind in_processing permits now I mean, they are like 

17 	two years behind in certain situations. 

	

18 	 I am not sure that the local F-11  th ofziciera are 

	

19 	really equipped to administer that system, either. 

	

20 	 CRAM DAVIS: Well, then let me ask yriu the question 1'  

	

21 	was trying to ask just before, of a witness from -- 

22 
	

HR. MANNING: I remember. 

23 	 chain DAVIS: -- San aevo County. 

24 	 hazards do we run if there is no permit 

28 	requirement -- what haraxds, ifany, do we run if there is no 
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permit requirement? 

2 	 MR. MANNING: We run the risk of medical mistake baling- 

3 	nixed, let's say, something like chemotherapy wastes, which 

4 	maybe shouldn't be autoclaved, being mixed with needles and 

5 	blood, and other things, which could be, probably, auto

6 	at the hospital or incinerated. 

	

7 	 You also run the risk of people transporting these 

8, items to tya hospital in an unsafe and improper manner, 

thereby maybe endangering themselves and others in the 

community. Those are two of the concerns, and also tWir, 

	

11 	liability issues which I mentioned. 

	

12 	 But, I think that it outweighed by the fact that•' 

	

13 	you simplify the process through legislation or regulations, 

	

14 	you can sufficiently put in place certain guidelines, and tp• 

	

15 	medical wastes can be 'safely transported to a hospital and' an 

	

16 	agreement can be worked out between the hospitals, and the 

	

17 	doctors who use that hospital, to make sure the proper Mae' 

	

18 	are autoclaved, or incinerated at the -hospital facility- , 

	

19 	 CHAIR DAVIS:,. And, then what assurance could we-g*ve 

	

20 	the public thatth,,,,  wastes were 17cing properly disposed of? 

	

21 	 MR. MANNING: Okay, right now,  the public has no 

	

22 	ineurance for that. 

u 

	

23 	 By having at least the local 	the small genera*, 

	

24 	aye their waste to the hospitals, we would know at 

	

25 	that they were not going in the normal trash and the r.; 
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1 disappearing soli./ place, either in a_land fill, in the-- 
•_11 

2 oceans, or God knows where else. 

3 By this system atleast you would be getting to .the 
1 

4 Amipitals who are more highly regulated, who local health A 

I 
5 	, officers have ihe personnel to inspect more frequently, and- 

6 who are more closely regulated under existing law 	and under 

	

7 	the proposed legislation sanitation officials as well could 

	

a 	do inspections and work with the hospitals and medical 

	

9 	community to make sure they know what their legal 

	

10 	requirements are, and then to make sure they are complying 

	

11 	with it 

	

12 
	

In conclusion, I just would like to say that 'lie 

	

13 
	

Disease Control Center Guidelines for universal health 

	

14 
	

precautions are not currently followed under wasting 

	

15 
	

CSlifornia law, that sanitatir. workers face unreasonable 

	

16 	health risks every day, and that potentAlly the people in 

17 	the community do. 

18 	 And, I think the Hayden legislation will go a lOng way 

19 	to remedy this problem, but also there aro gaps which ratio, 

	

20 	,which we just discussed, which this i,,Ommission„can addreSS- 

	

'` 22 	and that would be very helpful, and would sake ay job stow.  

	

22 	as a prosecutor. 

 

 

23 	 COMMISSIONER KATE;„ You talked earlier abOUt:tbe 

24 	sanitation workers confronting these problems undmpectlidit. 

25 	 What kind of information caPturing mechanisms dwa:, 

S 
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1 	this City have? 

2 
	

MR. MANNING: Wall 

COMMISSIONER KATZ: Are they required to report every 

such incident? 

MR. MANNING: I began with the city about two years 

6 	ago, and what we hays tried to do is we have tried to educate 

the sanitation workers on what to look for in dumpsters, that 

is apparent. I don,t want them rummaging through it. 

9 	 When they find medical wastes, or other hazardous 

10 	wastes dumped illegally that we have a process where they 

11 	notify the Police Department, Fire Department, and myself, 

12 	and we respond and investigate it, try and track it back to 

13 	the source, which is why immediate notification is important. 

14 	 Many times the sanitation workers will know where they 

15 	picked it up on their route. We will then trace back to that 

16 	spot on the route and have the Police Department investigate. 

17 	 COMMISSIONER KATZ: And, about how many of these 

18 	investigations take place in a city of this size? TWO - 

19 	hospitals -- 

20 	 MR. MANNING: I would say, in the last six months, we 

21 	have had five separate incidents, and those are just the ones 

22 	we know about. Generally, it is the tip of tho iceberg. 

23 	 I also find out when I talk to the sanitation worklerd. 

24 	that there have bean two or three other incidents which they 

25 	didn't report, because they didn't either have time, or they 

•••■11810 
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1 	didn't know they were supposed-to, no I would estimate that 

2 	there have been at least 8 incidents in the last'Six months. 

3 	Some of which we knew about, and some of which we didn't. 

	

4 	And, I know there have been many other incidentit throughotit 

	

5 	the County of Los Angeles. 

Ic 

	

6 	 And, another problem I might point out -briefly is that 

	

7 	the people that -- the city officials have a learning curve 

	

8 	here. Small cities like Santa Monica don't necessarily have 

	

9 	the expertise of larger cities like Los Angeles or L.A. 

	

10 	County where we have a Health Department in place, and whin 

	

11 	we've called the County of Los Angeles to respond to these 

	

12 	incidents, many times they have been unable, or unwilling to 

	

13 	respond due to the constraint on their own resources of 

	

14 	responding to emergency incidents where a hazardous waste 

	

15 	tanker truck will overturn on the fresway. 

	

16 	 So, .Lc is a real crisis by putting it into the 

17 	Hazardous Waste Control Act.. You are taking 	are 

• 	18 	battling for resources. By taking it ,put of .thetands of the 
19 	Waste Control Act, and giving it its o4rn status as medical 

20 	wastes, and empowering sanitation officials, we can do a mere 

AO 	21 	effective job, i think, of regulating and investigating. 

22 	 COMMISSIONER KATZ: Thank you. 

23 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Thank you very much -- 

24 	 MR. NANNING: Thank you. 

25 	 CHAIR DAVIS: -- for your patience and for your 

'41 

t:t 
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1 	testimony, which is quite goad. 

• 	2 
	

I want to thank the Commission staff for organising: a 

3 	very comprehensive hearing, where a lot of illuminating ideas 

4 	were presented, and we covered a lot of ground here, and I 

5 	appreciate all of the work that went into today's hearing. 

6 	 Paul, what are you signalling me about? 

7 	 PAUL IDECKER: I was just wondering if there was a 

8 	public comment section or is that omitted because ,of the 

rf0= 

time? 

	

- 10 	 CHAIR DAVIS: Well, I would be happy to stay here and 

	

11 	allow it. 

	

12 	 I hate to keep jumping back and forth, but I want to 

	

13 	get to the executive session so that all of the attorneys can 

	

14 	go back to Sacramento, and then I will come back and we 

	

25 	can -- is it brief? 

	

16 	 MR. GOLD: Pretty brief, yes. 

	

17 	 CHAIR DAVIS: All right, go ahead; 

	

18 	 Is there anyone else who wants to participate in the," 

	

19 	public comment session? 

	

20 	 (No response.]- 

	

21 	 Okay, we -will have a session of one. 

	

22 	 What is your name? 

	

23 	 MR. GOLD: 2.1y name is Mark Cold. I am A staff 

	

24 	scientist for Heal the Bay;  which is a local public inter-Set 

	

25 	group,, 

Ell 
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1 	 Most of the large scale problems, and possible 

	

2 	solutions to the medical waste disposal and troatwant have 

	

3 	already been addressed today. We at Heal the Hey-)atrohgly 

	

4 	support Assemblyman Hayden's proposed medical waste 

• 5 	legislation. 

	

6 	 One of the major problems facing the public has not 

	

7 	been adequately addressed, however, and that is what should 

	

8 	people do with medical wastes once they find it on our 

	

9 	beaches, or in -ur trash duapsters? 

10 - 	This problem is demonstrated by the following 

	

ii 	anecdote: one of our members found a four-inch vial of 

	

12 	antiseptic on November 15 at a beach ono-half mils from here. 

	

13 	She found the vial two days after a storm, and placed it on 

	

14 	my desk -- of all places. The vial turned out to contain the 

	

15 	biological chemical warfare antiseptic that showed up an San 

	

16 	Diego and Orange County beaches that same week. This fact 

	

17 	says a lot for ocean transport of pollutants. 

	

18 	 It took me over 20 phone calls to at least 10 

	

19 	catiat 3anta Monica and Los Angeles County agencies before 

	

20 	the vial *as finally picked up by the Santa Monica Police 

AP 	21 	Department. The person at the L.A. County Department of 

	

22 	Health Services told our Heal the Bay receptionist to 

	

23 	chlorinate the vial with bleach, and then pour the liquid 

	

24 	into the sink with further bleach input. She was then told to 

	

25 	throw the vial into the. trash. 
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1 	 There was an irony in this whole scenario. When the 

2 	Santa Monica Police. Department picked up the vial, they 
0 

3 	choose to call the County Health Services for pick up. This 

4 	was the same- agency that gave us the irresponsible advice of 

• tstiilq care of the problem ourselves. 

6 	 We at Heal the Bay would like to see an agency take 

7 	the lead on the medical waste problem. None of the agencies 

8 	had any idea of the proper protocol for medical waste 

9 	transportation and disposal. Perhaps a protocol does not 

10 	exist, in which case, it definitely should. We need better 

11 	inter-agency communication and cooperation to deal with the 

12 	medical waste problem. 

• 	13 	 Another sioprat* infectious waste problem, that I have 

14 	actually heard nc one address, is that bacteria that are 

15 	genetically engineered at universities are frequently being 

• 	16 	disposed of by pouring it down the sink. 
17 	 I don't know if anyone is looking into this sort of 

18 	problem, and autoclaving bacteria from experiments is 

19 	frequently not required, and the enforcement of such 

20 	autoclaving procedures is lax-at best. 

O 
	21 	 Thank you. 

22 	 -CHAIR DAVIS: Do you have any personal experience? 

23 	-Or, have you talked to anyone who has personally witnessed 

I) 	24 	people at universities pouring these genetically 

25 	engineered Sc. 
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1 	 MR. GOLD: I have, but because of the circumstances, 

	

2 	you know, they could probably get in trouble for telling on 

	

3 	their fallow researchers, but it is fairly common place. 

CHAIR DAVIS: All right, thank you very much for your 

	

5 	patience and participation. 

	

6 	 MR. GOLD: You're welcome. 

	

7 	 CHAIR DAVIS: There is no one else to participate in 

	

8 	the public comient period? 

	

9 	 [No response.] 

	

10 	 I want to thank Mr-. Gold, and I want to again thank 

	

11 	the staff for bringing together a very good group of 

	

12 	witnesses. 

	

13 	 And, I want to adjourn today's special hearing on 

	

14 	ocean pollution as it relates to medical wastes, again, 

	

15 	thanking the staff very much. 

1.6 

	

17 	[Adjourned at 4:05 p.m.] 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
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